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I. BASIC FACTS AND KEY FEATURES 

 

1. The Japan Special Fund (JSF), 

established in 1988, has grown into a 

significant fund at the Asian Development 

Bank (ADB). It finances a wide range of 

technical assistance (TA) activities in 

support of ADB’s priority aid projects. 

Such activities support developing member 

countries (DMCs) of ADB (Appendix 1) in 

preparing a program of potential 

development projects that are technically 

feasible and economically viable, for 

subsequent financing. Some projects 

involve institutional strengthening, 

analytical studies of various types, or the 

formulation of national development plans 

and poverty reduction programs. Others 

build capacity to improve governance or 

accelerate human resource development. 

Regional TA grants are provided to a 

group of DMCs to support analytical  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

studies or development activities that 

benefit more than just one country. ADB’s 

TA activities result in a range of knowledge 

products and services. 

 

2. ADB administers the JSF through 

the Office of Cofinancing Operations 

(OCO). OCO processes TA proposals in 

batches, normally six times a year. It 

processes urgent proposals separately. The 

proposals undergo two stages of approval 

for fund commitment. After careful 

screening by OCO, they are sent to the 

Government of Japan for initial approval. 

The proposals that are approved after 

thorough review by the JSF authorities in 

Japan are further reviewed and cleared by 

ADB’s interdepartmental staff review 

committee. Those that receive final 

approval are announced by OCO. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFILE 
 
Background 

• Established in March 1988 
• Funded by the Government of 

Japan (GOJ) 
• Administered by the Office of 

Cofinancing Operations of ADB 

TWO-STEP APPROVAL PROCESS 
 
Informal 

• Preliminary review 
• Request for clarification 
• GOJ final review 
• Further request for 

clarification 
• Receipt of informal approval 

Formal 
• Issuance of registration 

number 
• Receipt of formal approval 

Uses of JSF Grants 
• Preparing projects  
• Providing advice 
• Implementing projects 
• Supporting regional activities 
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II. JAPAN SPECIAL FUND 

OPERATIONS IN 2004 

 

A. Operational Highlights 

 

3. As ADB continues to sharpen its 

strategies and policies to reduce poverty in 

the region and increase its development 

effectiveness, the JSF has continued to 

support its operations and particularly its 

TA program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Improving Rural Infrastructure in 

Bangladesh (Box 1) 

 

4. Bangladesh is one of the world’s 

most densely populated countries, with  

 

 

 

about 131 million people in an area of 

about 147,570 square kilometers. As high 

population density favors labor-intensive 

farming on fertile land and small-scale 

farming, agriculture continues to be a 

critical sector of the economy, generating 

about 30% of gross domestic product and 

employing about 70% of the labor force. 

 

5. Bangladesh is also one of the 

poorest countries in the world—about half 

of the population is poor. Economic 

development and poverty reduction are 

therefore overriding development 

priorities. With about 77% of the 

population and some 90% of the poor 

living in the rural areas, there is an acute 

need for employment-intensive activities in 

the nonfarm sector, effective education 

and health services, and better protection 

against natural disasters. Rural transport 

and market facilities must improve to meet 

these needs.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE APPROVALS 
(2004) 
 

Between 1 January and 30 June 
2004, ADB approved 4 technical 
assistance (TA) grants for JSF funding of 
$2.6 million. 
 
 Between 1 July and 31 
December 2004, ADB approved 67 TA 
grants for JSF funding of $37.4 million. 

COMPARISON BETWEEN 2003 AND 2004 TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE APPROVALS 
 
 2003  2004 
Period Covered No. of Projects $’000  No. of Projects $’000 
January–June 19 10,500.0    4 2,600.0 
July–December 48 26,390.0  67 37,421.5 
Total 
 

67 36,890.0  71 40,021.5 
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Box 1: Second Rural Infrastructure Improvement Project, Bangladesh 

 

The technical assistance (TA) addresses broader concerns of rural and social 

development besides road improvements. It also deals with specific problems that adversely 

affect the poor in especially disadvantaged parts of the Project, such as submersible access 

roads, which are subject to deep seasonal flooding. The TA is helping the Government draft 

a project proposal to augment rural livelihoods through improvements in rural 

infrastructure, reduce rural poverty, and strengthen local governance in Bangladesh. The 

ensuing Project will improve rural infrastructure in 23 districts in Rajshahi, Dhaka, and 

Chittagong divisions and increase economic opportunities for the rural poor by improving 

rural infrastructure. The Project will (i) build stakeholder capacity and strengthen local 

governance; (ii) upgrade rural infrastructure; (iii) provide income-generating activities for the 

rural poor; and (v) provide institutional support for effective management. 

__________ 
Source: ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance to the People’s Republic of Bangladesh for Preparing the 

Second Rural Infrastructure Improvement Project. Manila (TA 4516-BAN, $400,000, 
approved on 20 December 2004). 

 
 

 

2. Improving Access to Basic 

Social Infrastructure in 

Azerbaijan (Box 2) 

 

6. Despite the relatively rapid growth 

in gross domestic product per capita, 

many people in Azerbaijan have no access 

to adequate social infrastructure services 

such as drinking water and sanitation, 

education, and health care. These services 

have significantly deteriorated since 

independence in 1991. At the same  

time, demand for these services is 

increasing, particularly in the urban areas. 

Internally displaced persons (IDPs) are 

among the most vulnerable segments of 

the population. About 382,000 IDPs are 

reported to live in temporary shelters with 

no access to basic services. Other 

vulnerable groups that also lack access to 

adequate social infrastructure are the 

unemployed, female-headed households, 

pensioners, and the disabled. 
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Box 2: Social Infrastructure for Internally Displaced Persons 

and Vulnerable Population Project, Azerbaijan 

 

The Project is aimed at improving access to basic social infrastructure for vulnerable 

segments of the population, including internally displaced persons (IDPs), while at the same 

time building the capacity of local government and community groups to identify priorities, 

make strategic plans, and improve the quality and coverage of service. The Project involves 

(i) subproject investments in new, rehabilitated, or upgraded housing or municipal 

infrastructure (e.g., public schools, water supply, and sanitation) for IDPs; (ii) support for 

local initiatives to improve social infrastructure services, using a community-driven 

development approach; (iii) capacity building for municipalities, local executive committees, 

community groups, and other project partners; and (iv) support for project management. 

__________ 
Source: ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance to the Republic of Azerbaijan for Preparing the Social 

Infrastructure for Internally Displaced Persons and Vulnerable Population Project. Manila  
            (TA 4478-AZE, $500,000, approved on 14 December 2004). 
 
 
 

3. Preparing the Gas 

Transportation Project Through 

Public-Private Partnership in 

Indonesia (Box 3) 

 

7. Among Southeast Asian countries, 

Indonesia is particularly well endowed 

with natural gas resources. It has about 

177 trillion cubic feet (TCF) in current 

reserves, half of those proven. At the 

current production rate (around 3 TCF per 

year over the last 7 years), the reserves are 

good for well over 50 years. About 70% 

of the gas produced is exported as 

liquefied natural gas and through 

pipelines, and the rest is consumed by the 

country. While some major reserves are 

far from the main consumption centers, 

significant reserves in South Sumatra are 

less than 600 kilometers from the Jakarta 

area. Government reports indicate some 7 

TCF of remaining reserves in West Java 

alone, although these have not been 

developed. This potential if realized, 

coupled with the South Sumatra reserves, 

should secure the gas supply to the Java 

market over the medium term. 
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Box 3: Gas Transportation Project Through Public–Private Partnership, Indonesia 

 

In this two-part project, the scope of work in part A consists of assisting the 

Government of Indonesia in selecting an optimum gas transportation scheme for Java. The 

choice will be based on the findings of the gas sector development plan prepared with ADB 

assistance and the gas pricing and utilization study being done with the help of the World 

Bank. The potential for increasing the share of gas in the country’s energy mix, using gas 

pricing and other appropriate policies, will be evaluated. 

 

 Subject to the conclusions of part A, detailed studies will be done in part B to 

formulate and implement the gas transportation project identified in part A. The gas market 

will be assessed, front-end engineering design will be carried out, environmental and social 

impact will be determined, and an “optimum” project structure and financing plan based 

on public-private partnership will be prepared. 

__________ 
Source: ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance to the Republic of Indonesia for Preparing the Gas 

Transportation Project Through Public–Private Partnership. Manila (TA 4360-INO, $910,000, 
approved on 20 July 2004). 

 
 

 

4. Preparing a Renewable Energy 

Development Project in Pakistan 

(Box 4) 

 

8. Pakistan is a net importer of 

energy. Each year it imports $3 billion 

worth of oil, or about 30% of total 

import value, for its energy needs. Oil 

imports place a heavy foreign exchange 

burden on the Government, particularly 

with the recent increases and continuous 

fluctuation in oil prices. Most of the oil is 

used to generate electricity. More than 

70% of Pakistan’s electricity comes from 

thermal sources, a little less than 30% is 

hydroelectric power, and less than 1% 

comes from renewable and other sources. 

Even with all its energy imports, Pakistan 

still faces a 20% shortage in power. To 

address this shortage and promote its 

decentralization policy, the Government 

of Pakistan has delegated authority to the 

provinces to develop up to 50 megawatts 

of generating capacity for their energy 

needs. Installing small-scale power 

generation technologies close to the load 
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being served (distributed generation) has 

significant advantages. It will not only 

help meet the power shortage but also 

ensure more reliable and better-quality 

supply of power. 

 

 

Box 4: Renewable Energy Development Project, Pakistan 
 

The technical assistance is aimed at evaluating ways of developing renewable 

sources of energy, primarily wind and solar energy and thermal heating systems for 

domestic and industrial use, as well as bagasse cogeneration of power and possibly biomass 

energy. 

__________ 
Source: ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance to the Islamic Republic of Pakistan for Preparing the 

Renewable Energy Development Project. Manila (TA 4425-PAK, $550,000, approved on  
             5 November 2004). 
 
 

 

B. Recognition of Japan Special Fund 

Assistance 

 

9. JSF grant recipients recognize the 

significance of JSF assistance. The 

Government of Japan, for its part, 

appreciates activities such as TA signing 

ceremonies, speeches, press releases, and 

printed materials that boost visibility for 

JSF financing, and encourages recipients 

to support efforts at greater visibility. 

 

10. Two high officials from the 

Government of Viet Nam and ADB’s 

country director participated in the 

signing ceremony at the State Bank of 

Viet Nam for the JSF-funded project 

preparatory TA grant titled Rural 

Infrastructure for Sustainable Livelihood 

Improvement in the Central Region. The  

first secretary and head of the economic 

section of the Embassy of Japan 

witnessed the signing of the TA 

agreement. The TA will support 

improvements in rural infrastructure in 

the provinces of Ha Tinh, Nghe An, 

Quang Binh, Quang Nam, Quang Tri, and 

Thanh Hoa in the Central Region (Box 5) 

and thus help reduce rural poverty in Viet 

Nam.1 

                                                 
1 ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance to the Socialist 

Republic of Viet Nam for Preparing the Rural 
Infrastructure for Sustainable Livelihood 
Improvement in Central Region Project. Manila 
(TA 4440-VIE, $800,000, approved on 19 
November 2004). 
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11. In a speech at a 3-day high-level 

meeting on key Doha Round issues in 

Osaka, Japan, the chief economist of 

ADB’s Economics and Research 

Department expressed deep appreciation 

for the “keen interest” shown by the local 

authorities in hosting high-level meetings 

on World Trade Organization issues and 

thanked the Government of Japan for its 

financial support, through the Japan 

Special Fund (Box 6). 

 

12. A second best-practices dialogue  

was convened at ADB headquarters under  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

the third phase of the JSF-funded regional 

TA grant that is aimed at strengthening 

the institutional and technical capabilities 

of Asian domestic credit rating agencies 

in capital market development. The 1-day 

event, organized by ADB’s Office of 

Regional Economic Integration, was 

attended by chief executive officers of 

domestic credit rating agencies in the 

region that are members of the 

Association of Credit Rating Agencies in 

Asia (Box 7). 

 

JSF VISIBILITY 
 

The Government of Japan (GOJ) 
appreciates the visibility generated by 
technical assistance (TA) signing 
ceremonies, which promotes public 
awareness of Japan Special Fund (JSF)-
financed TAs and will help make the case 
for continuing support for JSF. 

 
Based on experience during well-

attended signing ceremonies, in particular, 
for TA projects for the Philippines, GOJ 
offers a few suggestions for further 
strengthening JSF visibility during signing 
ceremonies to be attended by local 
Japanese Embassy officials.  Activities that 
will increase the visibility of this fund are 
the following: 
  

Press Release: The attendance of 
the GOJ official is clearly mentioned in 
press releases. In this connection, the ten-
day notice period is required for informing 
Tokyo, for the preparation of appropriate 
press releases, and other logistic and 
physical arrangements. 

 

Speech: The signing ceremonies 
should be an opportunity for the GOJ 
representative to deliver a goodwill 
message. 

 
Physical Arrangement: Appropriate 

seating arrangement for the representative 
of GOJ, the donor, should be provided.  

 
Printed material: It is suggested to 

make appropriate but simple mention of 
the assistance from GOJ, through the JSF in 
the printed materials, for example, 
handouts, brochures, banners, etc. to be 
used and distributed in workshop and 
seminars.  
 

Newsletter: Short articles regarding 
these activities may also be incorporated in 
the Resident Mission Newsletter. Site visits 
by GOJ/JSF authorities to specific TA 
projects may also be featured (see 
http://cofinancing.asiandevbank.org/). 
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Box 5: Rural Infrastructure for Sustainable Livelihood Improvement  
in the Central Region Project, Viet Nam 

  

 
 
 
Agreement Signed for Grant to Develop Rural Infrastructure in Viet 
Nam’s Deprived Central Region (4440-VIE) 
 

HANOI, VIET NAM – ADB and the Government of Viet Nam today signed an 
agreement for a project preparatory technical assistance grant of US$800,000 to develop a 
rural infrastructure project to improve livelihoods in remote deprived areas of the country’s 
Central Region. 

 
The grant, approved on 19 November 2004, is from ADB’s Japan Special Fund, 

financed by the Government of Japan. 
 
Signing on behalf of ADB at the ceremony, held this morning at the State Bank of 

Viet Nam, was Bradford Philips, Country Director, Viet Nam Resident Mission. Tran Minh 
Tuan, Deputy Governor of the State Bank of Viet Nam, and Pham Hong Giang, Vice Minister 
of Agriculture and Rural Development, signed on behalf of the Government. Also present at 
the signing ceremony was Mr. Yasukata Fukahori, First Secretary and Head of Economic 
Section, from the Japanese Embassy. 

VIET NAM RESIDENT MISSION, ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NewsRelease 
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Box 6: Capacity Building of Developing Member Countries on Selected World Trade 
Organization and Doha Development Agenda Issues Project, Regional 

 

 
 

High-level meeting: WTO key Doha Round issues Osaka 
The meeting aims to monitor the developments of the ongoing Doha 
Development Agenda, evaluate implications to DMCs of the Hong Kong 
Ministerial Meeting in December and enable DMCs to apply policy options 
learned. Senior trade officials from 27 DMCs will attend. Chief Economist 
Ifzal Ali will give the opening remarks. Teruo Ujiie, 5904 
 

The high-level meeting on World Trade Organization (WTO) key Doha Round 
issues—the first activity under 6220-RETA approved on 21 December 2004: Capacity 
Building of Selected Developing Member Countries on WTO and Doha Development 
Agenda Issues, $400,000 grant from Japan Special Fund, funded by the Government of 
Japan—was held in Osaka, Japan.  
 

Among the resource persons were former US Trade Representative Carla Hills, Osaka 
Governor Fusae Ohta, and Chief Economist Ifzal Ali. Senior trade officials who attended the 
meeting included Azerbaijan Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs Mamed Kuliyev; Indian 
Undersecretary of the Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Ram Mohan; 
Nepal Joint Secretary, Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Supplies, Naindra Prasad 
Upadhaya; and Pakistan Joint Secretary for WTO, Ministry of Commerce, Qasim Mohammad 
Niaz.

 

Today’s  
Event 
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Box 7: Association of Credit Rating Agencies in Asia (ACRAA) 
Best Practices Dialogue 

 
The second best-practices dialogue was organized under 6191-RETA (Capacity 

Building of Selected Credit Rating Agencies in Asia, Phase III) approved on 11 October 2004 
and funded with a $300,000 grant from the Japan Special Fund. The following topics were 
discussed: 
 

1. Role of Rating Agencies under Basel II: Issues in Harmonization and Mapping 
with Global Agencies 

2. Cross-Sector Consistency of Ratings: How to Manage and Measure 
3. “Through-the-Cycle” Rating: Striking a Balance Between Volatile Ratings and 

Insensitive/Inaccurate Ratings 
 

Among the dialogue participants in the photo are Pranab Kumar Choudhury, 
ACRAA vice chairman and managing director of ICRA Limited, India (row 1, first from right); 
Suresh Menon, ACRAA Training Committee chairman and executive director, Rating Agency 
Malaysia Berhad (row 3, fourth from left); Rajagopalan Ravimohan, ACRAA Best Practices 
Dialogue chairman, and managing director and chief executive officer, CRISIL Limited, India 
(row 3, third from right); and Santiago F. Dumlao Jr. (row 2, seventh from left), ACRAA 
secretary-general and president of Philippine Rating Services Corporation. 
 

ADB participants in the photo are Pradumna B. Rana, senior director, Office of 
Regional Economic Integration (row 2, fifth from left); and Jiro Tsunoda, senior financial 
sector specialist (coordinator of 6191-RETA) (row 3, fifth from left). 
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C. Evaluation of Technical Assistance 

Projects Financed by the Japan 

Special Fund 

 

13. In 2004, ADB’s Operations 

Evaluation Department (OED) prepared 

two technical assistance performance audit 

reports (TPARs) on five advisory technical 

assistance projects (ADTAs) for the 

institutional strengthening of the power 

sector in Viet Nam and six ADTAs for fiscal 

management and tax administration in 

India. Four of the power sector ADTAs in 

Viet Nam (2345-VIE, 2346-VIE, 2888-VIE, 

and 2897-VIE)1 were financed from the 

JSF, as were two of the ADTAs in India 

(2432-IND and 2943-IND).2 

                                                 
1  ADB. 1995. Technical Assistance to the Socialist 

Republic of Viet Nam for the Improvement of 
Financial and Accounting Systems of the Power 
Companies Project. Manila (TA 2345-VIE, 
$1,200,000, approved on 8 June 1995); ADB. 
1995. Technical Assistance to the Socialist 
Republic of Viet Nam for the Training in 
Distribution Planning Project, Manila (TA 2346-
VIE, $247,000, approved on 8 June 1995); ADB. 
1997. Technical Assistance to the Socialist 
Republic of Viet Nam for the Improvement of the 
Power Sector Regulatory Framework Project. 
Manila (TA 2888-VIE, $800,000, approved on 7 
October 1997); ADB. 1997. Technical 
Assistance to the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam 
for the Commercialization of Power Companies 
Project. Manila (TA 2897-VIE, $900,000, 
approved on 20 October 1997). 

 
2 ADB. 1995. Technical Assistance to India for the 

Capacity Building of Income Tax Administration 
Project. Manila (TA 2432-IND, $550,000, 
approved on 26 October 1995); ADB. 1997. 
Technical Assistance to India for the Support for 
the Government of Madhya Pradesh Public 
Finance Reform and Institutional Strengthening 

14. TA 2345-VIE was consistent with 

the policy direction for the power sector 

that the Government of Viet Nam and ADB 

had agreed upon at approval. However, it 

soon became apparent that Electricity of 

Viet Nam (EVN) was less committed to the 

policy changes than expected. While 

internal management systems have been 

strengthened somewhat, many 

recommendations of the TA have not been 

implemented. 

 

15. TA 2346-VIE was planned well and 

implemented successfully. Training 

participants surveyed said that the course 

was well designed and delivered. The use 

of real planning projects in the training 

was effective, and increased the useful 

output from the TA. However, the single 

software license provided to Power 

Company No.1 and Power Company Hanoi 

was probably inadequate for the effective 

follow-up of the concepts and techniques 

taught during the course. While the 

Operations Evaluation Mission (OEM) was 

told that the software was still in use, its 

effectiveness was unclear.  

 

16. At TA approval in October 1997, 

the draft electricity law was expected to be 

                                                                    
Project. Manila (TA 2943-IND, $780,000, 
approved on 15 December 1997). 
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submitted to the National Assembly in 

1998 and formally adopted in late 1998 or 

early 1999. Thus, TA 2888-VIE was 

considered timely because supporting 

regulations needed to be available at least 

in draft form when the National Assembly 

considered the law. However, the time 

frame of the TA was overly optimistic. This, 

combined with other factors, required a 

reduction in the scope of work. 

Furthermore, the consultant could not get 

the stakeholders to agree to establish an 

electricity regulatory framework. The TA 

only prepared a regulation on tariff reform 

that formed the basis for a similar draft 

regulation that was submitted to the 

National Assembly in support of the draft 

electricity law. 

 

17. TA 2897-VIE was formulated to 

assist EVN in implementing the 

recommendations of TA 2345-VIE. While 

the terms of reference (TOR) appear to 

have been designed carefully to take into 

account the regulatory constraints on the 

operation of EVN, the consultant did not 

appreciate this fully. Some 

recommendations were useful and were 

implemented, but other parts of the 

consultant’s report did not address the 

TOR directly and, as a result, could not be 

implemented. 

18. The four JSF-financed TAs 

evaluated in 2004 supported ADB’s policy 

dialogue with the Government of Viet Nam 

to strengthen and reform the power sector 

and thus minimize the risk that economic 

development would suffer from the 

absence of an adequate and cost-efficient 

electricity supply. The OEM rated the four 

TAs partly successful because the TOR (i) 

lacked clarity, (ii) had become less relevant 

by the time the TA started, and (iii) focused 

unduly on addressing constraints on EVN 

performance to the detriment of 

optimizing performance within the 

organizational structure.3 

 

19. Both TAs in India were rated 

successful. TA 2432-IND on income tax 

administration established training centers 

that have built capacity and, more 

generally, enabled more systematic 

computerization and networking among 

income tax offices all over the country. 

TA 2943-IND in Madhya Pradesh triggered 

the computerization of budget and 

treasury functions, while also preparing the 

tax department for the introduction of 

value-added tax.4 

                                                 
3 ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance Performance 

Audit Report on Advisory Technical Assistance 
for Power Sector Institutional Strengthening in 
Viet Nam. Manila. 

4 ADB. 2004. Technical Assistance Performance 
Audit Report on Selected Technical Assistance 
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20. TPARs are generally based on ADB-

wide priorities, and on relevant and 

appropriate lessons for the design and 

implementation of TAs in a particular 

sector or country. TPARs assess 

implementation performance, evaluate the 

achievement and impact of the TA, and 

draw lessons from the experience to 

improve TA activities. Post-evaluated 

projects, programs, and TA operations are 

classified as highly successful, successful, 

partly successful, or unsuccessful. ADB’s 

TPARs since 1995 are available online at 

OED’s Web site at 

http://www.adb.org/evaluation/reports.asp. 

 

D. Contributions from the 

Government of Japan 

 

21. In 2004, the Government of Japan 

provided ¥2.7 billion, all in regular 

contributions, as its 16th annual 

contribution to the JSF. Since March 1988, 

Japan has contributed to the JSF ¥101.9 

billion (about $876.9 million), comprising 

¥83.8 billion in regular contributions and 

¥18.1 billion in supplementary 

contributions. 

 

                                                                    
for Fiscal Management and Tax Administration 
in India. Manila. 

  

E. Balance of Contributions Available 

for New Commitments 

 

22. Of the total contribution to the JSF 

as of 31 December 2004, $808.4 million 

was used to fund TAs. As of 31 December 

2004, TAs worth $27.4 million had been 

approved by both the Government of 

Japan and ADB, but had not yet taken 

effect, and other TAs worth $3.6 million 

had been approved by the Government of 

Japan and were being processed by ADB. 

At the end of 2004, the uncommitted 

balance available for new commitments 

was $118.2 million. 

 

F. Review of Activities 

 

1. Total Approvals for the Year and 

Cumulative Totals 

 

23. In 2004, the JSF provided about 

$40.0 million for 71 country-specific and 

regional TAs (Appendix 2), compared with 

$36.9 million in 2003. The 2004 JSF total 

represented about 20% of ADB’s TA 

program that year. From 1988 to the end 

of 2004, $891.6 million was committed 

under the JSF to finance 1,473 TAs 

(Appendix 3). 
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2. Total Approvals by Country 

 

24. In 2004, the JSF provided $32.3 

million to finance 56 new country-specific 

TAs in 24 countries. Since its 

establishment, the JSF has supported 34 

countries (Appendix 4). 

 

3. Nature and Type of Technical 

Assistance Projects Supported 

 

25. In support of ADB’s goal of 

reducing poverty in the region, the JSF has 

made untied funds available for advisory, 

project preparatory, and regional TAs. 

 

26. In 2004, $14.6 million went to 28 

advisory TAs, bringing the total since 1988 

to $411.9 million for 671 advisory TAs. 

 

27. The JSF also provided $17.7 million 

for 28 project preparatory TAs in 2004, for 

a total of $374.0 million for 618 project 

preparatory TAs since 1988. 

 

28. Fifteen regional TAs received $7.8 

million from the JSF in 2004. From 1988 to 

2004, $105.4 million was approved for 

184 regional TAs. 

 

            4. Approvals by Sector   
  

 29. The JSF supports a wide range of 

sectors and subsectors (Appendix 5). In 

2004, the agriculture and natural resources 

sector (16.1 % of total funding with 12 

grants worth $6.4 million) and the water 

supply, sanitation, and waste management 

infrastructure sector (15.5 % of total 

funding with 10 grants worth $6.2 million) 

received the most support. 

 

G. Financial Statements 

 

30. Since 1997, explanatory notes to 

the JSF financial statements have been 

included in ADB’s annual reports to show 

the actual and realistic JSF balances that 

are uncommitted to date and are available 

for the financing of proposed new TAs 

(Appendix 6). 

 

H. Home Page  

 

31. This report, as well as other current 

data, is available through the JSF Web site 

(http://www.adb.org/jsf). The Japanese 

translation will be available through the 

Web site of ADB’s Japanese Representative 

Office (http://www.adb.org/JRO/). 
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THE 63 MEMBERS OF THE ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 
 

Table A1.1: Members from the Region 
 
Country 

 
Year of  

Membership 

 
Country 
 

 
Year of 

Membership 
 
Afghanistana  

 
1966 

  
Myanmara  

 
1973 

Australia  1966  Naurua  1991 
Azerbaijana  1999  Nepala  1966 
Bangladesha  1973  New Zealand  1966 
Bhutana 1982  Pakistana  1966 
Cambodiaa 1966  Palaua  2003 
People’s Republic of Chinaa 1986  Papua New Guineaa 1971 
Cook Islandsa  1976  Philippinesa  1966 
Fiji Islandsa  1970  Samoaa  1966 
Hong Kong, Chinaa 1969  Singaporea  1966 
Indiaa   1966  Solomon Islandsa  1973 
Indonesiaa  1966  Sri Lankaa  1966 
Japan   1966  Taipei,Chinaa  1966 
Kazakhstana  1994  Tajikistana  1998 
Kiribatia  1974  Thailanda  1966 
Republic of Koreaa 1966  Timor-Lestea 2002 
Kyrgyz Republica 1994  Tongaa 1972 
Lao People’s Democratic 

Republica 
1966  Turkmenistana 2000 

Malaysiaa 1966  Tuvalua 1993 
Maldives a  1978  Uzbekistana 1995 
Marshall Islandsa  1990  Vanuatua 1981 
Federated States of 

Micronesiaa 
1990  Viet Nama 1966 

Mongoliaa  1991    
a Developing member country. 
 

Table A1.2: Members from Outside the Region 
 
Country 

 
Year of 

Membership 

 
Country 

 
Year of 

Membership 
 
Austria   

 
1966 

  
Netherlands  

 
1966 

Belgium  1966  Norway 1966 
Canada  1966  Portugal  2002 
Denmark  1966  Spain   1986 
Finland  1966  Sweden  1966 
France   1970  Switzerland  1967 
Germany  1966  Turkey   1991 
Italy  1966  United Kingdom 1966 
Luxembourg  2003  United States  1966 
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Azerbaijan
Developing Collateral 
Framework and 
Microfinance 
Regulations

17-Dec-04

800.0

AD Finance

Create an effective collateral and debt 
enforcement framework, and improve the 
regulatory and supervisory framework for 
microfinance institutions.

4491 AZE-

Social Infrastructure 
for Internally Displaced 
Persons and Vulnerable 
Population

14-Dec-04

500.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Increase access to affordable social 
infrastructure services for internally displaced 
persons and other vulnerable groups in 
selected towns, and strengthen capacity of 
government and community groups to 
identify priority infrastructure needs and 
provide services to vulnerable groups in 
selected towns.

4478 AZE-

Institutional 
Strengthening of the 
Water Supply and 
Sanitation Sector in 
Secondary Towns*

07-Dec-04

500.0

AD Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Develop new water supply and sanitation 
utility managers and operators within the 
context of an effective legal, regulatory, 
administrative, and institutional framework.

4465 AZE-

Bangladesh
Secondary Towns 
Water Supply and 
Sanitation

23-Dec-04

800.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 

Improve living conditions in the selected 
secondary towns (100,000–400,000 
population) by improving water quality and 
access, and ensuring adequate disposal and 
treatment of sewage.

4535 BAN-

Secondary Education 
Sector Improvement 
Project II

23-Dec-04

600.0

PP Education

Establish a framework for more relevant 
secondary education in terms of efficiency, 
quality, and equity.

4532 BAN-
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Promoting Private 
Sector Participation in 
the Energy Sector

23-Dec-04

500.0

AD Energy

Remove or reduce constraints to gas sector 
development through policy reform, 
institutional restructuring, and priority 
investments to facilitate private sector 
participation.

4528 BAN-

Second Rural 
Infrastructure 
Improvement

20-Dec-04

400.0

PP Agriculture and natural 
resources

Improve rural infrastructure through a 
participatory approach, and enhance local 
governance to improve the management of 
rural infrastructure.

4516 BAN-

Chittagong Port 
Efficiency 
Improvement*

20-Dec-04

700.0

AD Transport and 
communications

Identify and design mechanisms to promote 
the development of modern logistic chains 
within the Dhaka–Chittagong corridor 
involving transport, information flows, and 
logistics terminals; and assist in the 
implementation of the port efficiency 
improvement plan.

4506 BAN-

Power Sector 
Development Program 
II

23-Aug-04

840.0

PP Energy

Reform further the power sector through 
financially restructuring of two major 
companies (Bangladesh Power Development 
Board and Dhaka Electric Supply Authority) 
and long-term sustainability of the sector 
without the Government’s support, and 
improve customer service and quality of 
supply.

4379 BAN-

Bhutan
Urban Infrastructure 
Development

23-Dec-04

600.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Improve the urban infrastructure and 
services in selected Thimphu priority local 
action areas, Phuentsholing extended areas, 
and regional centers; and introduce effective 
and sustainable management of urban 
services.

4533 BHU-
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Cambodia
Harmonizing Loan 
Project Implementation 
Procedures

25-Feb-04

600.0

AD Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Rationalize decentralized financial 
procedures in operation, standardize bid 
documents for national competitive bidding 
for procurement of goods and civil works, 
and improve staff capacity in project 
management and project financial 
management particularly at the local level.

4316 CAM-

China, People's Republic of
Support for 
Environmental 
Legislation

23-Dec-04

400.0

AD Energy

Develop legal and institutional framework 
governing nature reserve zones, protected 
areas and sustainable soils.

4553 PRC-

National Food Safety 
Regulatory and 
Strategic Framework

28-May-04

400.0

AD Health, nutrition, and 
social protection

Formulate and build consensus on a 
comprehensive framework covering food 
safety policies, laws and regulations, and 
standards, as well as cross-agency 
coordination to ensure their effective 
implementation.

4342 PRC-

Fiji Islands
Fourth Road 
Upgrading (Sector)

23-Dec-04

600.0

PP Transport and 
communications

Upgrade sections of priority national roads 
based on the National Transport Sector Plan, 
improve road safety, and create institutional 
arrangements and funding for sustainable 
management of the
road subsector.

4540 FIJ-

India
State-Level Pension 
Reforms

23-Dec-04

750.0

AD Finance

Assist selected state governments in the 
measurement and reform of its civil service 
pensions.

4548 IND-
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Capacity Building for 
Kerala Sustainable 
Urban Development

20-Dec-04

500.0

AD Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 

Enhance capability of the project 
management office, Kerala urban 
infrastructure company, and project 
implementing units to implement the Project 
as planned.

4518 IND-

Indonesia
Strengthening the 
National Secretariat for 
Regional Cooperation

23-Dec-04

296.5

AD Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Provide expert assistance with clarifying and 
strengthening the Government of 
Indonesia’s national coordinating 
mechanism for regional and subregional 
coordination, with emphasis on building 
capacity and developing procedures for 
effective, timely project implementation.

4555 INO-

Sustaining 
Decentralization and 
Local Governance 
Reforms

23-Dec-04

900.0

AD Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Support the central Government in 
formulating (i) a coherent regulatory 
framework to implement fiscal 
decentralization and disseminating the 
framework on public expenditure and 
financial management at the local 
government level, and (ii) the National 
Action Plan for Decentralization to provide 
policy directions to the Government over the 
medium term.

4543 INO-

Urban Air Quality 
Improvement Sector 
Development Program

20-Jul-04

700.0

PP Multisector

Help prepare the Program to strengthen 
enforcement strategies and the framework 
of urban air quality management in 
Indonesia.

4361 INO-

Gas Transportation 
Project through Public-
Private Partnership

20-Jul-04

910.0

PP Energy

Review energy resources allocation/energy 
mix policy, and optimize gas transportation 
scheme for Java; and prepare and 
implement the gas transportation project.

4360 INO-



TA No./ TA Title/
ADB Approval
Grant ($'000)/

Type Sector Purpose

JAPAN SPECIAL FUND GRANTS IN 2004

20 Appendix 2

Kazakhstan
Institutional 
Strengthening of the 
Committee of Water 
Resources

15-Dec-04

150.0

AD Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

(i) Analyze the current structural and 
institutional set up of the Committee of 
Water Resources (CWR) in relation to the 
sector program for drinking water; (ii) review 
current policies on water tariff setting, 
sector planning, and budgeting; (iii) propose 
measures to strengthen CWR’s capacity to 
oversee water sector reforms; (iv) propose 
capacity building programs tailored to the 
needs of CWR staff at the central and 
regional levels; (v) design an implementation 
plan for capacity building, including training 
programs and provision of equipment as 
needed; (vi) propose possible strategies 
aimed to increase the effectiveness of inter-
agency cooperation; and (vii) propose 
appropriate measures to improve planning, 
budgeting, and financial management.

4484 KAZ-

Financial Sector 
Governance

08-Nov-04

800.0

AD Finance

Develop an inflation targeting monetary 
policy regime; and improve oversight and 
management of financial assets managed by 
National Bank of Kazakhstan, including 
official reserves and the National Fund.

4431 KAZ-

Kyrgyz Republic
Capacity Building and 
Institutional 
Strengthening for the 
Customs 
Modernization and 
Infrastructure 
Development*

26-Nov-04

500.0

AD Industry and trade

Help ensure that (i) customs modernization 
through automation and border-post 
infrastructure development is supported by 
the institutional structure and the business 
processes of the customs services 
departments, and (ii) the unified automated 
information system and border-post 
infrastructure development are carried out 
with sound supervision and quality 
assurance.

4450 KGZ-
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Awareness and 
Prevention of 
HIV/AIDS, Sexually 
Transmitted Infections, 
and Human 
Trafficking*

23-Nov-04

500.0

AD Health, nutrition, and 
social protection

Raise public awareness and address the risk 
of human immunodeficiency virus/acquired 
immunodeficiency syndrome (HIV/AIDS) and 
sexually transmitted infections, transmission, 
and human trafficking among construction 
workers, sex workers, local communities, 
truck drivers, border officers, and other road 
users.

4445 KGZ-

Improving Road 
Maintenance and 
Strengthening the 
Transport Corridor 
Management 
Department*

23-Nov-04

800.0

AD Transport and 
communications

Assist in establishing and operating the 
management department of the 
Osh–SaryTash–Irkeshtam transport corridor.

4444 KGZ-

Second Agriculture 
Area Development

19-Nov-04

800.0

PP Agriculture and natural 
resources

Increase the productivity and profitability of 
farms and enterprises in the Batken, Jalal 
Abad, and Osh regions in the southern part 
of the Kyrgyz Republic.

4438 KGZ-

Lao People's Democratic Republic
Private Sector 
Development Program

23-Dec-04

700.0

PP Industry and trade

Prepare the Private Sector Development 
Program by formulating a focused and 
sequenced policy reform framework to 
establish the foundation for private sector 
development.

4526 LAO-

Basic Education 
Development

17-Dec-04

600.0

PP Education

Strengthen basic education service delivery 
in disadvantaged areas through provisions 
of facilities and human resources, and 
institutional development.

4499 LAO-
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Micronesia, Federated States of
Strengthening Public 
Sector Audit Function

03-Dec-04

300.0

AD Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Enhance the effectiveness and quality of 
audit and administrative processes of audit 
offices.

4464 FSM-

Mongolia
Third Education 
Development

16-Dec-04

500.0

PP Education

Improve access to and quality of education 
services for children, and increase availability 
of skills training opportunities for youth and 
adults.

4487 MON-

Agriculture Sector 
Strategy Study

12-Jul-04

350.0

AD Agriculture and natural 
resources

Develop a comprehensive sector strategy 
and program of investments, TAs, and policy 
reforms.

4359 MON-

Nepal
Rural Electrification 
and Renewable Energy

17-Dec-04

600.0

PP Energy

Assist in accelerating rural electrification.4493 NEP-

Capacity Building in 
Rural Infrastructure 
Institutions*

24-Sep-04

400.0

AD Agriculture and natural 
resources

Develop national policies and strategies that 
previous ADB TA has supported, and in 
particular further decentralization; and 
promote the draft national policy and 
strategy on local infrastructure development 
by strengthening Department of Local 
Infrastructure Development and Agricultural 
Roads' capacity and effectiveness, and the 
development of improved procedures and 
practices for different aspects of rural 
infrastructure management, particularly 
road maintenance.

4397 NEP-
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Transport Connectivity 
Sector

04-Jun-04

600.0

PP Transport and 
communications

Improve poor people’s access to goods, 
markets, and basic services through efficient 
road transport and improved connectivity to 
rural areas.

4347 NEP-

Second Rural 
Infrastructure 
Development 
(Supplementary)

23-Dec-04

30.0

PP Agriculture and natural 
resources

Achieve sustainable increased access to 
economic and social services, and enhanced 
social and financial capital for people in the 
project area, particularly poor and 
disadvantaged groups.

3625 NEP-

Pakistan
Sindh Basic Urban 
Services

23-Dec-04

795.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Assist the Government in preparing a project 
to improve basic urban infrastructure and 
services in a participatory manner in selected 
low-income communities in urban centers in 
Sindh.

4534 PAK-

Sindh Coastal and 
Inland Community 
Development

23-Dec-04

650.0

PP Agriculture and natural 
resources

Help the Government prepare the Sindh 
Coastal and Inland Community Development 
Project, which will (i) improve the condition 
of coastal and marine fisheries and related 
resources by improved management of 
coastal resources and ecosystems, and 
minimizing threats to their ecological 
integrity; and (ii) increase incomes of coastal 
communities through improved coastal 
resources and provision of supplementary 
and/or alternative livelihood opportunities.

4525 PAK-

Renewable Energy 
Development

05-Nov-04

550.0

PP Energy

Develop indigenous sources of nonpolluting 
and renewable sources of energy to help 
meet Pakistan’s power shortage and 
improve the quality and reliability of the 
power system, especially in rural areas.

4425 PAK-
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Transport Policy 
Support

30-Sep-04

290.0

AD Transport and 
communications

Enable the Government to formulate a 
comprehensive national transport policy that 
represents the interest of all subsectors and 
stakeholders, elicited through a consultative 
process.

4400 PAK-

Philippines
Institutional 
Strengthening of 
Energy Regulatory 
Commission and 
Privatization of 
National Power 
Corporation

28-Dec-04

1,200.0

AD Energy

Gain investors confidence by enhancing 
Energy Regulatory Commission's efficiency 
and independence, and provide the 
necessary financial and technical advice to 
Power Sector Assets and Liabilities 
Management Corporation for the 
privatization of National Power Corporation.

4557 PHI-

Strengthening Small 
and Medium-Sized 
Enterprise Credit 
Management Systems

23-Dec-04

500.0

AD Industry and trade

Expand and improve the quality of lending 
operations of Small Business Guarantee and 
Finance Corporation while lowering risk, and 
mainstreaming market acceptance of 
nontraditional collateral.

4523 PHI-

Intermodal Transport 
Development

31-May-04

1,000.0

PP Transport and 
communications

Improve transport accessibility, efficiency, 
and sustainability in Mindanao and Palawan, 
with a focus on high poverty areas.

4344 PHI-

Samoa
Strengthening State-
Owned Enterprise 
Corporate Governance

20-Dec-04

400.0

AD Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Create a conducive environment for sound 
corporate governance of 24 state-owned 
enterprises.

4513 SAM-
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Sri Lanka
Greater Colombo 
Wastewater

23-Dec-04

850.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Improve asset and management of the 
greater Colombo sewerage system, and 
develop institutional capacity to improve 
financial and asset management in the 
sector; implement cost recovery in the 
sewerage sector; and improve access to 
appropriate sanitation by underserved areas 
within the sewered area and areas outside 
the sewered areas.

4531 SRI-

Tajikistan
Support for 
Monitoring Policy 
Reforms and 
Improving Farm and 
Water Management*

10-Dec-04

500.0

AD Agriculture and natural 
resources

Monitor progress in implementing policy in 
the project areas; promote competitive 
providers of farm inputs, technical advice, 
credit, and marketing of produce in the 
project areas; and assist the Government in 
establishing a water users’ association 
support unit within the Ministry of Water 
Resources and Land Reclamation.

4472 TAJ-

Capacity Building and 
Institutional 
Strengthening for the 
Customs 
Modernization and 
Infrastructure 
Development*

26-Nov-04

500.0

AD Industry and trade

Help ensure that (i) customs modernization 
through automation and border-post 
infrastructure development is supported by 
the institutional structure and the business 
processes of the Customs Services 
Departments, and (ii) the Unified Automated 
Information System and border-post 
infrastructure development are carried out 
with sound supervision and quality 
assurance.

4451 TAJ-

Dushanbe-Kyrgyz 
Border Road 
Rehabilitation (Phase II)

31-Aug-04

500.0

PP Transport and 
communications

Improve transport efficiency through 
reduction of transport costs to road users 
and improved access to markets and social 
services for people in the project area.

4382 TAJ-
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Timor-Leste, Democratic Republic of
Strengthening 
Microfinance 
Operations

20-Dec-04

500.0

AD Finance

Help Microfinance Institution of Timor-Leste 
increase access to microfinance services for 
poor people, in particular women, become 
self-sufficient; and divest its shares for whole 
or partial privatization.

4509 TIM-

Tonga
Youth Microenterprise 
Development

16-Dec-04

250.0

AD Industry and trade

Design a countrywide program for the 
development of youth microenterprises.

4488 TON-

Tuvalu
Education Sector 
Reform and 
Development

08-Dec-04

300.0

PP Education

Help the Government prepare and deliver 
strategies to develop the quality, efficiency, 
and management capacity of the education 
sector.

4466 TUV-

Uzbekistan
Capacity Building for 
Woman and Child 
Health Development*

23-Sep-04

300.0

AD Health, nutrition, and 
social protection

(i) Strengthen Ministry of Health’s capacity 
to deal with health issues by improving its 
understanding of provider and consumer 
behaviors, and the causes of morbidity and 
mortality; (ii) help the Government optimize 
and rationalize services for woman and child 
health care, including human resource 
planning; and (iii) increase the effectiveness 
and delivery of services through quality 
monitoring and improvements.

4396 UZB-

Kashkadarya and Navoi 
Rural Water Supply

10-Aug-04

575.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 

Improve water supply and sanitation services 
and strengthen the delivery and 
management capabilities of local 
governments and water users associations.

4372 UZB-
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Viet Nam
HIV/AIDS Prevention 
Among Youth

23-Dec-04

400.0

PP Health, nutrition, and 
social protection

Reduce HIV-infection risk among youth aged 
15–24 in particular girls, unemployed youth, 
youth in exposed professions through 
behavioral change programs.

4542 VIE-

Central Region Small 
and Medium Towns 
Development

15-Dec-04

950.0

PP Water supply, 
sanitation, and waste 
management

Prepare a pre-investment study and project 
design for small and medium towns in Viet 
Nam’s southern Central Region.

4485 VIE-

Northern Power 
Transmission 
Expansion Sector

10-Dec-04

500.0

PP Energy

Expand and strengthen northern electricity 
network; improve performance of Electricity 
of Viet Nam and the power sector; and 
expand and improve quality of electricity 
services to all consumers, including the poor.

4470 VIE-

Rural Infrastructure for 
Sustainable Livelihood 
Improvement in the 
Central Region

19-Nov-04

800.0

PP Agriculture and natural 
resources

Provide essential rural infrastructure to 
improve the livelihoods of rural population 
and to increase economic opportunities in 
the target poor areas.

4440 VIE-
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Regional
Facilitating Cross-
Border Trade and 
Investment in the 
Greater Mekong 
Subregion

23-Dec-04

600.0

REG Industry and trade

Promote the competitiveness of Greater 
Mekong Subregion (GMS) enterprises by (i) 
supporting a revitalized organizational 
model of the GMS Business Forum to 
facilitate a mainstreamed, institutionalized, 
and systematic policy dialogue between 
governments and the private sector on ways 
to promote trade and investment in the 
GMS; (ii) undertaking a study of the trade 
logistics network along selected economic 
corridors for review by the GMS Business 
Forum and the GMS working groups; and 
(iii) strengthening the development of 
sustainable, pro-business services in the 
GMS Business Forum.

6228 REG-

Coordinating the 
Greater Mekong 
Subregion: North-
South Economic 
Corridor Bridge

23-Dec-04

415.0

REG Transport and 
communications

Prepare the bridge construction project; and 
reduce transport cost and increase efficiency 
of moving people and goods by bridge 
construction.

6227 REG-

Developing and 
Implementing the 
Pacific Plan for 
Strengthening 
Regional Cooperation 
and Integration

23-Dec-04

500.0

REG Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Improve the capacity of Pacific island 
countries and members of the Pacific Plan 
Taskforce to assess and take successful 
action on enhancing regional cooperation 
and integration in the Pacific.

6226 REG-
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South Asia Subregional 
Economic Cooperation 
Human Resource 
Development and 
Capacity Building in 
the Tourism Sector

23-Dec-04

600.0

REG Agriculture and natural 
resources

Support human resource development in the 
tourism sectors in Bangladesh, Bhutan, 
India, and Nepal (BBIN); and support 
networking of tourism institutions in BBIN.

6225 REG-

Capacity Building of 
Developing Member 
Countries on Selected 
World Trade 
Organization and 
Doha Development 
Agenda Issues

21-Dec-04

400.0

REG Industry and trade

Increase awareness and expertise of senior 
officials responsible for World Trade 
Organization and Doha Round issues.

6220 REG-

Strengthening Capacity 
and Regional 
Cooperation in 
Advanced Agricultural 
Science and 
Technology in the 
Greater Mekong 
Subregion

17-Dec-04

1,000.0

REG Agriculture and natural 
resources

Strengthen the capacity for the safe use of 
advanced agricultural science and 
technology and related food safety in GMS.

6214 REG-

Greater Mekong 
Subregion Biodiversity 
Conservation Corridors 
Initiative

17-Dec-04

400.0

REG Agriculture and natural 
resources

Prepare a GMS biodiversity conservation 
corridors development strategic framework 
(2005–2014) and action plan (2005–2008).

6213 REG-
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Southeast Asia 
Workers' Remittance 
Study

17-Dec-04

500.0

REG Finance

Identify factors in the policy, regulatory, and 
institutional framework that have an impact 
on remittance flows; and propose country 
and regional action plans to encourage 
remittance fund flow and its channeling 
through formal means.

6212 REG-

Pacific Regional Social 
Protection Systems 
Assessment

14-Dec-04

500.0

REG Multisector

Improve Pacific governments' capacity to 
develop social protection policies and 
programs for the poor and vulnerable.

6207 REG-

Diagnostic Studies for 
Secured Transactions 
Reforms in the Pacific 
Region

03-Dec-04

870.0

REG Finance

Design and agree with governments on a 
sound secured transaction reform package 
in each participating Pacific developing 
member country and prepare them for 
implementation with the ultimate goal of 
improving the access of the private sector to 
affordable credit.

6202 REG-

Capacity Building for 
Promoting Sustainable 
Development in the 
Greater Mekong 
Subregion

12-Nov-04

500.0

REG Agriculture and natural 
resources

Build capacity of GMS countries to integrate 
social, economic, and environmental 
objectives into existing planning mechanisms 
for sustainable development on both 
national and subregional levels.

6198 REG-

Greater Mekong 
Subregion Regional 
Communicable 
Diseases Control

20-Oct-04

600.0

REG Health, nutrition, and 
social protection

Improve coordination of communicable 
diseases control in the region; ensure timely 
and appropriate control of epidemics likely 
to have major impact on public health and 
the economy; reverse the spread of 
HIV/AIDS, tuberculosis, and sexually 
transmitted diseases in high-risk 
populations; and reduce the burden of 
endemic infectious diseases in border areas.

6194 REG-
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Capacity Building of 
Selected Credit Rating 
Agencies in Asia Phase 
III

11-Oct-04

300.0

REG Finance

Strengthen the institutional and technical 
capacities of Asian domestic credit rating 
agencies in fostering the development of 
capital markets.

6191 REG-

Fourteenth Tax 
Conference

09-Aug-04

150.0

REG Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Offer a capacity building opportunity 
through the exchange of views, experiences, 
and new knowledge in international taxation 
for policy design and administration; and 
provide a forum that will encourage mutual 
understanding and cooperation among tax 
policymakers and senior officials from DMCs 
of the region, in particular, on emerging 
issues of taxation.

6183 REG-

Strengthening and 
Collection of 
Purchasing Power 
Parity Data in Selected 
Developing Member 
Countries

30-Jul-04

450.0

REG Law, economic 
management, and 
public policy

Improve data collection methodologies and 
capacity for data collection of participating 
DMCs to better reflect the realities of the 
poor in terms of the products and outlets of 
consumption.

6088 REG-

Total Grants 40,021.5

ADB = Asian Development Bank, AD = advisory, GOJ = Government of Japan,
PP = project preparatory, REG = regional, TA = technical assistance. 
*Attached to a loan project. 
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Bangladesh

Rural Infrastructure 
Improvement

19 Sep 20013723 440.0PP 16.7BAN-

Urban Governance and 
Infrastructure Improvement

27 Jul 20013690 350.0PP 14.2BAN-

Jamuna–Meghna River 
Erosion Mitigation

28 May 20013659 1,000.0PP 0.9BAN-

Second Nonformal Education 5 Jul 20003465 600.0PP 38.9BAN-

Second Small-Scale Water 
Resources Development 
Sector

22 Dec 19993358 400.0PP 58.5BAN-

Chittagong Hill Tracts Region 
Development Plan

8 Dec 19993328 1,000.0AD 3.4BAN-

Kalni–Kushiyara River 
Management

29 Sep 19993267 500.0PP 4.0BAN-

Northwest Agriculture 
Development

26 Jul 19993230 500.0PP 34.5BAN-

Support for the Energy 
Regulatory Authority

16 Dec 19983129 900.0AD 498.9BAN-

Land Administration Reform 14 Aug 19983054 880.0PP 97.6BAN-

Primary School Performance 
Monitoring

26 Nov 19972921 500.0AD 37.3BAN-

Insurance Industry and 
Pension and Provident Fund 
Reforms

20 Nov 19972915 500.0AD 17.0BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Privatization Board

20 Nov 19972914 440.0AD 38.0BAN-

Capacity Building of 
Securities Exchange 
Commission and Stock 
Exchanges

20 Nov 19972913 1,100.0AD 9.4BAN-

Secondary Education Sector 
Development

4 Nov 19972908 740.0PP 145.4BAN-



TA No. TA Title
TA 
Type

JSF Grant
($'000)

ADB 
Approval

Undisbursed
($'000)

Table A3.1: Financially Closed Technical Assistance Projects (as of 31 December 2004)

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT ON JAPAN SPECIAL FUND GRANTS, 1988–2004

Appendix 3 33

Strengthening the 
Management Capacity of the 
City Corporation Health 
Departments

12 Sep 19972864 500.0AD 35.1BAN-

Ports Upgrading 10 Sep 19972863 290.0PP 34.7BAN-

Third Urban Development 24 Jun 19972816 600.0PP 29.0BAN-

Fourth Natural Gas 
Development

23 May 19972801 600.0PP 2.8BAN-

Biodiversity Conservation in 
the Sunderbans Forests

19 Dec 19962724 500.0PP 10.0BAN-

Third Road Improvement 5 Nov 19962678 250.0PP 0.0BAN-

Third Rural Infrastructure 
Development

27 Mar 19962550 500.0PP 0.3BAN-

Third Livestock Development 17 Oct 19952426 598.0PP 31.4BAN-

Urban Primary Health Care 3 Oct 19952413 450.0PP 40.0BAN-

Urban Poverty Reduction 28 Sep 19952410 600.0PP 20.9BAN-

Forestry Sector 1 Jun 19952339 450.0PP 8.1BAN-

Modernization of Land 
Management

7 Mar 19952307 600.0AD 0.6BAN-

Rural Livelihood 24 Jan 19952293 287.0PP 2.0BAN-

Mongla Port Area 
Development

19 Aug 19942141 600.0PP 5.0BAN-

Vocational Training 5 Aug 19942130 400.0PP 8.1BAN-

Regulatory Framework for 
Import of Hazardous and 
Toxic Materials

26 Apr 19942086 520.0AD 15.9BAN-

Foodgrain Management 
Operations

3 Jan 19942052 840.0AD 466.4BAN-

Nonformal Education 14 Dec 19932013 250.0PP 55.6BAN-

Khulna–Jessore Drainage 
Rehabilitation*

14 Dec 19932012 920.0AD 53.5BAN-
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Financial Management 
Upgrade of Bangladesh 
Power Development Board 
and Dhaka Electric Supply 
Authority

26 Nov 19932004 1,000.0AD 90.0BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Pourashavas for Water 
Supply and Sanitation 
Services*

16 Nov 19931980 450.0AD 74.1BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Department of Public Health 
Engineering*

16 Nov 19931979 350.0AD 30.1BAN-

Command Area Development 29 Dec 19921830 441.0PP 61.4BAN-

Organizational Reform of the 
Bangladesh Railway

22 Dec 19921819 1,500.0AD 10.2BAN-

Small-Scale Water Resources 
Development

23 Dec 19921817 500.0PP 0.1BAN-

Strengthening Local 
Government Engineering 
Department's Management 
Capability*

21 Dec 19921809 740.0AD 8.7BAN-

Industrial Pollution Control 
Management

22 Oct 19921769 600.0PP 29.9BAN-

Second Water Supply and 
Sanitation

31 Mar 19921684 495.0PP 0.1BAN-

Operation and Maintenance 
Strengthening of the Second 
Bhola Irrigation*

27 Feb 19921674 790.0AD 4.5BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Department of Agriculture 
Extension for Minor Irrigation 
Development*

21 Nov 19911610 388.0AD 105.1BAN-

Environmental Management 
Training

8 Nov 19911594 450.0AD 6.6BAN-

Secondary Education Sector 10 Sep 19911562 297.0PP 58.7BAN-
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Southwest Area Water 
Resources Management Study

20 Mar 19911498 2,150.0AD 2.1BAN-

Survey of Higher Secondary 
Educational Institutions

4 Mar 19911489 210.0AD 3.6BAN-

Secondary Towns 
Infrastructure Development II

18 Jan 19911466 600.0PP 0.4BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of Women's 
Affairs*

13 Dec 19901441 700.0AD 216.2BAN-

Secondary Towns Integrated 
Flood Protection

24 Oct 19901396 600.0PP 0.0BAN-

Forestry Master Plan 16 Aug 19901355 854.0AD 5.6BAN-

Open University 16 Nov 19891222 250.0PP 10.7BAN-

Second Coastal Embankment 
Rehabilitation 
(Supplementary)

9 Mar 19921205 192.0PP 55.8BAN-

Second Coastal Embankment 
Rehabilitation

14 Sep 19891205 408.0PP 0.0BAN-

Rural Training 29 May 19891159 230.0PP 63.5BAN-

Secondary Towns 
Infrastructure and Services 
Development*

12 Jan 19891105 350.0PP 0.2BAN-

National Environmental 
Monitoring and Pollution 
Control*

12 Jan 19891104 750.0AD 70.8BAN-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Housing and Settlement 
Directorate*

12 Jan 19891103 440.0AD 1.3BAN-

Summary for  Bangladesh (59 TA projects)
Total 35,340.0

Bhutan

Institutional Development of 
the Bhutan Development 
Finance Corporation

27 Aug 20023910 200.0AD 61.2BHU-
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Strengthening the Debt 
Management Capacity of the 
Department of Aid and Debt 
Management

4 Jul 20023893 116.0AD 19.9BHU-

Rural Electrification and 
Network Expansion

21 Dec 20013825 700.0PP 57.3BHU-

Institutional Development of 
the National Pension and 
Provident Fund Bureau

12 Dec 20013796 300.0AD 2.1BHU-

Institutional Development of 
the Department of 
Employment and Labor

7 Dec 20013790 200.0AD 20.2BHU-

Project Appraisal and 
Portfolio Management for 
Financial Institutions

19 Dec 20003596 400.0AD 82.9BHU-

Institutional Development of 
the National Technical 
Training Authority

27 Oct 20003525 300.0AD 55.4BHU-

Road Planning and 
Management Strengthening

20 Jul 20003470 954.0AD 109.1BHU-

Basic Skills Development 14 Dec 19993340 450.0PP 52.5BHU-

Corporatization of Division of 
Power*

25 Nov 19993307 600.0AD 2.3BHU-

Strengthening the Banking 
Supervision Function of the 
Royal Monetary Authority

30 Jun 19993212 600.0AD 19.2BHU-

Policy and Legal Framework 
for Power Sector 
Development

8 Dec 19983112 500.0AD 66.7BHU-

Upgrading the Royal 
Insurance Corporation of 
Bhutan, Restructuring the 
Government Employees 
Provident Fund and 
Introducing a Pension Scheme

7 Dec 19983111 500.0AD 78.6BHU-
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Road Transport Network 
Development

3 Dec 19983107 650.0PP 14.2BHU-

Capacity Building in the 
Urban Sector

2 Jun 19983022 500.0AD 4.8BHU-

Second Rural Electrification 19 Nov 19972912 600.0PP 49.5BHU-

Capacity Upgrading of 
Financial Sector 
Infrastructure and 
Entrepreneurship

23 Oct 19972902 500.0AD 99.3BHU-

Strengthening the Central 
Statistical Organization

9 Sep 19972860 400.0AD 78.9BHU-

Irrigation Program 
Strengthening

7 Mar 19972764 300.0AD 96.1BHU-

Urban Infrastructure 
Improvement 
(Supplementary)

14 Jul 19972666 100.0PP 32.4BHU-

Urban Infrastructure 
Improvement

17 Oct 19962666 400.0PP 0.0BHU-

Restructuring of the Unit 
Trust of Bhutan to a 
Commercial Bank

13 Feb 19962532 590.0AD 1.4BHU-

Strengthening Environmental 
Impact Assessment 
Capabilities and Preparation 
of Environmental Guidelines

13 Feb 19962531 350.0AD 20.1BHU-

Power System Development 29 Dec 19932043 245.0PP 13.3BHU-

Construction Management* 18 Nov 19931985 740.0AD 3.2BHU-

Development of a 
Maintenance Management 
System*

18 Nov 19931984 390.0AD 0.8BHU-

Irrigation Action Plan 22 Sep 19931956 350.0AD 21.5BHU-

Western Watershed 
Conservation and 
Management

27 Mar 19921680 300.0PP 36.7BHU-
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Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of National 
Budget and Accounts (Phase 
II)

20 Feb 19911487 600.0AD 15.2BHU-

Study on Promotion of 
Export-Oriented Industries

16 Nov 19891223 300.0AD 9.4BHU-

Summary for  Bhutan (29 TA projects)
Total 13,135.0

Cambodia

Northwest Irrigation Sector 31 Oct 20013758 1,200.0PP 4.6CAM-

Agriculture Sector 
Development Program

6 Aug 20013695 600.0PP 6.1CAM-

Transport Sector Strategy 27 Apr 20013651 850.0AD 4.1CAM-

Capacity Building for 
HIV/AIDS Prevention and 
Control

3 Oct 20003511 600.0AD 0.2CAM-

Rural Development 29 Aug 20003489 600.0PP 27.7CAM-

Education Sector 
Development Program

27 Jun 20003463 800.0PP 37.1CAM-

Building Capacity in Tourism 
Planning

14 Jun 20003454 586.0AD 64.4CAM-

Capacity Building in the 
Ministry of Water Resources 
and Meteorology

10 Nov 19993292 796.0AD 6.8CAM-

Strengthening the 
Maintenance Planning and 
Management Capabilities at 
Ministry of Public Works and 
Transport*

21 Sep 19993257 735.0AD 36.2CAM-

Sustainable Forest 
Management

31 Dec 19983152 980.0PP 11.1CAM-

Rural Credit and Savings 26 Jun 19972818 600.0PP 157.5CAM-

Enhancing Banking Skills 19 May 19972796 400.0AD 21.5CAM-
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Transport Network 
Improvement 
(Supplementary)

17 Mar 19982722 385.0PP 2.2CAM-

Transport Network 
Improvement

19 Dec 19962722 600.0PP 0.0CAM-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the State Secretariat of Civil 
Aviation

12 Dec 19962706 550.0AD 25.1CAM-

Integrated Urban 
Development

20 Nov 19962689 800.0PP 42.8CAM-

Stung Chinit Water Resource 
Development

25 Jun 19962592 800.0PP 27.6CAM-

Agriculture Policy Reform 
Support

20 Jun 19962591 1,500.0AD 34.5CAM-

Strengthening Capacity in 
the Trade and Industry 
Sectors

14 May 19962570 600.0AD 154.0CAM-

Managing Basic Health 
Services

8 May 19962567 500.0AD 2.2CAM-

Textbook Publishing Planning 
and Management

15 Apr 19962555 600.0AD 45.6CAM-

Capacity Building in 
Technical and Vocational 
Education and Training

27 Dec 19952516 980.0AD 219.0CAM-

Employment Promotion for 
Women

22 Dec 19952503 300.0PP 14.1CAM-

Strengthening Capacity in 
Development Planning

19 Dec 19952488 850.0AD 19.7CAM-

Developing a Planning 
Capability in the Ministry of 
Public Works and Transport

2 Oct 19952416 800.0AD 70.1CAM-

Urban Development Strategy 
Study

4 Jan 19952281 500.0AD 55.1CAM-
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Urban Water Supply and 
Sanitation

4 Jan 19952280 600.0PP 53.6CAM-

Power Sector Manpower 
Development and Training

15 Dec 19942243 500.0AD 149.7CAM-

Airports Development 3 Nov 19942197 500.0PP 120.4CAM-

Women in Development 20 Sep 19942157 546.0AD 0.3CAM-

Strengthening Environmental 
Impact Assessment 
Procedures and Capabilities

13 Apr 19942078 550.0AD 48.9CAM-

Project Implementation in 
the Transport and 
Agriculture Sectors*

26 Nov 19921794 4,200.0AD 16.0CAM-

Summary for  Cambodia (31 TA projects)
Total 25,408.0

China, People's Rep. of

Ningxia Roads Development 16 Nov 20013776 300.0PP 52.8PRC-

Optimizing Initiatives to 
Combat Desertification in 
Gansu Province

5 Jun 20013663 610.0AD 41.5PRC-

Western Yunnan Roads 
Development

20 Mar 20013642 770.0PP 0.6PRC-

Interregional Power 
Transmission Network 
Development Strategy

16 Nov 20003547 800.0AD 3.7PRC-

Southern Sichuan Roads 
Development

16 Nov 20003546 800.0PP 3.3PRC-

Development of Financing 
Policies and Mechanisms for 
Small and Medium-Sized 
Enterprises

10 Nov 20003534 700.0AD 0.0PRC-

Institutional Strengthening 
for China Development Bank

30 Oct 20003527 600.0AD 14.7PRC-

Hebei Province Wastewater 
Treatment

30 Aug 20003488 850.0PP 41.7PRC-
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Ganzhou–Longyan Railway 30 Aug 20003486 750.0PP 63.2PRC-

Ningxia-Shapotou Water 
Resources Development

31 Jul 20003474 930.0PP 6.0PRC-

Acid Rain Control and 
Environmental Improvement

27 Jun 20003462 964.0PP 19.7PRC-

Songhua River Flood, 
Wetland, and Biodiversity 
Management

27 Dec 19993376 1,215.0PP 25.6PRC-

Yunnan Comprehensive 
Agricultural Development 
and Biodiversity Conservation

23 Dec 19993372 982.0PP 136.6PRC-

Shen-Da Power Transmission 
and Grid Rehabilitation

17 Dec 19993346 700.0PP 1.2PRC-

Capacity Building in Traffic 
Safety, Planning, and 
Management

14 Dec 19993341 600.0AD 75.7PRC-

Capacity Building of the 
Capital Market's Regulatory 
System

24 Nov 19993304 1,000.0AD 85.7PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Cinda Asset Management 
Company

24 Nov 19993303 800.0AD 21.2PRC-

Capacity Building for the 
Insurance Sector Regulatory 
and Supervision System

23 Nov 19993302 700.0AD 70.3PRC-

Capacity Building in 
Ministerial Status 
Responsibilities in the State 
Environmental Protection 
Administration

8 Nov 19993290 810.0AD 63.3PRC-

Yellow River Flood 
Management Sector

22 Sep 19993259 930.0PP 46.6PRC-

Hefei–Xi'an Railway 3 Sep 19993251 665.0PP 69.5PRC-

Shanxi and Shaanxi Roads 30 Aug 19993248 640.0PP 23.3PRC-
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Guangxi Highway 
Development

12 Jul 19993220 540.0PP 4.7PRC-

Tianjin Wastewater 
Treatment and Water 
Resources Protection

2 Jul 19993216 800.0PP 38.3PRC-

Heilongjiang Water Supply 1 Jul 19993215 1,000.0PP 28.0PRC-

Regulatory Framework for 
the Engagement of 
Consultants

22 Dec 19983138 700.0AD 48.2PRC-

Institutional Reform of 
Yunnan Electric Power Group 
Corporation

27 Nov 19983105 785.0AD 59.7PRC-

Chongqing–Guizhou 
Expressway

26 Nov 19983102 900.0PP 18.4PRC-

Urban Policy Workshop 11 Nov 19983096 150.0AD 1.0PRC-

Hai River Basin Wastewater 
Management and Pollution 
Control

10 Nov 19983095 570.0AD 17.0PRC-

Regional Road Sector Study 13 Oct 19983086 1,185.0AD 54.6PRC-

Wind Power Development 21 Sep 19983071 600.0PP 13.0PRC-

Renewable Energy 
Development

19 Aug 19983056 656.0PP 114.3PRC-

Zhejiang–Shanxi Water 
Supply (Phase II)

21 Jul 19983049 540.0PP 52.2PRC-

Power Rehabilitation and 
Environmental Improvement

30 Jun 19983036 1,000.0PP 95.3PRC-

Shanxi Expressway 24 Jun 19983033 570.0PP 30.3PRC-

Strengthening Risk 
Management of the 
Agricultural Bank of China

29 Jun 19983026 1,000.0AD 88.4PRC-

Suzhou Creek Environmental 
Rehabilitation

4 Jun 19983025 965.0PP 12.1PRC-
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Environmental Impact 
Assessment Training and 
Curriculum Development

31 Dec 19972975 600.0AD 23.6PRC-

Policy Support for the 
People's Republic of China 
2020 Project

23 Dec 19972965 500.0AD 98.5PRC-

Corporatization, Leasing, and 
Securitization in the Road 
Sector

23 Dec 19972952 1,000.0AD 3.9PRC-

Promotion of Market-Based 
Instruments for 
Environmental Management

16 Dec 19972951 697.0AD 47.7PRC-

Reform of the Rural Credit 
Cooperative System

15 Dec 19972939 997.0AD 991.8PRC-

North Power Transmission 10 Dec 19972932 500.0PP 87.8PRC-

Promotion of Energy-Saving 
Construction Materials

3 Dec 19972927 421.0AD 17.0PRC-

Restructuring Xiamen Harbor 
Management and Improving 
Ports Management 
Information System

27 Nov 19972922 575.0AD 100.9PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Northeast Electric Power 
Group Corporation

25 Nov 19972919 336.0AD 14.6PRC-

Power Sector Restructuring 24 Nov 19972917 804.7AD 1.2PRC-

Shanxi Environment 
Improvement

21 Oct 19972901 590.0PP 24.5PRC-

Hohhot Urban Development 14 Oct 19972893 430.0AD 1.5PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Local Railways in Shaanxi 
Province

29 Sep 19972878 400.0AD 102.7PRC-

Improvement of 
Environmental Management 
Shaanxi Province

24 Sep 19972873 935.0AD 13.5PRC-
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Changchun–Harbin 
Expressway

22 Aug 19972846 600.0PP 28.2PRC-

Yunnan Dachaoshan Power 
Transmission

13 Aug 19972842 550.0PP 4.7PRC-

Guizhou–Shuibai Railway 22 May 19972799 400.0PP 12.2PRC-

Study on Clean Coal 
Integrated Gasification 
Combined Cycle Technology

19 May 19972792 500.0AD 26.0PRC-

Chengdu to Nanchong 
Expressway

4 Apr 19972777 600.0PP 1.5PRC-

Capacity Building for Natural 
Resources Legislation

24 Dec 19962735 800.0AD 32.0PRC-

Industrial Pollution 
Investigation and Assessment 
in Town and Village 
Enterprises

24 Dec 19962729 600.0AD 11.8PRC-

Water Quality Management 
Planning for Suzhou Creek 
(Supplementary)

13 Feb 19982726 400.0AD 6.7PRC-

Water Quality Management 
Planning for Suzhou Creek

23 Dec 19962726 600.0AD 0.0PRC-

Coastal Resource 
Conservation and 
Environment Management

3 Dec 19962695 810.0AD 59.8PRC-

Formulation of an Integrated 
Environmental Management 
Plan for the Chao Lake Basin

26 Nov 19962693 800.0AD 14.1PRC-

Market-Based Energy 
Conservation and 
Environmental Improvement

30 Oct 19962675 597.0PP 1.4PRC-

Xiamen Port 29 Oct 19962674 600.0PP 31.7PRC-

Hebei Roads Development 16 Oct 19962663 600.0PP 116.2PRC-
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Facilitating the Build-Operate-
Transfer Modality in the 
Highway Sector

27 Sep 19962649 1,100.0AD 60.4PRC-

Northeast China Power 
Transmission

30 Jul 19962620 590.0PP 98.4PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Local Railways in Sichuan*

4 Jun 19962578 400.0AD 12.9PRC-

Capacity Building of the 
Hexian Pulp Mill

24 May 19962574 600.0AD 19.0PRC-

All China Federation of 
Supply and Marketing 
Cooperatives

5 Mar 19962539 580.0AD 26.3PRC-

Integration of Securities 
Market

27 Dec 19952512 600.0AD 117.9PRC-

Zhejiang–Shanxi Water 
Resources

26 Dec 19952511 1,000.0PP 13.7PRC-

Policy and Regulatory 
Framework for Foreign Direct 
Investment

22 Dec 19952510 751.0AD 2.1PRC-

Strengthening Financial 
Management in Provincial 
Power Utilities

22 Dec 19952509 720.0AD 4.3PRC-

Strengthening the 
Environmental Standards and 
Enforcement Policies

22 Dec 19952505 600.0AD 24.5PRC-

Sound Safety and 
Environmental Practices for 
Offshore Oil and Gas 
Production*

21 Dec 19952494 600.0AD 17.6PRC-

Strengthening the 
Accounting and Financial 
Management Systems in 
Shanghai Petroleum 
Corporation*

21 Dec 19952493 330.0AD 20.9PRC-

Liaoning and Jilin Expressways 18 Dec 19952482 400.0PP 9.5PRC-
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Guizhou Hongjiadu 
Hydropower

18 Dec 19952476 599.0PP 98.6PRC-

Management and 
Operational Strategies for 
Port Authorities*

12 Dec 19952466 490.0AD 32.4PRC-

Xian–Xianyang–Tongchuan 
Environment Improvement

16 Nov 19952445 500.0PP 0.7PRC-

Strengthening Electric Power 
Henan Power System 
Planning Capability 
Incorporating Integrated 
Resource Planning*

7 Nov 19952436 422.0AD 0.0PRC-

Establishing a Center for the 
Transfer of Environmentally 
Sound Technology

31 Oct 19952434 550.0AD 15.3PRC-

Capacity Building for Soil and 
Water Conservation*

28 Sep 19952407 590.0AD 0.0PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Provincial Telecoms 
Administrations*

26 Sep 19952405 600.0AD 102.8PRC-

Strengthening of Corporate 
Management and Marketing 
and Trading Practices*

7 Sep 19952395 455.4AD 48.4PRC-

Jianfengling Park 
Management and 
Biodiversity Conservation*

7 Sep 19952394 600.0AD 26.2PRC-

Anhui Fuyang Thermal Power 
Project Study

5 Jun 19952341 500.0PP 41.4PRC-

Shenmu–Yanan Railway 27 Apr 19952325 250.0PP 0.5PRC-

Improving Coal Efficiency 
and Reducing Environmental 
Pollution

7 Feb 19952298 570.0AD 10.6PRC-
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Institutional Strengthening of 
Commercial Finance, 
Management, and 
Accounting*

12 Jan 19952288 830.0AD 0.4PRC-

Middle School Teacher 
Training in Qinghai Province

27 Dec 19942269 500.0AD 53.1PRC-

Enterprise Accounting 
System Reform

21 Dec 19942257 467.0AD 22.0PRC-

Upgrading Monetary 
Statistics

20 Dec 19942249 300.0AD 16.1PRC-

Cooperative Banking 
Development

1 Dec 19942214 600.0AD 9.2PRC-

Capacity Building of the 
Beijing Industrial Hazardous 
Waste Management Center

29 Nov 19942211 425.0AD 8.4PRC-

Capacity Building of the 
Beijing Municipal 
Environmental Protection 
Bureau and Affiliated 
Agencies

29 Nov 19942210 600.0AD 2.9PRC-

Hebei and Liaoning 
Expressways

31 Oct 19942195 560.0PP 236.0PRC-

Institutional Management 
Strengthening of 
Heilongjiang Electric Power 
Company*

27 Oct 19942191 600.0AD 14.2PRC-

Anhui Industrial Pollution 
Abatement

21 Oct 19942188 450.0PP 11.6PRC-

Anhui Municipal Wastewater 
Treatment

19 Oct 19942187 283.0PP 1.6PRC-

Strengthening the Legal 
Framework for Customs 
Administration

18 Oct 19942186 585.0AD 115.6PRC-

Provincial Highway Network 
Planning

29 Sep 19942178 600.0AD 86.5PRC-
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Preparation of a Road Safety 
Program

29 Sep 19942177 600.0AD 30.7PRC-

Introducing Build-Own-
Operate/Build-Operate-
Transfer Concept for 
Shanghai Waigaoqiao Stage 
II Project

27 Sep 19942170 600.0AD 1.7PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Hunan Electric Power 
Company

27 Sep 19942169 400.0AD 7.8PRC-

Fujian Mianhuatan 
Hydropower

26 Sep 19942168 385.0PP 37.5PRC-

Improvement of Northern 
Grasslands Ecosystems

16 Sep 19942156 746.0AD 59.4PRC-

Sichuan Expressway 16 Sep 19942155 350.0PP 12.7PRC-

Daxian–Wanxian Railway 7 Sep 19942147 250.0PP 0.6PRC-

Policy Support to Ministry of 
Railways

14 Jul 19942122 600.0AD 7.5PRC-

Corporate Ownership and 
Management System for 
Yunnan Yun-Jing Forestry 
and Pulpmill Company, Ltd.

30 Jun 19942120 400.0AD 2.1PRC-

Forest Ecosystem Planning 
and Agro-Industrial Pollution 
Control

30 Jun 19942119 600.0AD 12.5PRC-

Rural Energy Development 
Study

16 Jun 19942100 500.0AD 37.8PRC-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the State of Education 
Commission

15 Jun 19942099 400.0AD 31.5PRC-

Second Industrial Energy 
Conservation and 
Environmental Improvement

26 Apr 19942087 393.0PP 31.8PRC-

Second Telecommunications 21 Apr 19942080 282.0PP 61.2PRC-
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Changjiang Water and Soil 
Conservation and 
Environmental Protection

24 Mar 19942073 600.0AD 32.3PRC-

Township and Village 
Enterprise Development

23 Dec 19932037 540.0AD 99.6PRC-

Urban Environmental 
Improvement Planning

14 Dec 19932015 480.0AD 102.0PRC-

Institutional Development of 
Human Resources 
Development of China 
Agribusiness Development 
Trust and Investment 
Corporation*

9 Dec 19932010 208.0AD 16.9PRC-

Environmental Impact 
Assessment Training - Phase II

18 Nov 19931988 900.0AD 17.2PRC-

Second Ports Development 16 Nov 19931982 400.0PP 6.2PRC-

Heilongjiang and Yunnan 
Expressways

16 Nov 19931981 320.0PP 137.8PRC-

Policy and Institutional 
Support in the Road Sector*

9 Nov 19931972 1,200.0AD 170.9PRC-

Efficiency Improvements in 
Road Transport

25 Aug 19931940 550.0AD 21.4PRC-

North China Marine Culture 
and Coastal Resource 
Management

19 Aug 19931934 583.8PP 31.1PRC-

Qitaihe Thermal Power 2 Aug 19931919 438.0PP 98.9PRC-

Second Agricultural Bank of 
China (ABC II)

23 Jul 19931912 491.0PP 13.1PRC-

Jing–Jiu Railway 20 Jul 19931909 400.0PP 13.2PRC-

Policy Planning Support for 
Education for All in Hebei 
Province

25 May 19931893 600.0AD 67.3PRC-
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Hainan Agriculture and 
Natural Resources 
Management

20 May 19931892 593.0PP 0.0PRC-

Integrated Rural 
Development for Minority 
Areas

10 May 19931881 550.0PP 13.8PRC-

Power Subsector Energy 
Conservation Study in 
Jiangsu Province

14 Apr 19931867 479.5AD 53.8PRC-

Fujian Soil Conservation and 
Rural Development

29 Mar 19931860 406.0PP 0.0PRC-

Haihe Basin Environmental 
Management and Planning 
Study

31 Dec 19921835 1,240.0AD 12.4PRC-

Comprehensive Toxic and 
Hazardous Chemicals 
Transport Management Plan 
in the Huang Pu River Basin*

17 Nov 19921785 600.0AD 43.0PRC-

Yunnan–Simao Forestry 
Development and Pulp Mill

20 Oct 19921767 395.0PP 65.6PRC-

Management of Energy 
Conservation Program*

24 Sep 19921754 600.0AD 117.8PRC-

Hunan Lingjintan Hydro 
Power

21 Jul 19921734 99.8PP 6.5PRC-

Jilin Province Highway 
Network Study*

2 Jul 19921725 600.0PP 40.4PRC-

National Response Strategy 
for Global Climate Change

10 Apr 19921690 600.0AD 23.3PRC-

Monitoring and 
Management of Fragile 
Ecosystems in 
Shanxi–Shaanxi–Inner 
Mongolia

27 Nov 19911615 600.0AD 47.7PRC-
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Strengthening Management 
Information System of 
Environmental Protection 
Bureau of Selected 
Municipalities

18 Nov 19911602 600.0AD 1.2PRC-

Red Soils Development in 
Hunan Province

3 Oct 19911573 789.0AD 17.8PRC-

Power System Planning 25 Jul 19911544 600.0PP 37.9PRC-

Dalian Multipurpose Water 
Resources Development

15 Apr 19911506 600.0PP 10.0PRC-

Tropical Crops Development 11 Apr 19911504 420.0PP 21.3PRC-

North Hainan Water 
Resources Development

15 Jun 19891165 2,300.0PP 85.8PRC-

Beijing–Tianjin Water 
Resources Study

17 Apr 19891145 550.0AD 1.8PRC-

Developing the Institutional 
Capability of the Joint 
Railway Operating 
Corporation*

31 Jan 19891117 450.0AD 13.9PRC-

Strengthening the 
Government Implementation 
Capacity in the Pulp and 
Paper Sector*

20 Dec 19881088 400.0AD 44.4PRC-

Institutional Support to 
Shanghai Investment and 
Trust Corporation*

13 Dec 19881086 450.0AD 51.8PRC-

Technology Transfer in 
Hydropower Design

27 Oct 19881051 375.0AD 8.6PRC-

Huang Pu Bridge 24 Oct 19881049 95.0PP 20.8PRC-

Guangdong Railway 24 Oct 19881048 99.0PP 25.6PRC-

Industry Energy Conservation 
Program

2 Aug 19881021 412.0AD 34.1PRC-

Summary for  China, People's Rep. of (157 TA projects)
Total 96,637.1
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Cook Islands

Improving Corporate 
Management in Government 
Services

19 Dec 20013815 250.0AD 118.7COO-

Outer Islands Development 
Program

12 Dec 20013795 250.0PP 88.0COO-

Urban Infrastructure 6 Oct 19983085 750.0PP 34.7COO-

Outer Islands Power 
Development Study

27 Dec 19942264 250.0PP 8.3COO-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Ministry of Education

22 Sep 19942165 355.0AD 61.4COO-

Lagoon Ecology Monitoring 
and Management

30 Aug 19942144 552.0AD 0.4COO-

Integrated Urban 
Infrastructure

15 Mar 19942070 455.0PP 7.6COO-

Summary for  Cook Islands (7 TA projects)
Total 2,862.0

Fiji Islands

Suva–Nausori Water Supply 
and Sewerage

18 Aug 19983055 800.0PP 44.7FIJ-

Management of the Strategy 
for Agricultural Growth

6 Nov 19962681 600.0AD 141.8FIJ-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Fiji Electricity Authority

19 Sep 19952399 450.0AD 57.6FIJ-

Third Road Upgrading 20 Dec 19942251 600.0PP 1.1FIJ-

Restructuring of the Housing 
Authority

19 Dec 19942245 450.0AD 54.2FIJ-

Management Information 
System for the Ministry of 
Agriculture, Fisheries and 
Forestry

27 Dec 19932034 570.0AD 126.6FIJ-

Socioeconomic Database on 
Women

14 Oct 19931964 100.0AD 27.2FIJ-
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Institutional Strengthening of 
the Forestry Economic Unit

5 Feb 19931848 263.0AD 107.9FIJ-

Agricultural Pricing and 
Marketing Study

30 May 19901305 200.0AD 68.1FIJ-

Environmental Management 
Planning

14 Sep 19891206 600.0AD 1.3FIJ-

Strengthening Project 
Formulation, Evaluation, and 
Monitoring Capabilities of 
Key Government Ministries*

29 Sep 19881042 475.0AD 179.2FIJ-

Summary for  Fiji Islands (11 TA projects)
Total 5,108.0

India

Western Transport 
Corridor—Facilitating Private 
Participation

9 Feb 19982986 1,000.0PP 45.9IND-

Strengthening Local 
Government in Madhya 
Pradesh

15 Dec 19972944 700.0AD 5.5IND-

Support for the Government 
of Madhya Pradesh Public 
Finance Reform and 
Institutional Strengthening

15 Dec 19972943 780.0AD 6.9IND-

Urban and Environmental 
Infrastructure Fund

12 Dec 19972936 400.0PP 29.0IND-

Strengthening Housing 
Finance Institutions

24 Jul 19972833 600.0AD 144.4IND-

Karnataka Coastal 
Environmental Management 
and Urban Development

6 Jun 19972806 800.0PP 23.7IND-

Liquified Natural Gas Terminal 27 Jan 19972752 600.0PP 36.1IND-

Financial Management 
Support to Kheda and Rajkot 
Distribution Profit Centers of 
the Gujarat Electricity

17 Dec 19962741 580.0AD 116.2IND-
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Preparation of a Power 
System Master Plan for the 
State of Gujarat

17 Dec 19962738 600.0AD 35.1IND-

Preparation of Natural Gas 
Development Master Plan

9 Dec 19962702 600.0AD 25.6IND-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Indian Renewable Energy 
Development Agency Ltd.

26 Sep 19962648 600.0AD 56.5IND-

Institutional Support for 
Telecommunications 
Development

22 Jul 19962611 575.0AD 4.7IND-

Capacity Enhancement of 
Gujarat Industrial Investment 
Corporation

30 May 19962579 500.0AD 81.2IND-

Restructuring Program for 
State-Owned Enterprises in 
Gujarat

2 Apr 19962552 600.0AD 9.1IND-

Study of Development 
Strategies for Madras and 
Ennore Ports

28 Dec 19952519 750.0PP 53.7IND-

Environmental Improvement 
and Sustainable 
Development in Agra-
Mathura

15 Dec 19952474 600.0PP 34.2IND-

Capacity Building of Income 
Tax Administration

26 Oct 19952432 550.0AD 26.4IND-

Rajasthan Urban 
Infrastructure Development

15 Aug 19952373 600.0PP 35.2IND-

Strengthening Environmental 
Impact Assessment and 
Environmental Legislation

3 Feb 19952296 500.0AD 25.8IND-

Implementation of Clean 
Coal Technology through 
Coal Beneficiation

27 Dec 19942266 300.0PP 19.3IND-
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Power System Planning in 
Orissa

28 Jun 19942116 600.0PP 28.9IND-

Third Ports Development 11 Mar 19931853 600.0PP 31.8IND-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Industrial Credit and 
Investment Corporation of 
India and Other Financial 
Institutions*

17 Dec 19921806 600.0AD 192.7IND-

Planning and Management 
Advisory Services for Paradip 
Port Trust*

27 Oct 19921770 600.0AD 58.2IND-

Bulk Power and Transmission 
Tariffs and Transmission 
Regulations Study

29 Sep 19921756 600.0AD 1.1IND-

Rationalization of Nonbulk 
General Cargo Traffic*

5 Dec 19911621 560.0AD 2.0IND-

Enhancement of Operational 
Efficiency on Indian Railways*

5 Dec 19911620 1,050.0AD 53.4IND-

Development of Ship Repair 
Facilities*

29 Mar 19901284 400.0AD 0.5IND-

Operational and Financing 
Assistance and Establishment 
of a Management 
Information System 
Study—Bombay Port Trust*

29 Mar 19901283 600.0AD 1.8IND-

Summary for  India (29 TA projects)
Total 17,845.0

Indonesia

Participatory Irrigation Sector 12 Dec 20013793 600.0PP 1.6INO-

Second Decentralized Health 
Services

15 Nov 20013775 1,000.0PP 2.2INO-

Preparing a Gas Sector 
Development Plan

11 Jun 20013671 490.0AD 9.7INO-
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Poor Farmers' Income 
Improvement

9 Nov 20003532 420.0PP 36.9INO-

Establishment of an 
Anticorruption Commission

28 Dec 19993381 1,000.0AD 197.8INO-

Road Rehabilitation (Sector) 10 Dec 19993334 400.0PP 18.7INO-

Urban Sector Development in 
a Decentralizing Environment

8 Dec 19993326 600.0AD 9.3INO-

Participatory Approaches to 
Sustainable Income 
Generation

29 Nov 19993313 300.0AD 5.9INO-

Corporate Governance and 
Enterprise Restructuring

29 Dec 19983149 2,470.0AD 11.4INO-

Development of Rural-Urban 
Linkages

15 Oct 19983088 890.0PP 99.0INO-

Capacity Building for 
Planning and Evaluating 
Programs for Street Children

9 Jul 19983043 500.0AD 31.4INO-

Capacity Building for 
Decentralized Social Services 
Delivery

9 Jul 19983042 900.0AD 39.2INO-

Basic Education in Bali and 
Nusa Tenggara Barat

16 Apr 19983007 150.0PP 1.7INO-

Planning for Fire Prevention 
and Drought Management

20 Feb 19982999 1,000.0AD 213.7INO-

Marine Resources Evaluation 
Management and Planning

19 Dec 19972958 600.0PP 52.3INO-

Early Childhood Development 9 Dec 19972930 900.0PP 674.4INO-

Facilitating Limited Recourse 
Financing in Civil Aviation

8 Dec 19972929 975.0AD 26.3INO-

Higher Education Sector 21 Oct 19972899 800.0PP 24.6INO-

Capacity Building Project in 
Community Development

8 Sep 19972858 970.0PP 138.0INO-

National Biodiversity 
Information Network

11 Jul 19972822 700.0PP 128.3INO-
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Capacity Building of the 
Ministry of Health for 
Strategic Development

19 Jun 19972814 800.0AD 283.3INO-

Strengthening of Urban 
Waste Management Policies 
and Strategies

2 Jun 19972805 600.0AD 15.5INO-

A Study for Development of 
Gas Infrastructure in Java

17 Apr 19972783 575.0AD 10.0INO-

Horticulture and Agribusiness 
Development

13 Dec 19962709 600.0PP 55.1INO-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Regional Development 
Account

5 Dec 19962699 600.0AD 0.0INO-

Development of In-Service 
Teacher Training Centers

23 Oct 19962667 538.0PP 102.1INO-

Metropolitan Bandung Urban 
Development

30 Sep 19962655 600.0PP 17.0INO-

Rural Income Generation 27 Aug 19962634 493.0PP 55.2INO-

Master Plan for Establishing 
Provincial/District/Municipal 
Level of Environmental 
Impact Management Agency 
(BAPEDALDA)*

27 Jun 19962598 900.0AD 282.4INO-

Northern Sumatra Irrigated 
Agriculture Improvement

13 Jun 19962588 600.0PP 2.5INO-

Integrated River Basin 
Development Project in 
Maluku and East Nusa 
Tenggara

5 Jun 19962580 860.0PP 148.4INO-

South Sulawesi Gas 
Transmission and Distribution

20 May 19962572 569.0PP 35.8INO-

Coral Reef Rehabilitation and 
Management

15 Feb 19962535 600.0PP 0.4INO-

Private Sector Participation in 
the Transport Sector

23 Jan 19962527 900.0AD 70.8INO-
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Central Sulawesi Integrated 
Area Development

28 Dec 19952518 850.0PP 26.0INO-

Capacity Building in Urban 
Infrastructure Management

28 Dec 19952517 650.0PP 1.1INO-

Water Tariff Structure and 
Financial Policies of Water 
Enterprises

22 Dec 19952501 600.0AD 51.5INO-

Institutional Strengthening to 
Monitor Poverty Alleviation

11 Dec 19952464 600.0AD 61.2INO-

Participatory Assessment of 
Agricultural Technology

24 Oct 19952431 535.0PP 20.2INO-

Balikpapan, Banjarmasin, and 
Gresik Ports Development

22 Sep 19952402 900.0PP 75.0INO-

Belawan Port 31 Aug 19952386 595.0PP 91.6INO-

Second Airports Development 15 Aug 19952374 600.0PP 14.3INO-

Enhancing the Quality of 
Reproductive Health Care

14 Mar 19952312 840.0PP 197.2INO-

Family Health and Nutrition 17 Feb 19952301 600.0PP 3.3INO-

Communicable Diseases 
Control

17 Feb 19952300 800.0PP 1.7INO-

Capacity Building for 
Resettlement Management in 
Road Projects

27 Dec 19942268 265.0AD 38.2INO-

Integrated Area Development 
Project in Irian Jaya

20 Dec 19942253 600.0PP 0.0INO-

Java Flood Control 19 Oct 19942185 900.0PP 16.7INO-

Environment and Energy 
Efficiency

27 Sep 19942171 416.0AD 68.8INO-

Second Nucleus Estate Crop 
Protection

16 Sep 19942154 570.0PP 0.0INO-

Basic Education 19 Jul 19942123 600.0PP 72.3INO-

Engineering Education 
Development

7 Jun 19942096 800.0PP 30.5INO-
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Third Telecommunications 22 Feb 19942064 583.0PP 126.1INO-

Coastal Environmental and 
Management Planning

3 Jan 19942053 1,200.0AD 1.4INO-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the State Ministry for the 
Role of Women

23 Dec 19932038 600.0AD 15.5INO-

Private Sector Participation in 
Urban Development 
(Bandung and Semarang)

14 Dec 19932016 600.0AD 12.8INO-

Industrial Pollution Control in 
Cimahi

1 Dec 19932009 590.0PP 122.6INO-

Toxic and Hazardous Waste 
Management

23 Nov 19931994 600.0AD 69.6INO-

Surabaya and Eastern 
Regions Ports Development

23 Aug 19931936 600.0PP 6.0INO-

Remote Sensing Applications 
for Natural Resource 
Management

20 Jul 19931910 600.0AD 68.7INO-

Study on Enhancing the Role 
of the Private Sector in the 
Tree Crop Development

6 May 19931879 540.0AD 37.3INO-

Human Resource 
Development Project in the 
Water Resource Sector

29 Mar 19931859 600.0PP 120.2INO-

Improvement of Farmer-
Managed Irrigation Systems

28 Dec 19921834 950.0AD 19.7INO-

Rural Water Supply and 
Sanitation Sector

23 Dec 19921818 600.0PP 20.9INO-

Fisheries Sector 20 Nov 19921791 600.0PP 99.7INO-

Forestry Sector 9 Nov 19921781 700.0PP 35.4INO-

Integrated Water Resources 
Development of Flores Islands

15 Oct 19921766 850.0PP 33.1INO-

Third Vocational Education 17 Sep 19921752 450.0PP 126.0INO-
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Environmental Planning and 
Management for Coal-Fired 
Power Plants*

4 Aug 19921739 200.0AD 0.2INO-

Outer Islands Universities 25 May 19921702 465.0PP 110.4INO-

An Environmental Impact 
Management Agency 
(BAPEDAL) Regional Network

29 Apr 19921697 600.0PP 11.9INO-

Integrated National 
Telecommunication Strategic 
Development Plan and East 
Indonesia Strategic Master 
Plan*

4 Feb 19921666 1,500.0AD 361.7INO-

Community Health Services 31 Dec 19911634 480.0PP 104.7INO-

Preparation of Segara 
Anakan Conservation and 
Development

5 Dec 19911624 1,200.0PP 0.7INO-

Tree Crops Smallholder 
Sector Project II*

14 Nov 19911599 850.0PP 80.8INO-

Sustainable Mangrove 
Coastal Zone Management

11 Oct 19911576 590.0PP 5.9INO-

Second Telecommunications 6 Sep 19911558 600.0PP 66.8INO-

Environmental Impact 
Assessment for the Tampur 
Hydropower Scheme*

25 Jul 19911545 560.0PP 38.9INO-

Human Resources 
Development for Export 
Trade Sector

26 Jun 19911530 400.0PP 36.4INO-

Lower Secondary Education 24 Jun 19911527 571.0PP 215.9INO-

Rainfed Agriculture 
Development in Eastern 
Region

15 Apr 19911505 600.0PP 75.2INO-

Second Forestry Development 4 Apr 19911502 408.0PP 12.0INO-
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Urban and Regional 
Development of Eastern 
Islands*

31 Jan 19911472 600.0PP 10.8INO-

Financial Information 
Systems Development II for 
Ministry of Agriculture

28 Dec 19901459 600.0AD 150.1INO-

Rationalization of Operation 
and Maintenance in Primary 
and Secondary Education

28 Dec 19901458 350.0PP 69.6INO-

Strengthening the Capability 
for Environmental Impact 
Assessment in the Ministry of 
Industry

26 Dec 19901452 340.0AD 12.3INO-

Strengthening the Capability 
of Environmental Impact 
Assessment in the Ministry of 
Mines and Energy

26 Dec 19901451 340.0AD 128.6INO-

Manpower Planning and 
Improvement in the Mining 
and Energy Sector

21 Dec 19901449 600.0AD 1.4INO-

Biodiversity Conservation 5 Dec 19901430 597.0PP 3.6INO-

Marine Resource Evaluation 
and Planning

23 Nov 19901424 480.0PP 13.4INO-

Enhancement of Investment 
Services through Badan 
Koordinasi Penanaman 
Modal (BKPM)

8 Nov 19901415 375.0AD 67.0INO-

Sustainable Agriculture 
Development Project in Irian 
Jaya

26 Oct 19901401 600.0PP 115.9INO-

Marginal Farmers 
Community Development

26 Oct 19901400 560.0PP 7.2INO-

Secondary Cities Urban 
Development Sector

24 Oct 19901397 600.0PP 10.5INO-
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Second Integrated Irrigation 
Sector

20 Sep 19901377 600.0PP 7.8INO-

Estate Crops Development in 
Critical Watershed Areas

6 Jul 19901331 550.0PP 69.9INO-

Tree Crop Processing 27 Jun 19901327 500.0PP 11.9INO-

Nucleus Estate and 
Smallholder Oil Palm III

28 Mar 19901282 350.0PP 0.6INO-

Strengthening the Capability 
for Environmental Impact 
Assessment in the Ministry of 
Agriculture and the Ministry 
of Forestry

23 Mar 19901281 600.0AD 71.4INO-

Forestry Institutional 
Strengthening for Timber 
Plantation Development

14 Dec 19891244 599.0AD 141.2INO-

Tree Crops Smallholder 
Development

20 Nov 19891227 600.0PP 2.4INO-

Second Land Resource 
Evaluation and Planning

10 Aug 19891195 323.0PP 38.6INO-

Agricultural Technology 
Schools

19 Apr 19891147 350.0PP 97.2INO-

Water Quality Management 
Sector

8 Dec 19881083 590.0PP 21.7INO-

Medan Urban Land 
Development Study*

10 Nov 19881061 500.0AD 23.0INO-

Medan Urban Transportation 
Study*

10 Nov 19881060 600.0AD 72.6INO-

Second Vocational Education 26 Oct 19881052 100.0PP 33.3INO-

Five Universities Development 
and Rehabilitation

1 Aug 19881018 450.0PP 78.3INO-

Upgrading of Industrial 
Research and Development 
Facilities

1 Aug 19881017 342.0PP 59.2INO-
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Natural Gas Rehabilitation 
and Expansion

23 Jun 19880990 325.0PP 11.1INO-

Summary for  Indonesia (110 TA projects)
Total 69,729.0

Kazakhstan

Urban Small Business 
Development

21 Feb 20013633 600.0PP 259.3KAZ-

Railway Restructuring Sector 
Development Program

28 Sep 19993265 850.0PP 53.0KAZ-

Institutional Development 
and Policy Reforms for 
Improving Water 
Management

17 Dec 19972946 600.0AD 0.8KAZ-

Strengthening Education 
Administration and 
Management at the Central 
and Local Levels

24 Sep 19972872 600.0AD 31.8KAZ-

Farm Restructuring and 
Development

31 Dec 19962737 1,200.0PP 141.2KAZ-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Road Sector

27 Aug 19962631 750.0AD 1.3KAZ-

Rehabilitation and 
Environmental Improvement 
of the Almaty No.1 Heat and 
Power Station

21 Jul 19952366 556.0PP 56.6KAZ-

Strengthening the 
Implementation of 
Agriculture Sector Reforms

4 Jul 19952356 600.0AD 50.5KAZ-

Industry and Enterprise 
Sector Reform

20 Mar 19952313 600.0PP 25.1KAZ-

Education and Training 
Sector Study

7 Mar 19952308 895.0AD 48.0KAZ-

Road Rehabilitation Program 11 Jan 19952285 600.0PP 13.4KAZ-
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Summary for  Kazakhstan (11 TA projects)
Total 7,851.0

Kiribati

Outer Islands Development 
Program

18 Dec 20003593 350.0PP 31.2KIR-

Sanitation and Public Health 21 Dec 19952497 577.0PP 22.1KIR-

Integrated Urban Plans and 
Program Study

2 Nov 19942198 385.0AD 60.4KIR-

Institutional Assistance to the 
Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Planning

10 Nov 19931976 503.0AD 39.0KIR-

Summary for  Kiribati (4 TA projects)
Total 1,815.0

Kyrgyz Republic

Second Phase of the 
Corporate Governance and 
Enterprise Reform Program

28 Sep 20003505 700.0PP 1.4KGZ-

Third Road Rehabilitation 10 Dec 19993335 600.0PP 14.3KGZ-

Institutional Strengthening 
for Social Services Delivery 
and Finance

27 Nov 19983106 634.0AD 114.5KGZ-

Policy Support in the 
Transport Sector

10 Sep 19983065 600.0AD 16.0KGZ-

Community-Based 
Infrastructure Services Sector

20 Jul 19983048 600.0PP 24.0KGZ-

Capacity Building in the 
Ministry of Agriculture and 
Water Resources

29 Jun 19983035 470.0AD 2.8KGZ-

Agriculture Area Development 12 May 19983017 900.0PP 72.8KGZ-

Pension Reform 23 Dec 19972963 680.0PP 43.0KGZ-

Environmental Monitoring 
and Management Capacity 
Building

11 Dec 19972934 598.0AD 22.9KGZ-
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Second Road Rehabilitation 11 Feb 19972760 600.0PP 7.3KGZ-

Social Services Delivery and 
Finance

19 Nov 19962688 1,100.0PP 75.0KGZ-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Road Sector

13 Jun 19962587 800.0AD 145.3KGZ-

Strengthening the Ministry of 
Economy

14 Dec 19952473 850.0AD 180.9KGZ-

Agricultural Credit Pilot 27 Nov 19952453 910.0PP 32.1KGZ-

Strengthening Environmental 
Institutions and Improving 
Procedures for Environmental 
Impact Assessment

13 Sep 19952397 556.0AD 28.4KGZ-

Industry and Trade Sector 
Study

3 Feb 19952297 600.0AD 7.0KGZ-

Education and Training 
Master Plan

17 Jan 19952290 900.0AD 153.4KGZ-

Agriculture Sector Program 29 Dec 19942274 600.0PP 125.2KGZ-

Road Rehabilitation 21 Dec 19942256 600.0PP 37.1KGZ-
Summary for  Kyrgyz Republic (19 TA projects)

Total 13,298.0

Lao People's Dem. Rep.

Financial Sector Development 
Program

10 Oct 20013737 400.0PP 2.2LAO-

Capacity Building of the Lao 
Women's Union

19 Mar 20013641 300.0AD 36.0LAO-

Smallholder Development 20 Dec 20003603 750.0PP 93.9LAO-

Small Towns Development 29 Aug 20003492 700.0PP 14.4LAO-

Power Sector Strategy Study 23 Dec 19993374 800.0AD 3.1LAO-

Vientiane Urban 
Infrastructure and Services

10 Dec 19993333 600.0PP 30.0LAO-

Enhancing Government 
Accounting Regulations and 
Procedures

25 Nov 19993309 700.0AD 21.8LAO-
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Second Education Quality 
Improvement

10 Nov 19993294 600.0PP 78.3LAO-

Irrigation Management 
Transfer

27 Apr 19993189 650.0PP 14.8LAO-

Commercial Banking 
Capacity for Efficiency 
Enhancement

24 Dec 19983146 550.0AD 0.4LAO-

Strengthening Social and 
Environmental Management

22 Dec 19983133 950.0AD 9.0LAO-

Northern Area Rural Power 
Distribution

14 Oct 19983087 510.0PP 9.8LAO-

Road Infrastructure for Rural 
Development

17 Sep 19983070 720.0AD 12.3LAO-

Primary Health Care 
Expansion

20 Aug 19983058 700.0PP 1.1LAO-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Water Resources 
Coordination Committee

15 Apr 19983006 260.0AD 4.8LAO-

Support for Urban 
Development Administration 
Authorities

31 Dec 19972972 500.0PP 22.5LAO-

Nam Ngum 500 kV 
Transmission

28 Nov 19972926 580.0PP 17.0LAO-

Rural Access Roads 
Improvement

7 Oct 19972889 600.0PP 11.0LAO-

Agriculture Strategy Study 30 Sep 19972883 600.0AD 9.3LAO-

Management Information 
System (Phase II)

9 Sep 19972862 700.0AD 0.0LAO-

Shifting Cultivation 
Rehabilitation

15 Apr 19972779 600.0PP 7.5LAO-

Nam Ngum Watershed 
Management

23 Dec 19962734 800.0AD 0.8LAO-

Study for Establishing the 
National Grid Company

23 Dec 19962728 600.0AD 68.8LAO-
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Small Towns Water Supply 
and Sanitation

13 Dec 19962711 500.0PP 99.5LAO-

Development of an Interbank 
Market

12 Sep 19962643 130.0AD 46.1LAO-

Power System Planning in 
Ministry of Industry and 
Handicraft

7 Jun 19962583 600.0AD 0.6LAO-

Corporate and Financial 
Development of Electricite du 
Lao

15 May 19962569 340.0AD 28.9LAO-

Women's Education 23 Apr 19962557 380.0PP 19.5LAO-

Power Transmission and 
Distribution

18 Dec 19952479 250.0PP 30.9LAO-

Small-Scale Community 
Management Irrigation

20 Nov 19952447 530.0PP 11.7LAO-

Management Information 
System in Ministry of 
Communication, Transport, 
Post, and Construction*

31 Aug 19952389 350.0AD 0.0LAO-

Feeder Roads Maintenance 
Training*

31 Aug 19952388 350.0AD 50.4LAO-

Establishing Municipal 
Administration Systems*

17 Aug 19952377 700.0AD 109.7LAO-

Strengthening Environmental 
Planning and EIA Capacity

10 May 19952329 599.0AD 594.3LAO-

Employment Promotion and 
Training

9 May 19952326 469.0PP 4.3LAO-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Ministry of Public Health*

19 Jan 19952291 800.0AD 32.3LAO-

Upgrading of School of 
Communication and 
Transport

20 Dec 19942248 300.0AD 18.2LAO-

Xieng Khouang Road 
Improvement

14 Dec 19942242 530.0PP 24.4LAO-
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Human Resource 
Development in Banks

21 Sep 19942160 350.0AD 2.5LAO-

Institutional Support to the 
Department of Forestry*

22 Dec 19932028 1,550.0AD 25.1LAO-

Strengthening Labor Market 
Monitoring and Analysis

20 Sep 19931954 400.0AD 8.4LAO-

Essential Drugs 9 Sep 19931947 250.0PP 21.8LAO-

Vientiane Integrated Urban 
Development

21 Jul 19931911 600.0PP 31.4LAO-

Seventh Road Improvement* 1 Jun 19931896 500.0PP 0.0LAO-

Commercial Bank Training 
(Supplementary)

9 Jun 19941805 20.0AD 13.6LAO-

Commercial Bank Training 15 Dec 19921805 580.0AD 0.0LAO-

Strengthening the Industrial 
Waste Management 
Capability of the Ministry of 
Industry and Handicraft

15 Dec 19921804 300.0AD 32.2LAO-

Institutional Development 
and Strengthening of the 
Ministry of Agriculture and 
Forests

18 Aug 19921745 600.0AD 0.0LAO-

Northern Provincial Towns 
Water Supply Development*

19 Nov 19911607 420.0PP 48.7LAO-

Feasibility Study of Nam 
Song-Nam Leuk Hydropower 
Development

8 Jul 19911532 1,300.0PP 48.6LAO-

Third Forestry Development 15 Nov 19901418 320.0PP 0.9LAO-

Restructuring of the 
Monetary and Banking 
System, Phase II

27 Apr 19901296 585.0AD 64.4LAO-

Summary for  Lao People's Dem. Rep. (51 TA projects)
Total 28,773.0
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Malaysia

Strategic Review of Technical 
Education and Skill Training

17 Dec 19972949 500.0AD 184.2MAL-

Industrial Pollution Control 
Management

2 Sep 19972856 588.0PP 76.4MAL-

Daro–Mukah Coastal Zone 
Development

18 Dec 19952478 600.0PP 70.2MAL-

Kalaka–Saribas Integrated 
Agricultural Development 
Phase II

27 Jun 19942110 700.0PP 37.4MAL-

Klang River Basin Integrated 
Flood Mitigation

28 Apr 19931876 800.0PP 35.2MAL-

Institutional Strengthening 
for Shoreline Management*

19 Nov 19911604 480.0AD 42.0MAL-

Bintulu–Miri Transmission 
Study*

10 Oct 19911575 200.0PP 1.2MAL-

Small and Medium Industry 
Technology Development

23 Oct 19901395 430.0PP 50.8MAL-

Technical Vocational 
Education and Industrial 
Training Study

17 May 19901300 468.0PP 106.4MAL-

Natural Forest Rehabilitation 24 Jul 19891180 240.0PP 52.5MAL-

Sabah Hydropower Options 
Study and Instituional 
Support for Strengthening 
Sabah Electricity Board

13 Jul 19891175 550.0PP 90.8MAL-

Timber Marketing Strategy 
Study*

17 Nov 19881068 325.0AD 22.0MAL-

Technology Assessment 
Development and 
Management

30 Aug 19881028 400.0PP 61.4MAL-

Summary for  Malaysia (13 TA projects)
Total 6,281.0
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Maldives

Postsecondary Education and 
Skills Development

21 Dec 20013826 400.0PP 58.4MLD-

Capacity Building for the 
Maldives Customs Services

5 Sep 20003496 700.0AD 257.1MLD-

Capacity Building for the 
Maldives Public Accounting 
System

2 Dec 19993320 510.0AD 48.4MLD-

Outer Islands Electrification 30 Jul 19993232 300.0PP 0.2MLD-

Private Sector Participation in 
the Maldives Port

20 Nov 19983099 400.0AD 69.3MLD-

Atoll Development 16 Oct 19972895 625.0PP 101.6MLD-

Education Masterplan 26 Apr 19952324 300.0AD 12.1MLD-

Maldives Monetary Authority 13 Mar 19952311 385.0AD 140.2MLD-

Regional Development 
Planning

21 Sep 19942159 600.0AD 36.2MLD-

Preparation of an 
Environment Management 
Strategy

15 Nov 19911601 500.0AD 72.5MLD-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Maldives Port Authority 
(Supplementary)

21 Sep 19901044 100.0AD 6.6MLD-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Maldives Port Authority*

20 Oct 19881044 480.0AD 0.0MLD-

Summary for  Maldives (11 TA projects)
Total 5,300.0

Marshall Islands

Outer Island Transport 
Infrastructure

29 Sep 20003506 340.0PP 9.6RMI-

Fisheries Management 2 Sep 19972854 598.0AD 21.9RMI-

Improved Financial 
Management

13 Dec 19962710 600.0AD 29.6RMI-

Tourism Development 19 Dec 19952483 405.0AD 81.1RMI-
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Policy Advisory Team for 
Economic Management

31 Jan 19952295 1,000.0AD 0.0RMI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Marshall Islands 
Development Bank Phase II

23 Nov 19942204 202.0AD 21.0RMI-

Health Management 
Information System and 
Health Planning 
(Supplementary)

23 Jul 19972164 65.0AD 60.5RMI-

Health Management 
Information System and 
Health Planning

22 Sep 19942164 400.0AD 0.0RMI-

Transport Infrastructure 
Development

11 Mar 19942068 600.0PP 11.7RMI-

Outer Islands Electricity 
Feasibility Study

29 Dec 19932041 200.0PP 5.3RMI-

Strengthening of Agricultural 
Support Services

23 Nov 19931993 350.0AD 43.7RMI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Women's Affairs Division 
of the Ministry of Social 
Services

16 Nov 19931983 250.0AD 118.1RMI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Environmental Protection 
Authority

24 Dec 19921826 300.0AD 14.8RMI-

Privatization and Institutional 
Strengthening*

26 Sep 19911568 300.0AD 4.3RMI-

Summary for  Marshall Islands (13 TA projects)
Total 5,610.0

Micronesia, Federated States of

Performance-Based Public 
Resource Management

26 Jan 19982983 988.0AD 36.6FSM-

Fisheries Management and 
Development

23 Jul 19972832 934.0AD 79.5FSM-
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Policy Advisory Team for 
Economic Management

31 Jan 19952294 1,000.0AD 0.0FSM-

Power Systems Improvement 
and Institutional 
Strengthening Study

4 Jan 19952283 315.0PP 56.0FSM-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Federated States of 
Micronesia Development Bank

2 Dec 19942216 385.0AD 41.4FSM-

Water Supply and Sewerage 18 Aug 19942137 250.0PP 7.6FSM-

Human Resources 
Development Study

21 Dec 19932027 595.0AD 42.7FSM-

Watershed Management and 
Environment

6 Aug 19931925 585.0AD 22.8FSM-

Agriculture Sector 
Development

9 Jan 19911462 450.0PP 35.8FSM-

Summary for  Micronesia, Federated States of (9 TA projects)
Total 5,502.0

Mongolia

Third Roads Development 15 Nov 20023990 600.0PP 97.4MON-

Crop Production 23 Jul 20013686 500.0PP 12.1MON-

Integrated Development of 
Basic Urban Services in 
Secondary Towns

19 Jul 20013685 700.0PP 29.5MON-

Housing Sector Finance 2 Mar 20003406 600.0PP 3.1MON-

Rural Finance 2 Feb 20003397 700.0PP 146.8MON-

Capacity Building for Energy 
Planning

17 Nov 19993299 700.0AD 6.1MON-

Policy Support in the Road 
Sector*

30 Sep 19993268 670.0AD 6.5MON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Housing Sector

19 Oct 19983090 800.0AD 16.3MON-

Improving Energy Authority's 
Billing and Collection System

10 Jun 19983029 450.0AD 26.9MON-
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Improving Accounting and 
Auditing Systems

23 Dec 19972964 688.0AD 150.9MON-

Program Preparation for 
Governance Reform

10 Dec 19972931 967.3PP 105.6MON-

Support for Decentralized 
Health Services

4 Nov 19972907 600.0AD 36.9MON-

Housing Sector Policy 
(Supplementary)

26 Mar 19982890 60.0AD 6.3MON-

Housing Sector Policy 8 Oct 19972890 150.0AD 0.0MON-

Capacity Building for the 
Provision of Urban Services in 
Provincial Towns

30 Sep 19972881 825.0AD 9.6MON-

Second Roads Development 22 Jul 19972827 500.0PP 19.8MON-

Agriculture Sector 
Development Program

27 Jun 19972819 492.0PP 59.9MON-

Institutional Strengthening in 
the Education Sector

19 Dec 19962719 950.0AD 65.1MON-

Strengthening the National 
Poverty Alleviation Program

7 Nov 19962683 422.0AD 26.5MON-

Ulaanbaatar Heat 
Rehabilitation

18 Jul 19962610 450.0PP 2.6MON-

Study of Extensive Livestock 
Production Systems

4 Jul 19962602 600.0AD 25.5MON-

Provincial Towns Basic Urban 
Services

7 Jun 19962582 600.0PP 15.1MON-

Health Sector Development 3 Oct 19952414 600.0PP 50.6MON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Civil Aviation Sector II*

5 Sep 19952391 592.0AD 98.1MON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Road Sector*

22 Aug 19952380 920.0AD 137.3MON-

Administrative Reform of 
Social Insurance

28 Jul 19952371 900.0AD 16.8MON-
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Strengthening Health 
Insurance

29 Dec 19942279 500.0AD 33.0MON-

Education Development 9 Dec 19942228 400.0PP 12.4MON-

Strengthening the 
Commercial Banking System

5 Dec 19942219 600.0AD 40.4MON-

Strengthening the 
Environmental Management 
Capability of the Ministry of 
Nature and Environment

24 Nov 19942208 574.0AD 73.0MON-

Agriculture Sector Program 
(Supplementary)

13 Jun 19952127 175.0PP 52.2MON-

Agriculture Sector Program 25 Jul 19942127 300.0PP 0.0MON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Agricultural Banking Services 
(Supplementary)

29 Mar 19962105 205.0AD 3.0MON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Agricultural Banking Services

20 Jun 19942105 300.0AD 0.0MON-

Accounting and 
Management Information 
Systems Tariff Reforms

16 Jun 19942102 599.0AD 136.4MON-

Sector Reform 16 Jun 19942101 588.0AD 39.5MON-

Power System Master Plan 
Study

6 Jun 19942095 595.0AD 7.5MON-

Strengthening State Strategic 
Planning and Coordination in 
the National Development 
Board

14 Mar 19942069 562.0AD 10.2MON-

Central Energy System 
Institutional and Tariff Study

27 Dec 19932035 500.0AD 1.5MON-

Institutional Enhancement 
for Employment Generation*

16 Dec 19932020 598.0AD 15.7MON-

State Privatization 
Commission

22 Nov 19931989 490.0AD 0.0MON-
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Institutional Strengthening of 
the Civil Aviation Sector and 
National Air Safety Plan

12 Oct 19931963 850.0AD 5.7MON-

Irrigation System 
Rehabilitation

13 May 19931886 500.0PP 0.0MON-

Road Master Plan and 
Feasibility Study

23 Dec 19921820 600.0PP 8.5MON-

Agricultural Processing, 
Storage and Distribution

17 Dec 19921808 400.0PP 3.2MON-

Human Resource 
Development and Education 
Reform

11 Dec 19921801 535.0AD 76.9MON-

Energy Audit, Efficiency, and 
Conservation Study

4 Sep 19921750 407.5AD 34.2MON-

Telecommunications 
Development Plan

1 Apr 19921686 600.0PP 2.8MON-

Egiin Hydropower* 9 Jan 19921653 1,400.0PP 0.9MON-

Restructuring and 
Development of the 
Industrial Sector*

29 Oct 19911586 635.0AD 2.1MON-

Summary for  Mongolia (47 TA projects)
Total 28,949.8

Nauru

Strengthening the Ministry of 
Finance and Supporting the 
Bureau of Statistics

14 Dec 20003584 300.0AD 245.4NAU-

Summary for  Nauru (1 TA project)
Total 300.0

Nepal

Capacity Building for Teacher 
Education

17 May 20023865 500.0AD 3.3NEP-

Community-Based Water 
Supply and Sanitation

13 Mar 20023844 750.0PP 14.0NEP-
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Agriculture Sector 
Performance Review

13 Nov 20003536 600.0AD 14.5NEP-

Second Secondary Education 
Sector

30 Oct 20003526 800.0PP 75.9NEP-

Strengthening the National 
Statistical System

1 Jun 20003451 770.0AD 272.0NEP-

Urban Environmental 
Improvement

23 Dec 19993364 750.0PP 16.1NEP-

Ecotourism 10 Dec 19993332 500.0PP 50.0NEP-

Basic Education 5 Jul 19993217 600.0PP 11.6NEP-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Kathmandu Metropolitan City

16 Apr 19993185 450.0AD 25.1NEP-

Watershed Rehabilitation and 
Management

15 Dec 19983121 600.0PP 276.2NEP-

Crop Diversification 1 Oct 19983080 500.0PP 58.2NEP-

Small Towns Water Supply 
and Sanitation

20 Aug 19983059 600.0PP 5.3NEP-

Institutional Reforms in the 
Agriculture Sector

17 Apr 19983008 900.0AD 3.1NEP-

Urban Water Supply Reforms 
in Kathmandu Valley

16 Mar 19982998 800.0AD 10.6NEP-

Fourth Road Improvement 24 Dec 19972969 775.0PP 12.2NEP-

Rural Electrification and 
Distribution Improvement

14 Nov 19972911 450.0AD 5.2NEP-

Supporting Agriculture 
Statistics Development

9 Sep 19972861 400.0AD 35.7NEP-

Rural Finance 6 Aug 19972836 500.0PP 97.4NEP-

Capital Market Development 
II

31 Jul 19972834 596.0PP 4.1NEP-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of Civil 
Aviation

23 Jan 19972749 500.0AD 25.5NEP-

Tourism Sector Development 11 Nov 19962685 600.0AD 46.7NEP-
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Implementation and 
Monitoring of the 
Agriculture Perspective Plan

25 Jul 19962618 850.0AD 9.7NEP-

Power System Masterplan 23 Jul 19962614 600.0AD 3.1NEP-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Nepal Electric Authority's 
Environment Division*

23 Jul 19962613 534.0AD 92.1NEP-

Community Groundwater 
Irrigation Sector

13 Jun 19962589 600.0PP 12.3NEP-

Institutional Strengthening 
for Rural Infrastructure 
Development

18 Apr 19962556 500.0AD 2.7NEP-

Capacity Building in the 
Department of Irrigation

11 Jan 19962522 600.0AD 29.0NEP-

Employment Promotion and 
Training

26 Dec 19952513 550.0PP 158.2NEP-

Efficiency Enhancement of 
Customs Operations

7 Dec 19952459 883.0AD 3.0NEP-

Institutional Strengthening in 
Rural Energy Planning and 
Implementation

6 Jun 19952342 400.0AD 0.6NEP-

Fourth Rural Water Supply 
and Sanitation

1 Jun 19952340 171.0PP 45.4NEP-

Strengthening 
Interministerial Capabilities 
for Implementing 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment Guidelines

15 Dec 19942244 500.0AD 21.7NEP-

Second Tourism Development 19 Aug 19942140 460.0PP 33.2NEP-

Third Livestock Development 4 Aug 19942129 562.0PP 18.4NEP-

Second Irrigation Sector 28 Jun 19942115 500.0PP 4.6NEP-

Environmental Monitoring 
and Management of the East 
Rapti Irrigation

26 Oct 19931969 222.0AD 4.9NEP-
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Group Formation and 
Training of Women 
Beneficiaries* 
(Suppplementary)

18 Aug 20001903 200.0AD 72.2NEP-

Group Formation and 
Training of Women 
Beneficiaries*

24 Jun 19931903 900.0AD 0.0NEP-

Irrigation Management 
Transfer

10 Dec 19901435 245.0PP 6.6NEP-

Preparation of a Livestock 
Sector Master Plan

5 Dec 19901431 363.0AD 2.6NEP-

Secondary Education 
Development

19 Sep 19901376 300.0PP 81.4NEP-

Institutional Support for 
Distribution Planning and 
Commercial Operations in 
Nepal Electric Authority*

11 Jan 19901267 780.0AD 80.2NEP-

Road and Road Transport 
Institutional Development

9 Nov 19891216 875.0AD 116.5NEP-

Agricultural Research Study* 27 Jul 19891182 500.0AD 55.8NEP-

Rajapur Irrigation 
Rehabilitation 
(Supplementary)

7 May 19931098 10.5PP 2.6NEP-

Rajapur Irrigation 
Rehabilitation 
(Supplementary)

5 Sep 19911098 30.0PP 0.0NEP-

Rajapur Irrigation 
Rehabilitation

29 Dec 19881098 456.0PP 0.0NEP-

Livestock Sector Study 22 Dec 19881094 334.0AD 21.0NEP-

Second Industrial Sector 
Study

19 Oct 19881047 525.0AD 5.3NEP-

Upper Sagarmatha 
Integrated Rural Development

11 Aug 19881026 362.0PP 74.6NEP-
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Summary for  Nepal (47 TA projects)
Total 26,753.5

Pakistan

Early Childhood Development 5 Nov 20023975 500.0PP 61.7PAK-

Reproductive Health 29 Dec 19993387 300.0PP 0.2PAK-

North West Frontier Province 
Urban Development

12 Dec 19972940 950.0PP 3.4PAK-

Rural Microfinance 12 Dec 19972937 600.0PP 18.2PAK-

Quetta Water Supply and 
Environmental Improvement

5 Dec 19972928 900.0PP 42.1PAK-

Reform of Pension and 
Provident Funds

15 Sep 19972867 600.0AD 29.4PAK-

Reform of the Insurance 
Industry

15 Sep 19972866 700.0AD 53.4PAK-

Restructuring of Public Sector 
Mutual Funds

15 Sep 19972865 800.0AD 216.2PAK-

Malakand Rural Development 8 Jul 19962604 700.0PP 66.6PAK-

Dera Ghazi Khan Rural 
Development

10 Jun 19962585 600.0PP 20.1PAK-

Women's Health 4 Jun 19962577 500.0PP 2.4PAK-

Public-Private Partnership in 
Health Study

31 May 19962576 450.0AD 10.6PAK-

Second Flood Protection 
Sector

30 Apr 19962562 800.0PP 101.1PAK-

Nonformal Education for 
Rural Women

23 Mar 19962547 600.0PP 78.5PAK-

Capital Market Development* 7 Sep 19952393 865.0AD 44.3PAK-

Secondary Science Education 6 Jul 19952358 450.0PP 20.4PAK-

Bahawalpur Division Area 
Development

9 May 19952327 600.0PP 1.1PAK-

Implementation of National 
Conservation Strategy

29 Dec 19942276 850.0AD 23.4PAK-
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The Karachi Electric Supply 
Corporation Limited (KESC) 
Restructuring and 
Privatization Study*

22 Sep 19942162 300.0AD 59.5PAK-

Second Primary Education for 
Girls

19 Aug 19942142 250.0PP 24.6PAK-

Second Urban Water Supply 
and Sanitation

3 Dec 19932006 500.0PP 10.4PAK-

Institutional Development of 
the Ministry of Population 
Welfare*

2 Dec 19932005 700.0AD 56.3PAK-

Northwest Canal Remodelling 16 Aug 19931927 1,300.0PP 48.2PAK-

Second Highways* 5 Nov 19921779 250.0PP 0.0PAK-

Third Farm-to-Market Roads* 5 Nov 19921778 250.0PP 0.0PAK-

Punjab Irrigation Water 
Conservation (Sector)

20 Oct 19921768 600.0PP 41.6PAK-

Third Urban Development 1 Oct 19921762 600.0PP 0.0PAK-

Punjab Rural Water Supply 
Sector

23 Jul 19921736 490.0PP 122.0PAK-

Cholistan Development 17 Jul 19921733 350.0PP 0.0PAK-

Pehur High-Level Canal 3 Jun 19921709 745.0PP 3.6PAK-

Lower Secondary Education 3 Apr 19921687 300.0PP 1.3PAK-

Strengthening Environmental 
Management for Water 
Resources Development*

17 Dec 19911629 1,000.0AD 175.5PAK-

Hydrocarbon Sector Strategy 
Study

20 Nov 19911616 600.0AD 0.0PAK-

Restoration and 
Improvement of the 
Marala–Ravi Link System

23 Oct 19911582 1,150.0PP 34.4PAK-

Education Program for 
Technical Education and 
Vocational Training

26 Dec 19901460 160.0AD 37.2PAK-



TA No. TA Title
TA 
Type

JSF Grant
($'000)

ADB 
Approval

Undisbursed
($'000)

Table A3.1: Financially Closed Technical Assistance Projects (as of 31 December 2004)

IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT ON JAPAN SPECIAL FUND GRANTS, 1988–2004

Appendix 3 81

Teacher Training 11 Oct 19901386 250.0PP 11.2PAK-

North West Frontier Province 
Barani Area Development

13 Jun 19901321 460.0PP 2.0PAK-

Fourth Health and Population 
(Manpower Development)

1 Jun 19901314 100.0PP 29.2PAK-

Strengthening of 
Environmental Management 
in Pakistan

21 Dec 19891266 600.0AD 27.8PAK-

Restructuring the Investment 
Promotion Bureau

22 Dec 19891259 350.0AD 61.9PAK-

Infrastructure Needs 
Assessment*

19 Dec 19891249 600.0AD 53.3PAK-

Urban Financial Management 
and Accounting Study*

19 Dec 19891248 700.0AD 145.8PAK-

Institution Building of the 
Corporate Law Authority and 
Study of the Mutual Fund

12 Dec 19891236 310.0AD 40.5PAK-

Chashma Right Bank 
Irrigation (Stage III)

7 Jul 19891173 575.0PP 56.5PAK-

Forestry Sector Master Plan 22 Jun 19891170 500.0AD 0.0PAK-

National Mineral Exploration 
Study

16 Jun 19891167 390.0AD 23.7PAK-

Seed Industry Development 25 Apr 19891149 350.0PP 47.1PAK-

Disinvestment Strategy on 
Public Enterprise*

13 Dec 19881085 240.0AD 5.1PAK-

Regional Industrial Potential* 13 Dec 19881084 296.0AD 81.5PAK-

Second Oil and Gas 
Development

1 Dec 19881078 315.0PP 106.1PAK-

Provincial Roads* 8 Nov 19881055 250.0PP 0.0PAK-
Summary for  Pakistan (51 TA projects)

Total 27,596.0

Papua New Guinea

Health Sector Review 6 Nov 20013762 250.0AD 30.4PNG-
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Southern Road Maintenance 
and Upgrading

11 Sep 20013717 400.0PP 60.6PNG-

Community Water Transport 21 Dec 20003615 580.0PP 24.2PNG-

Coastal Fisheries 
Management and 
Development

20 Dec 20003604 340.0PP 15.3PNG-

Agro-Industry Development 14 Nov 20003545 500.0PP 138.4PNG-

Road Asset Management 
System in the Provinces

28 Dec 19993378 581.0AD 47.1PNG-

Rehabilitation of the 
Navigation Aids System

1 Feb 19993162 500.0PP 0.8PNG-

Road Upgrading and 
Maintenance

2 Jul 19983037 750.0PP 45.9PNG-

Road Asset Management 
System

3 Apr 19983004 1,000.0AD 72.1PNG-

Skills Development 9 Jan 19982981 500.0PP 98.2PNG-

Financial Management 
(Supplementary)

5 May 19982962 72.5PP 0.0PNG-

Financial Management 12 Dec 19972962 150.0PP 0.0PNG-

Labor, Employment, and 
Skills Development Policy 
Agenda

11 Dec 19962703 494.0AD 87.2PNG-

Development of a Cost 
Accounting System for the 
Department of Works

21 Dec 19942255 380.0AD 51.3PNG-

Education Resources Study 20 Sep 19942158 340.0AD 124.6PNG-

National Health Plan 
Development (Supplementary)

27 Feb 19962103 125.0AD 52.1PNG-

National Health Plan 
Development

16 Jun 19942103 450.0AD 0.0PNG-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of Fisheries 
and Marine Resources

16 Dec 19932022 883.0AD 22.0PNG-
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Environmentally Sustainable 
Management of Coastal and 
Marine Resources

22 Nov 19931990 599.0AD 33.2PNG-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Women's Division of the 
Department of Home Affairs 
and Youth

8 Dec 19921798 575.0AD 202.6PNG-

Agricultural Research and 
Extension (Phase II)*

29 Oct 19911587 436.0PP 14.9PNG-

Third Urban Water Supply 
and Sewerage

10 Dec 19901437 587.0PP 103.8PNG-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Department of Trade and 
Industry*

9 Aug 19901350 550.0AD 6.1PNG-

Improvement of National 
Accounts

26 Dec 19891261 460.0AD 65.4PNG-

Agriculture Sector Program 
Implementation and 
Strengthening of Department 
of Agriculture and Livestock's 
Farm Management 
Information System

12 Dec 19891240 500.0AD 101.3PNG-

Agricultural Credit and Rural 
Savings Study

12 Dec 19891239 340.0AD 128.9PNG-

Industrial Standards and 
Quality Control

7 Sep 19891204 250.0PP 2.1PNG-

Health Sector Financing 21 Dec 19881091 361.0AD 49.3PNG-

Second Ports Development 2 Dec 19881077 350.0PP 48.0PNG-
Summary for  Papua New Guinea (27 TA projects)

Total 13,303.5

Philippines

Microfinance for Rural 
Development

19 Dec 20013814 560.0PP 104.2PHI-

Rural Electrification 10 Oct 20003516 600.0PP 0.7PHI-
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Grains Policy and Institutional 
Reforms*

24 Apr 20003429 630.0AD 34.5PHI-

Strengthen Export 
Competitiveness

17 Dec 19993345 1,000.0AD 19.7PHI-

Consumer Impact 
Assessment*

16 Dec 19983127 720.0AD 60.2PHI-

Study of Electricity Pricing 
and Regulatory Practice in a 
Competitive Environment*

16 Dec 19983126 600.0AD 31.4PHI-

Decentralization of Basic 
Education Management

11 Dec 19983115 798.0AD 0.1PHI-

Mindanao Urban Planning 
and Basic Services Sector

27 May 19983021 1,000.0PP 37.1PHI-

Transport Infrastructure and 
Capacity Development

24 Dec 19972968 1,000.0PP 86.2PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of Social 
Welfare and Development

15 Aug 19972843 577.0AD 14.1PHI-

Southern Philippines 
Irrigation Sector

13 Aug 19972841 600.0PP 38.9PHI-

Gas Sector Policy and 
Regulatory Framework

22 Jul 19972826 592.0AD 44.0PHI-

Clark Area Municipal 
Development

10 Jun 19972807 600.0PP 2.5PHI-

Pasig River Environmental 
and Management 
Rehabilitation

29 May 19972803 800.0PP 6.0PHI-

Mindanao Basic Education 
Development

19 May 19972794 370.0PP 76.1PHI-

Agrarian Reform 
Communities Development

12 Mar 19972767 253.0PP 73.9PHI-
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Institutional Capacity 
Building for Policy 
Formulation, Planning, 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
for the Agriculture Sector

24 Dec 19962733 976.0AD 76.1PHI-

Grains Sector Development 
Program

18 Dec 19962717 848.0PP 193.0PHI-

Leyte–Mindanao 
Interconnection Engineering

30 Sep 19962653 575.0PP 77.2PHI-

Privatization of Department 
of Public Works and 
Highways Equipment and 
Workshops*

30 Sep 19962652 825.0AD 15.2PHI-

Second Technical and 
Vocational Education

16 Aug 19962627 480.0PP 4.2PHI-

Evaluation of Environmental 
Standards for Selected 
Industrial Sectors

30 Jul 19962623 400.0AD 22.5PHI-

Infrastructure Improvement 
of Subic Bay Area 
Municipalities

6 Jun 19962581 800.0PP 6.1PHI-

Second Airports 24 Apr 19962559 600.0PP 28.7PHI-

Strengthening Rural 
Microenterprise Finance

23 Apr 19962558 600.0AD 1.7PHI-

Private Sector Participation in 
Urban Development

22 Dec 19952502 500.0AD 33.1PHI-

Strengthening Hospital 
Standards, Licensing and 
Regulation*

17 Oct 19952423 450.0AD 10.6PHI-

Sustaining Health of the 
Working-Age Population

30 Jun 19952354 575.0AD 207.2PHI-

Early Child Development 25 Apr 19952323 600.0PP 122.2PHI-

Water Supply Improvement 
Study

27 Dec 19942263 582.0PP 7.4PHI-
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Fisheries Sector Development 14 Dec 19942236 550.0PP 5.6PHI-

Biodiversity Conservation and 
National Integrated Protected 
Areas

13 Dec 19942234 600.0AD 46.6PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Civil Aviation Sector

24 Nov 19942207 592.0AD 163.7PHI-

Preparation of a Second 
Secondary Education 
Development (Supplementary)

5 Dec 19952143 200.0PP 65.6PHI-

Preparation of a Second 
Secondary Education 
Development

24 Aug 19942143 400.0PP 0.0PHI-

Western Visayas Agro-
Industrial Development

23 Jun 19942109 822.3PP 53.3PHI-

Goal-Oriented Project 
Planning (ZOPP) Applications 
for Strengthening 
Community and Local 
Government Participation

21 Apr 19942081 600.0AD 0.1PHI-

Integrated Pest Management 
for Highland Vegetables

15 Dec 19932019 600.0AD 14.8PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Local Water Utilities 
Administration and Water 
Districts*

25 Nov 19931995 590.0AD 4.8PHI-

Long-Term Power System 
Planning Study

20 Oct 19931966 600.0AD 155.5PHI-

Implementation of the Local 
Government Code in the 
Health Sector

16 Aug 19931931 300.0AD 74.3PHI-

Second Highland Agriculture 
Development

26 Jul 19931915 550.0PP 88.6PHI-

Mineral Sector Study 27 May 19931894 520.0AD 41.0PHI-

Integrated Community 
Health Services

19 May 19931891 541.0PP 132.3PHI-
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Second Irrigation Systems 
Improvement

11 May 19931882 600.0PP 3.6PHI-

Development of a Gender-
Disaggregated Data Base 
System

24 Dec 19921823 220.0AD 21.2PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Cooperatives*

22 Dec 19921810 600.0AD 0.0PHI-

Improving the 
Implementation of 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment

27 Dec 19911632 300.0AD 2.1PHI-

Rural Credit* 28 Nov 19911617 640.0PP 104.1PHI-

Integrated Agriculture 
Infrastructure and Support 
Services (Supplementary)

1 Mar 19931526 28.5PP 41.8PHI-

Integrated Agriculture 
Infrastructure and Support 
Services

21 Jun 19911526 495.0PP 0.0PHI-

Western Visayas 
Development Master Plan 
Study

19 Mar 19911496 1,336.0PP 113.2PHI-

Kabulnan Irrigation and Area 
Development

3 Dec 19901427 600.0PP 164.1PHI-

Vehicular Emission Control 
Planning in Metro Manila*

8 Nov 19901414 830.0AD 0.0PHI-

Provincial Road Passenger 
Transport Study and 
Monitoring*

8 Nov 19901413 590.0AD 4.1PHI-

Road Classification Study* 8 Nov 19901412 760.0AD 99.8PHI-

Livestock Sector Program 15 Mar 19901278 600.0PP 169.7PHI-

Umiray–Angat Transbasin 
Study

19 Feb 19901270 1,267.0PP 15.0PHI-

Mindanao Smallholder 
Development

29 Jan 19901269 333.0PP 54.1PHI-
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Cebu Water Supply - Phase II 29 Jan 19901268 670.0PP 0.0PHI-

Urban Development 26 Dec 19891265 550.0PP 0.0PHI-

Mangrove Development 20 Nov 19891225 600.0PP 48.7PHI-

Horticulture Sector 
Development

20 Nov 19891224 350.0PP 47.3PHI-

Non-Formal Education 12 Oct 19891212 320.0PP 45.7PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Fisheries Sector*

26 Sep 19891208 900.0AD 21.9PHI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
National Irrigation 
Administration

27 Jun 19891171 350.0AD 68.7PHI-

Irrigation Systems 
Improvement (Detailed 
Engineering)

1 Jun 19891162 400.0PP 0.3PHI-

Improvement of SMI 
Development Policies and 
Programs*

19 Jan 19891114 150.0AD 15.0PHI-

Training for Staff of 
Participating Financial 
Institutions*

19 Jan 19891113 50.0AD 8.0PHI-

Strengthening of IGLF 
Administration*

19 Jan 19891112 150.0AD 56.6PHI-

Bicol River Basin Flood 
Control and Irrigation

8 Dec 19881087 1,650.0PP 6.0PHI-

Community Mobilization and 
Development*

3 Nov 19881054 100.0AD 20.8PHI-

Power Sector Cost Structure 
and Transfer Pricing Study*

27 Oct 19881050 230.0AD 4.4PHI-

Feeder Ports 2 Aug 19881020 500.0PP 66.4PHI-

Telecommunications Sector 18 Jul 19881012 880.0AD 29.2PHI-

Development of Rattan 
Plantations*

28 Jun 19880996 250.0PP 83.1PHI-
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Formulation of a 
Comprehensive Scheme for 
the Promotion of Commercial 
and Industrial Tree 
Plantations*

28 Jun 19880995 206.0PP 31.9PHI-

Rationalization of Wood-
Based Industry*

28 Jun 19880994 350.0AD 98.3PHI-

Master Plan for Forestry 
Development*

28 Jun 19880993 395.0AD 0.0PHI-

Strengthening Department of 
Environment and Natural 
Resources's System for 
Selection, Appraisal, and 
Monitoring of Forestation 
Projects*

28 Jun 19880992 677.0AD 104.8PHI-

Summary for  Philippines (78 TA projects)
Total 45,903.8

Samoa

Capacity Building in Urban 
Planning and Management

11 Dec 20003566 500.0AD 8.7SAM-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Government Financial 
Institutions

19 Feb 19982989 950.0AD 57.0SAM-

Strengthening Capacity for 
Macroeconomic Analysis 
Planning and Policy 
Formulation

2 Feb 19982985 960.0AD 28.7SAM-

Implementation of the 
Privatization Strategy

7 May 19972788 600.0AD 49.5SAM-

Integrated Urban 
Development

18 Dec 19952480 552.0PP 79.7SAM-

Institutional Support and 
Power Development for the 
Study of Electric Power 
Corporation

27 Dec 19942267 350.0PP 31.1SAM-
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Industrial Center 
Development

10 Nov 19942203 250.0PP 21.0SAM-

Database for Gender-
Disaggregated Statistics

20 Jul 19942124 100.0AD 32.1SAM-

Upgrading Planning 
Capabilities in the Planning 
Office of the Treasury 
Department

23 Dec 19932030 270.0AD 101.7SAM-

Implementation of 
Privatization Exercises

24 Dec 19911631 320.0AD 22.5SAM-

Rehabilitation of 
Development Bank of 
Western Samoa

25 Oct 19901399 203.0AD 42.7SAM-

Strengthening Planning, 
Program Budgeting and 
Project Monitoring Systems

30 May 19901302 590.0AD 15.2SAM-

Privatization of Selected 
State-Owned Enterprises*

28 Nov 19891234 365.0AD 50.2SAM-

Implementation of the 
Agriculture Development 
Program*

28 Nov 19891233 310.0AD 20.8SAM-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Department of Posts and 
Telecommunications*

1 Jun 19891163 460.0AD 4.3SAM-

Summary for  Samoa (15 TA projects)
Total 6,780.0

Solomon Islands

Population and Family Health 
Improvement

22 Apr 19942083 350.0PP 93.1SOL-

Detailed Design of Komarindi 
Hydropower

10 Aug 19901352 1,300.0PP 212.6SOL-

Summary for  Solomon Islands (2 TA projects)
Total 1,650.0
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Sri Lanka

Aquatic Resources 
Development and Quality 
Improvement

19 Mar 20013639 800.0PP 73.1SRI-

Postsecondary Education 
Modernization

19 Dec 20003598 500.0PP 68.9SRI-

Plantation Development 18 Dec 20003594 800.0PP 73.8SRI-

Secondary Towns Water 
Supply and Sanitation

15 Dec 20003587 1,000.0PP 45.9SRI-

Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development

11 Dec 20003578 400.0AD 7.7SRI-

Southern Province Rural 
Economic Advancement

29 Dec 19993385 800.0PP 7.8SRI-

Port of Colombo South 
Harbor Development

13 Oct 19993276 1,460.0PP 25.5SRI-

Sustainable Natural Resource 
Management for 
Development

6 Oct 19993271 800.0AD 11.0SRI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Ministry of Provincial 
Councils and Local 
Government

24 Sep 19993263 470.0AD 65.8SRI-

Power Sector Restructuring 23 Dec 19983141 1,000.0PP 37.6SRI-

Reengineering of Road Sector 
Institutions

8 Dec 19983110 640.0AD 0.7SRI-

Private Sector Development 
Program

23 Sep 19983075 830.0PP 134.6SRI-

Improving Education Planning 23 Sep 19983073 800.0AD 15.1SRI-

Skills Development 24 Jul 19983051 600.0PP 214.5SRI-

Forest Resource Management 20 Jul 19983047 800.0PP 33.7SRI-

Coastal Resource 
Management

25 Jun 19983034 850.0PP 24.9SRI-

Western River Basins Sector 11 Jun 19983030 1,500.0PP 68.2SRI-
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Establishing the Sri Lanka 
Tender Support Bureau

12 Dec 19972950 1,000.0AD 8.2SRI-

Biodiversity Conservation 12 Dec 19972942 800.0PP 5.3SRI-

Second Provincial Roads 
Improvement

30 Oct 19972904 1,000.0PP 14.2SRI-

Southern Transport Corridor 9 Oct 19972892 1,000.0PP 82.0SRI-

Privatization of Extension 
Services for Perennial Crops

25 Sep 19972877 550.0PP 11.5SRI-

Urban Development and Low-
Income Housing

8 May 19972791 1,100.0PP 170.1SRI-

Second Smallholder Tea 
Development

24 Apr 19972784 600.0PP 24.9SRI-

Institutional Strengthening 
for Environmental Impact 
Assessment

10 Mar 19972765 600.0AD 38.2SRI-

Upper Watershed 
Management

25 Jul 19962619 600.0PP 96.0SRI-

Rural Water Supply and 
Sanitation Sector

17 Jul 19962609 600.0PP 71.0SRI-

Perennial Crops and Seed 
Project

11 Jul 19962608 600.0PP 82.1SRI-

Study on Financing of Social 
Services

9 Nov 19952441 350.0AD 24.0SRI-

Tree Crop Plantation and 
Monitoring*

9 Nov 19952438 400.0AD 9.7SRI-

Institutional Strengthening 
for Comprehensive Water 
Resources Management

12 Oct 19952422 1,570.0AD 67.6SRI-

Establishment of a Credit 
Rating Agency

30 Jun 19952355 261.0PP 172.4SRI-

Southern Provincial Roads 
Improvement

24 May 19952335 600.0PP 6.1SRI-

Scientific and Technical 
Personnel Development

3 Jan 19952278 400.0PP 37.4SRI-
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Area Development Project in 
the North Central Region

2 Dec 19942217 600.0PP 20.4SRI-

Industrial Sector Policy Review 21 Sep 19942161 345.0AD 21.6SRI-

Quarry Industry Study 15 Sep 19942153 430.0AD 71.1SRI-

Road Safety Study 15 Sep 19942152 800.0AD 72.4SRI-

Road Network Improvement 15 Sep 19942151 700.0PP 0.0SRI-

Development of an 
Institutional and Regulatory 
Framework for the Leasing 
Industry

28 Jun 19942112 198.0AD 26.7SRI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
National Savings Banks

28 Jun 19942111 713.0AD 32.6SRI-

Institutional Assessment for 
Comprehensive Water 
Resources Management

30 Jul 19931918 188.0AD 84.2SRI-

Urban Development 18 Apr 19911508 600.0PP 9.6SRI-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Sri Lanka Telecommunication

18 Oct 19901388 460.0AD 18.8SRI-

Southern Province 
Development

13 Jul 19901337 410.0PP 46.8SRI-

Education Development 6 Jun 19901316 302.0PP 42.8SRI-

Institutional Review and 
Development of Ceylon 
Electricity Board*

31 May 19901309 700.0AD 0.0SRI-

Rural Electrification 
Development* 
(Supplementary)

10 Dec 19901307 55.0AD 67.4SRI-

Rural Electrification 
Development*

31 May 19901307 390.0AD 0.0SRI-

Second Health and 
Population

18 Apr 19901291 100.0PP 46.4SRI-

Agricultural Extension 
Services Rationalization

30 Oct 19891213 350.0PP 3.2SRI-
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Second Rural Credit 1 Sep 19891202 245.0PP 28.3SRI-

Sugar Sector Rationalization 16 Jun 19891166 387.0AD 72.7SRI-

Participatory Forestry 16 May 19891157 350.0PP 60.2SRI-

Rural Water Supply and 
Sanitation

25 Apr 19891150 600.0AD 23.4SRI-

Telecommunications 
Development Study

21 Jun 19880988 350.0PP 36.5SRI-

Summary for  Sri Lanka (55 TA projects)
Total 35,354.0

Tajikistan

Second Road Rehabilitation 11 Oct 20013738 600.0PP 30.4TAJ-

Introducing International 
Accounting Standards at 
Barki Tajik*

20 Dec 20003601 500.0AD 2.9TAJ-

Agriculture Rehabilitation 10 Oct 20003514 750.0PP 177.0TAJ-

Strategy for Improved Flood 
Management

5 Sep 20003495 550.0AD 113.7TAJ-

Flood Disaster Management* 2 Dec 19993319 205.0AD 32.8TAJ-

Power Sector Development 17 Jun 19993207 850.0PP 37.8TAJ-

Road Rehabilitation 1 Mar 19993168 840.0PP 106.2TAJ-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Transport and Energy 
Sectors

10 Dec 19983114 1,500.0AD 104.6TAJ-

Summary for  Tajikistan (8 TA projects)
Total 5,795.0

Thailand

Development of Agriculture 
Sector Strategy and Policy

20 Mar 20013643 250.0AD 61.3THA-

Education Sector Reforms 14 Dec 20003585 700.0AD 171.5THA-

Promotion of Market-Based 
Instruments for 
Environmental Management

5 May 19983013 605.0AD 68.1THA-
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Health Management and 
Financing Study

12 Mar 19982997 700.0AD 118.3THA-

Education Management and 
Financing Study*

12 Mar 19982996 700.0AD 2.7THA-

Capacity Building for Social 
Sector Reform

12 Mar 19982995 700.0AD 4.0THA-

Asset Securitization 19 Dec 19972957 410.0AD 5.7THA-

Strengthening Information 
Disclosure and Compliance*

19 Dec 19972956 440.0AD 17.8THA-

Pension and Provident Funds 
Reforms

19 Dec 19972955 1,150.0AD 40.9THA-

Strengthening Project Loan 
Appraisal and Risk 
Management of the Bank for 
Agriculture and Agricultural 
Cooperatives

19 Dec 19972953 600.0AD 4.3THA-

Border Towns Urban 
Development

27 Oct 19972903 800.0PP 38.8THA-

Rural Electrification and 
Systems Improvement

3 Oct 19972886 600.0PP 143.9THA-

Capacity Building for Waste 
Management Program 
Administration

27 Jun 19972820 300.0AD 0.7THA-

Khon Kaen Water Supply and 
Sanitation

4 Dec 19962698 550.0PP 3.7THA-

Northeast Region Water 
Supply and Sanitation

14 May 19962568 600.0PP 68.8THA-

Nonformal Secondary 
Education

23 Feb 19962537 400.0PP 16.7THA-

Strengthening National 
Financing and Cost Recovery 
Policies for the Wastewater 
Management Sector

21 Dec 19952499 600.0AD 4.9THA-
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Solid Waste Management 
Sector Plan

28 Jul 19952369 400.0PP 6.4THA-

Strengthening the 
Environmental Impact 
Assessment Review Process

26 Jun 19952351 600.0AD 2.0THA-

Bangkok Metropolitan 
Regional Wastewater 
Management Action Plan 
and Feasibility Study

24 Feb 19952303 600.0PP 4.3THA-

Songkhla and Phuket Port 
Development

28 Sep 19942173 600.0PP 6.2THA-

Higher Education 
Development

17 Jun 19942104 400.0PP 15.5THA-

Skills Development 22 Apr 19942082 484.0PP 18.4THA-

Wastewater Management 
and Pollution Control in 
Samut Prakarn

14 Dec 19932014 600.0PP 2.2THA-

Telecommunications 
Restructuring and 
Privatization

29 Apr 19931877 600.0AD 2.7THA-

Distributor Road Development 24 Nov 19921793 250.0PP 0.0THA-

Establishment of an 
Environment Unit in Public 
Works Department*

24 Nov 19921792 250.0AD 27.3THA-

Environmental Rehabilitation 18 Aug 19921741 350.0PP 1.5THA-

Study on Environmental 
Standards and Regulation for 
Hydrocarbon Exploration and 
Developoment*

2 Jul 19921727 250.0AD 3.0THA-

Assessment of Petroleum 
Authority of Thailand 's 
Business Strategies and 
Privatization Program*

2 Jul 19921726 450.0AD 1.7THA-

Small Towns Water Supply 2 Apr 19921685 585.0PP 4.9THA-
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Lower Chao Phya West Best 
Area Development

7 Dec 19891242 750.0PP 96.0THA-

Accelerated Water Supply 
and Sewerage

16 Jan 19891109 380.0AD 3.3THA-

Private Tree Farms 1 Sep 19881029 320.0AD 47.9THA-
Summary for  Thailand (34 TA projects)

Total 17,974.0

Timor-Leste, Democratic Republic of

Strengthening the 
Microfinance Policy and Legal 
Framework*

6 Dec 20003556 250.0AD 2.4TIM-

Formulating Strategies for 
Economic and Social 
Development

4 Oct 20003512 650.0AD 16.1TIM-

Summary for  Timor-Leste, Democratic Republic of (2 TA projects)
Total 900.0

Tonga

Institutional Strengthening of 
Tonga Trade*

12 Dec 19952467 600.0AD 12.3TON-

Power Development 29 Dec 19942275 100.0PP 5.0TON-

Institutional Development of 
the Ports Sector

28 Jun 19942114 400.0AD 69.6TON-

Road Cost Recovery and 
Safety Strategy

28 Jun 19942113 170.0AD 46.8TON-

Coordination of Women's 
Development Programs

8 Feb 19942058 99.0AD 57.2TON-

Improved Financial and 
Economic Management

14 Dec 19932017 565.0AD 4.0TON-

Agricultural Development 26 Oct 19931970 430.0PP 101.8TON-

Rationalization of the 
Coconut Industry

6 Sep 19911560 206.0AD 36.5TON-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Ministry of Finance

22 Feb 19901271 392.0AD 83.3TON-
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Summary for  Tonga (9 TA projects)
Total 2,962.0

Tuvalu

To Upgrade the Tuvalu 
Maritime Training Institute

11 Dec 20003565 250.0PP 122.9TUV-

Urban Planning and 
Environment Management

10 Apr 19952319 310.0AD 3.6TUV-

Transport Infrastructure 14 Dec 19942238 300.0PP 30.6TUV-

Institutional Strengthening of 
the Department of Planning 
and Statistics

18 Apr 19942079 326.0AD 5.6TUV-

Summary for  Tuvalu (4 TA projects)
Total 1,186.0

Uzbekistan

Capacity Building for Urban 
Water Supply*

27 Sep 20013729 600.0AD 15.4UZB-

Corporate Governance 
Reform Program

8 Dec 20003562 700.0PP 44.6UZB-

Urban Social Infrastructure 
Development

18 May 20003440 720.0PP 45.8UZB-

Interim Review of Senior 
Secondary Education System*

8 Feb 20003399 1,000.0AD 94.6UZB-

Rural Savings and Credit 
Union Development

9 Sep 19993254 600.0PP 51.2UZB-

Railway Modernization 6 Jul 19993218 450.0PP 4.3UZB-

Basic Education Staff 
Development

23 Apr 19993187 350.0PP 56.3UZB-

Institutional Strengthening 
and Policy Support to the 
Road Sector

15 Dec 19983118 1,000.0AD 593.9UZB-

Grain Productivity 
Improvement

10 Nov 19983094 800.0PP 6.6UZB-
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Institutional Strengthening of 
Uzbekistan Temir Yullari

15 Sep 19983068 850.0AD 51.8UZB-

Capacity Building in 
Education Finance

17 Dec 19972948 500.0AD 9.9UZB-

Strengthening Institutions 
Engaged in Environmental 
Protection

8 Sep 19972859 675.0AD 19.7UZB-

Agriculture Sector 
Development

19 May 19972798 1,075.0PP 79.1UZB-

Improving Aid Coordination 
and Management

18 Mar 19972771 600.0AD 6.5UZB-

Railways Development 28 Jan 19972754 600.0PP 41.2UZB-

Road Rehabilitation 4 Nov 19962676 600.0PP 58.2UZB-
Summary for  Uzbekistan (16 TA projects)

Total 11,120.0

Vanuatu

Capacity Building of the 
Legal Sector

21 Dec 20003613 330.0AD 27.4VAN-

Sanitation and Master Plan 
for Port Vila

27 Jun 19962597 360.0AD 25.5VAN-

Preparation of Population 
Policy and Action Plan

22 Dec 19942259 50.0AD 23.1VAN-

Strengthening the Office of 
Women's Affairs

21 Dec 19932026 50.0AD 19.5VAN-

Urban Infrastructure 13 Sep 19931952 536.0PP 42.1VAN-
Summary for  Vanuatu (5 TA projects)

Total 1,326.0

Viet Nam

Upper Secondary Education 
Development

7 Jun 20013670 600.0PP 29.9VIE-
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Strengthening the Planning 
Capacity of the Ministry of 
Agriculture and Rural 
Development

15 Dec 20003591 300.0AD 0.4VIE-

Low-Income Housing and 
Secondary Towns Urban 
Development Needs 
Assessment Study

30 Aug 20003487 500.0AD 29.8VIE-

Capacity Building for 
Prevention of Food-Borne 
Diseases

29 Aug 20003483 500.0AD 4.3VIE-

Provincial Roads Improvement 14 Jun 20003455 1,000.0PP 19.7VIE-

Central Region Poverty 
Reduction

18 Jan 20003392 824.0PP 10.6VIE-

State-Owned Enterprise 
Diagnostic Audits*

21 Dec 19993354 1,400.0AD 3.8VIE-

Improving National Accounts 
(Phase II)

8 Dec 19993330 500.0AD 136.7VIE-

Agriculture Sector Program 14 Jul 19993223 1,000.0PP 2.5VIE-

Se San 3 Hydropower 14 Jul 19993222 998.0PP 0.4VIE-

Rural Health 25 Sep 19983077 600.0PP 27.3VIE-

Capacity Building in 
Vocational and Technical 
Education

3 Sep 19983063 600.0AD 0.4VIE-

Second Red River Basin 
Water Resources Sector

22 Jul 19983050 600.0PP 33.7VIE-

Second Rural Credit 24 Feb 19982991 150.0PP 7.9VIE-

Teacher Training 24 Dec 19972970 600.0PP 17.0VIE-

Tree Crops Development 27 Nov 19972923 600.0PP 7.6VIE-

Commercialization of Power 
Companies

20 Oct 19972897 900.0AD 4.0VIE-

Improvement of the Power 
Sector Regulatory Framework

7 Oct 19972888 800.0AD 92.9VIE-
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Red River Basin Water 
Resources Management

19 Sep 19972871 1,150.0AD 130.1VIE-

Training for Rural 
Infrastructure Development

11 Aug 19972838 1,000.0AD 150.3VIE-

Ho Chi Minh City 
Environmental Improvement

7 May 19972790 600.0PP 21.6VIE-

Training of Government 
Officials

18 Dec 19962718 600.0AD 38.2VIE-

Hazardous Waste 
Management

12 Dec 19962704 600.0AD 0.8VIE-

Enterprise Reform 3 Dec 19962696 600.0PP 49.5VIE-

Lower Secondary Curriculum 
and Teacher Training Systems 
Development

20 Nov 19962690 1,000.0AD 147.0VIE-

Pilot Project to Modernize 
the Operation of a State-
Owned Commercial Bank

19 Nov 19962687 850.0AD 61.9VIE-

Technical Education Reform 25 Oct 19962671 800.0PP 6.5VIE-

Third Road Improvement 29 Aug 19962636 1,300.0PP 0.7VIE-

Rural Infrastructure Sector 28 Aug 19962635 600.0PP 198.8VIE-

Red River Waterways 24 Jul 19962615 600.0PP 68.2VIE-

Phouc Hoa Multipurpose 
Water Resources

31 May 19962575 600.0PP 9.9VIE-

Central and Southern Viet 
Nam Power Distribution

12 Dec 19952470 508.0PP 108.7VIE-

Capacity Building of Ministry 
of Fisheries*

16 Nov 19952444 1,000.0AD 71.1VIE-

Forestry Sector and 
Watershed Management

2 Oct 19952411 598.0PP 17.5VIE-

Coastal Aquaculture 
Development Study

23 Aug 19952382 600.0AD 31.3VIE-
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Capacity Building for 
Provincial Water Supply and 
Sanitation Planning and 
Management

17 Aug 19952375 700.0AD 12.8VIE-

Population and Family Health 15 Jun 19952348 415.0PP 44.5VIE-

Training in Distribution 
Planning*

8 Jun 19952346 247.0AD 28.8VIE-

Improvement of Financial 
and Accounting Systems of 
the Power Companies*

8 Jun 19952345 1,200.0AD 280.8VIE-

Computerized Management 
Information and Financial 
System for Saigon Port*

2 Mar 19952305 500.0AD 9.8VIE-

Rural Finance 4 Jan 19952286 586.0PP 151.1VIE-

Financial Sector Review 14 Dec 19942240 325.0PP 117.3VIE-

Capacity Building in the 
Water Resources Sector

13 Dec 19942233 1,350.0AD 28.6VIE-

Land Information System and 
Agricultural Taxation Study*

8 Dec 19942225 646.0AD 20.2VIE-

Rice Market Monitoring and 
Policy Options Study

8 Dec 19942224 832.0AD 1.7VIE-

Second Provincial Towns 
Water Supply and Sanitation

1 Sep 19942146 550.0PP 39.4VIE-

Financing of Social Services 12 Aug 19942135 575.0AD 0.0VIE-

Strengthening Environmental 
Planning and Environmental 
Impact Assessment 
Capabilities

1 Aug 19942128 600.0AD 0.0VIE-

Improving National Accounts 13 Apr 19942084 700.0AD 43.6VIE-

Financial Markets 
Development

17 Feb 19942063 600.0AD 150.6VIE-

Ho Chi Minh City 
Environmental Improvement 
Planning

29 Dec 19932040 600.0AD 7.5VIE-
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Secondary Education 
Development

27 Dec 19932032 550.0PP 65.2VIE-

Ho Chi Minh City Water 
Supply Master Plan*

29 Nov 19932000 600.0AD 10.4VIE-

National Water Tariff Policy 
Study*

29 Nov 19931998 600.0AD 6.0VIE-

Second Road Improvement 
(Supplementary)

31 May 19951997 850.0PP 7.0VIE-

Second Road Improvement* 29 Nov 19931997 2,100.0PP 0.0VIE-

Operation and Maintenance 
Strengthening*

26 Oct 19931968 1,800.0AD 14.3VIE-

Development of Small-Scale 
Rural Credit

6 Oct 19931961 568.0AD 9.3VIE-

Summary for  Viet Nam (57 TA projects)
Total 42,972.0

Regional

Thirteenth Tax Conference 14 Jul 20036114 150.0REG 50.7REG-

Third Asia-Europe Meeting 
Seminar on Simplification 
and Harmonization of 
Customs Procedures

2 May 20036103 150.0REG 110.3REG-

Twelfth Tax Conference 8 Jul 20026041 100.0REG 21.8REG-

Capacity Building for 
Developing Member 
Countries on the World 
Trade Organization Trading 
System

4 Jun 20026035 450.0REG 141.7REG-

Capacity Building of Selected 
Credit Rating Agencies in Asia

17 Apr 20026029 150.0REG 8.8REG-
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Technical Training and 
Capacity Building in Support 
of the Association of 
Southeast Asian Nations 
(ASEAN) Economic 
Surveillance Process Phase II

21 Dec 20016019 200.0REG 98.5REG-

Facilitating Economic 
Cooperation in Eastern Parts 
of Inner Mongolia 
Autonomous Region, the 
People's Republic of China 
and Mongolia

19 Dec 20016015 500.0REG 9.8REG-

Third ADB-Organisation for 
Economic Cooperation and 
Development (OECD) 
Conference on Combating 
Corruption in the Asia-Pacific 
Region

24 Sep 20015999 150.0REG 3.9REG-

Youth- and Gender-Sensitive 
Public Expenditure 
Management in the Pacific

24 Sep 20015998 300.0REG 0.0REG-

Ten Years After Rio: 
Promoting Subregional 
Cooperation for Sustainable 
Development

13 Sep 20015996 200.0REG 56.6REG-

Eleventh ADB Tax Conference 9 Aug 20015993 150.0REG 11.7REG-

Information and 
Communication Technology 
Assessment in the Pacific

18 Jul 20015990 300.0REG 61.4REG-

Second Asia-Europe Meeting 
Seminar on Simplification 
and Harmonization of 
Customs Procedures

13 Mar 20015977 150.0REG 77.8REG-
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Strategic Study on 
Development Options for 
Economic Cooperation 
between the People's 
Republic of China and 
Mongolia in Eastern Parts of 
Inner Mongolia Autonomous 
Region, the PRC, and 
Mongolia

21 Dec 20005969 250.0REG 47.3REG-

Regional Power Transmission 
Modernization Project in 
Central Asian Republics

12 Dec 20005960 900.0REG 5.8REG-

Combating Trafficking of 
Women and Children in 
South Asia

14 Nov 20005948 440.0REG 23.8REG-

Regional Economic 
Cooperation in Central Asia 
(Phase II, Year Two)

2 Oct 20005942 420.0REG 95.3REG-

Strategies for Poverty 
Reduction through Urban 
Environmental Improvement

27 Sep 20005939 500.0REG 13.1REG-

Action Plans for Reducing 
Vehicle Emissions

26 Sep 20005937 900.0REG 2.3REG-

National Resettlement Policy 
Enhancement and Capacity 
Building

20 Sep 20005935 500.0REG 1.4REG-

Regulatory Systems and 
Networking of Water Utilities 
and Regulatory Bodies

19 Jul 20005922 500.0REG 36.8REG-

Tenth ADB Tax Conference 4 Jul 20005919 150.0REG 12.8REG-

Mekong/Lancang River 
Tourism Infrastructure 
Development

28 Dec 19995893 600.0REG 5.4REG-

Preventing HIV/AIDS among 
Mobile Populations in the 
Greater Mekong Subregion

16 Dec 19995881 450.0REG 0.0REG-
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Capacity Building Support to 
Nongovernment 
Organizations for Financial 
Resource Mobilization and 
Management

3 Dec 19995873 300.0REG 5.8REG-

External Forum on Gender 
and Development

19 Nov 19995868 150.0REG 5.8REG-

Capacity Building for 
Implementation of the Kyoto 
Protocol and the Clean 
Development Mechanism

1 Sep 19995861 200.0REG 0.6REG-

Ninth ADB Tax Conference 27 Aug 19995858 150.0REG 14.6REG-

Beijing Regional Review of 
Advancement of Women

9 Aug 19995854 100.0REG 19.0REG-

Rural Financial Systems 
Workshop in Central Asia

30 Jul 19995851 360.0REG 13.9REG-

Support for Education for All 
2000 Assessment

27 Apr 19995841 550.0REG 1.9REG-

Promotion of Cleaner 
Production Policies and 
Practices in Selected 
Developing Member 
Countries

20 Apr 19995840 600.0REG 48.1REG-

Asian Environmental Outlook 28 Dec 19985826 700.0REG 11.5REG-

Strengthening Safe 
Motherhood Programs

24 Dec 19985825 700.0REG 40.4REG-

Regional Study of Nutrition 
Trends, Policies and Strategy 
in Asia and Pacific

23 Dec 19985824 750.0REG 61.0REG-

Strengthening Commercial 
Banking Skills in Transition 
Economies in Asia

22 Dec 19985821 970.0REG 270.5REG-

Regional Economic 
Cooperation in Central Asia 
(Phase II)

11 Dec 19985818 1,350.0REG 128.9REG-
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ASEM Seminar on 
Simplification and 
Harmonization of Customs 
Procedures

4 Nov 19985814 148.0REG 94.7REG-

Third Agriculture and Natural 
Resources Research at 
Consultative Group on 
International Agricultural 
Research Centers

22 Oct 19985812 5,600.0REG 27.2REG-

Study on the Development of 
Government Bond Markets in 
Selected DMCs

6 Oct 19985809 740.0REG 198.0REG-

Tourism Skills Development 
in the Greater Mekong 
Subregion

29 Sep 19985807 125.0REG 12.8REG-

Eighth Seminar on 
International Finance

24 Sep 19985806 106.0REG 19.6REG-

TA to the International Board 
for Soil Research and 
Management for the 
Catchment Approach to 
Managing Soil Erosion in Asia

13 Aug 19985803 1,300.0REG 19.7REG-

A Study of Corporate 
Governance and Financing in 
Selected DMCs

7 Aug 19985802 250.0REG 34.2REG-

Measurement of 
Environmental Performance

24 Jul 19985800 441.0REG 23.8REG-

Social Impact Assessment of 
the Financial Crisis in 
Selected DMCs

22 Jul 19985799 500.0REG 65.4REG-

Eighth ADB Tax Conference 14 Jul 19985796 200.0REG 36.1REG-

Insolvency Law Reform 13 Jul 19985795 550.0REG 0.0REG-

Study of the Health and 
Education Needs of Ethnic 
Minorities in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

30 Jun 19985794 300.0REG 34.4REG-
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Appropriate Technology for 
Soil-Conserving Farming 
Systems (Phase II)

25 Feb 19985784 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Strategic Environmental 
Framework for the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

23 Mar 19985783 600.0REG 31.4REG-

1998 Seminars on Project 
Implementation and 
Administration

20 Mar 19985782 650.0REG 0.0REG-

Strengthening the Capacity 
of the Association of 
Southeast Asian Nations 
(ASEAN) to Prevent and 
Mitigate Transboundary 
Atmospheric Pollution

24 Feb 19985778 1,000.0REG 2.7REG-

Seminar on Promotion of 
Foreign Direct Investment

25 Feb 19985777 150.0REG 3.0REG-

Study of Financial Markets in 
Selected Member Countries

6 Jan 19985770 973.0REG 217.3REG-

Banking, Capital Market, and 
International Competitiveness 
Reforms in Response to the 
Currency Turmoil

22 Dec 19975765 2,625.2REG 189.2REG-

Workshops on Economic 
Cooperation in Central Asia

14 Nov 19975760 344.0REG 49.7REG-

Seventh Seminar on 
International Finance

28 Oct 19975757 106.0REG 45.9REG-

Cross-Border Movement of 
Goods and People in the 
Greater Mekong Subregion

26 Aug 19975749 550.0REG 49.4REG-

Seventh ADB Tax Conference 19 Aug 19975747 150.0REG 19.0REG-

Mekong/Lancang River 
Tourism Planning Study

24 Jun 19975743 600.0REG 57.5REG-
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Chiang Rai–Kunming Road 
Improvement via Lao People's 
Democratic Republic

27 Feb 19975728 600.0REG 3.5REG-

Greater Mekong Subregion 
East-West Transport Corridor

11 Dec 19965710 3,000.0REG 75.5REG-

Regional Economic 
Cooperation in Central Asia

8 Nov 19965707 1,150.0REG 46.0REG-

Sixth Seminar on 
International Finance

9 Sep 19965705 106.0REG 1.3REG-

Sixth ADB Tax Conference 9 Sep 19965704 150.0REG 51.6REG-

Acid Raid Emission Reduction 
in Asia, Phase II

3 Sep 19965702 450.0REG 149.9REG-

Sociolegal Status of Women 
in Selected DMCs

30 Aug 19965700 450.0REG 4.1REG-

Strengthening Banking 
Capabilities in Transition 
Economies in Asia

27 Aug 19965699 885.0REG 125.2REG-

Environmental Cooperation 
in Northeast Asia

1 Aug 19965695 495.0REG 9.7REG-

Mitigation of Nonphysical 
Barriers to Cross-Border 
Movement of Goods and 
People

29 May 19965686 180.0REG 24.0REG-

Subregional Environmental 
Training and Institutional 
Strengthening in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

9 May 19965684 800.0REG 13.1REG-

Pacific Airlines Rationalization 22 Apr 19965682 600.0REG 17.3REG-

Cooperation in Employment 
Promotion and Training in 
the Greater Mekong 
Subregion

18 Apr 19965681 600.0REG 3.8REG-

Low-Income Women 
Entrepreneurs in Asia

18 Jan 19965670 600.0REG 6.5REG-
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Kyrgyz Republic and Xinjiang 
Uygur Autonomous Region 
Power Development Study

21 Dec 19955663 360.0REG 42.3REG-

Capacity Building for 
Environmental Law Training

15 Dec 19955658 600.0REG 12.6REG-

Greater Mekong Subregion-
Infrastructure Improvement: 
Ho Chi Minh City to Phnom 
Penh Highway

9 Nov 19955649 3,000.0REG 24.1REG-

Workshop on Demand Side 
Management in the Power 
Subsector

22 Jun 19955635 220.0REG 26.2REG-

Review of Microenterprise 
Development in Selected 
DMCs

1 Jun 19955634 300.0REG 4.0REG-

Fifth Seminar on 
International Finance

10 May 19955630 107.0REG 27.9REG-

Regional Workshop on Solar 
Power Generation Using 
Photovoltaic Technology

10 Apr 19955627 175.0REG 69.1REG-

Study of the Brunei 
Darussalam–Indonesia–Malay
sia–Philippines– East ASEAN 
Growth Area (BIMP-EAGA)

16 Mar 19955625 1,800.0REG 35.7REG-

Subregional Environmental 
Monitoring and Information 
System

9 Feb 19955622 1,000.0REG 10.0REG-

Regional Initiatives in Road 
Safety (Supplementary)

14 Nov 19975620 60.0REG 16.1REG-

Regional Initiatives in Road 
Safety

4 Jan 19955620 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Fifth Symposium on Tax 
Policy and Reforms

27 Dec 19945615 117.0REG 43.4REG-
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Issues Related to Private 
Sector Growth in the Health 
Sector in Asia

27 Dec 19945614 550.0REG 88.7REG-

Third Training Program on 
Taxation for Policymakers

27 Dec 19945613 30.0REG 4.7REG-

Pacific Airports Project Facility 21 Dec 19945610 600.0REG 39.8REG-

Preparation of an Energy 
Efficiency Reference for Asian 
Application

20 Dec 19945609 55.0REG 21.6REG-

Coconut Genetic Resources 
Marketing in Asia and the 
Pacific Region

29 Jul 19945590 800.0REG 1.5REG-

Fourth Seminar on 
International Finance

26 May 19945580 105.0REG 25.7REG-

Second Training Program on 
Taxation for Policymakers in 
DMCs

21 Dec 19935562 37.0REG 5.7REG-

Fourth Symposium on Tax 
Policy and Reforms in the 
Asia–Pacific Region

21 Dec 19935561 98.0REG 17.4REG-

Regional Study on the 
Dropout of Primary Students 
in South Asia

21 Dec 19935560 500.0REG 112.3REG-

Dissemination and Evaluation 
of Genetically Improved 
Tilapia Species in Asia

14 Dec 19935558 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Highway Development and 
Management Research

28 Oct 19935549 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Promoting Subregional 
Cooperation among 
Cambodia, the People's 
Republic of China, Lao 
People's Democratic 
Republic, Myanmar, 
Thailand, and Viet Nam 
(Supplementary)

30 Sep 19945535 500.0REG 0.0REG-
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Promoting Subregional 
Cooperation among 
Cambodia, the People's 
Republic of China, Lao 
People's Democratic 
Republic, Myanmar, 
Thailand, and Viet Nam

10 Jun 19935535 2,500.0REG 0.1REG-

Field-Testing True Potato 
Seed In the Lowland Tropics

24 May 19935533 433.0REG 0.0REG-

Third Seminar on 
International Finance

6 May 19935530 87.5REG 17.2REG-

Symposium on Population 
Policy and Economic 
Development: Lessons of 
Experience

11 Dec 19925523 95.0REG 20.1REG-

Study of Financial Sector 
Policies of Selected DMCs

28 Dec 19925519 590.0REG 30.5REG-

Legal Training in 
Development Law

16 Dec 19925516 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Economic Assessment of 
Environmental Impacts 
(Supplementary)

29 Dec 19955515 55.0REG 0.0REG-

Economic Assessment of 
Environmental Impacts

10 Dec 19925515 600.0REG 0.0REG-

Education of Women in Asia 4 Dec 19925513 500.0REG 27.5REG-

Training Program on 
Taxation for Policymakers in 
DMCs

3 Dec 19925511 27.9REG 5.9REG-

Third Symposium on Tax 
Policy and Reforms in the 
Asia-Pacific Region

30 Oct 19925509 85.0REG 30.9REG-

Second Training Seminar on 
International Finance

25 May 19925494 76.0REG 9.7REG-
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Regional Study of Financing 
Mechanisms for DMC 
Environmental Programs and 
Projects

3 Apr 19925491 500.0REG 80.1REG-

Second Seminars on 
Monetary and Fiscal Policy 
Issues at DMC Capitals

3 Apr 19925490 190.0REG 49.1REG-

Study on Technology 
Transfer and Development in 
DMCs

23 Dec 19915470 300.0REG 23.8REG-

Second Symposium on Tax 
Policy and Reforms in 
Asia–Pacific Region

4 Dec 19915469 75.8REG 7.9REG-

Second ADB–IFMP Training 
Seminar on Monetary and 
Fiscal Policies

4 Dec 19915468 369.3REG 33.4REG-

Environmental Information 
Systems in Selected DMCs

14 Nov 19915467 600.0REG 5.2REG-

Global Environmental Issues 2 Oct 19915463 600.0REG 85.1REG-

Mekong Geographical 
Information System for 
Natural Resource and 
Environmental Planning

16 Apr 19915441 600.0REG 12.8REG-

Training Seminar on 
International Finance

4 Apr 19915439 75.0REG 18.0REG-

Seminars on Monetary and 
Fiscal Policy Issues at DMC 
Capitals

13 Mar 19915435 120.0REG 24.0REG-

Symposium on Tax Policy and 
Reforms in Asia–Pacific 
Region

5 Dec 19905416 75.0REG 30.1REG-

ADB-IFMP Training Seminar 
on Monetary and Fiscal 
Policies

9 Oct 19905407 179.1REG 2.6REG-
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Training Seminar on 
Monetary and Fiscal Policies 
for Economic Development

23 Mar 19905374 65.6REG 9.6REG-

Round Table on 
Development Strategies

23 Aug 19885306 100.0REG 35.9REG-

Summary for  Regional (122 TA projects)
Total 66,427.4

Total 677,747.01,144 TA Projects

ADB = Asian Development Bank, AD = advisory, DMC = developing member country,
JSF = Japan Special Fund, PP = project preparatory, REG = regional, TA = technical assistance. 
*Attached to a loan project. 
Note: In determining the total number of TAs, supplementary TAs are not counted separately from the 
         original TAs.



TA No. TA Title
TA 
Type

JSF Grant
($'000)

ADB 
Approval

Table A3.2: Completed Technical Assistance Projects (as of 31 December 2004)

Appendix 3 115

Azerbaijan

Urban Water Supply and Sanitation 15 Nov 20013774 740.0PPAZE-
Summary for  Azerbaijan (1 TA project)

Total 740.0

Bangladesh

Agribusiness Development 4 Jul 20034139 650.0PPBAN-

Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development and Export Expansion 
Program

11 Jun 20023879 600.0PPBAN-

Second Participatory Livestock 
Development

31 May 20023876 500.0PPBAN-

Primary Education Sector Improvement 13 Nov 20013766 800.0PPBAN-

Road Network Improvement and 
Maintenance II

30 Oct 20013755 600.0PPBAN-

Northwest Road Corridor Development 29 Oct 20013753 150.0PPBAN-

Capacity Building of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and Selected 
Capital Market Institutions

9 Nov 20003533 850.0ADBAN-

Road Network Improvement and 
Maintenance

29 Sep 20003508 800.0PPBAN-

Regional Rail Traffic Enhancement 29 Aug 20003490 900.0PPBAN-

Corporatization of the Ashuganj Power 
Station

17 Dec 19993343 1,000.0ADBAN-

Summary for  Bangladesh (10 TA projects)
Total 6,850.0

Bhutan

Strengthening the Capacity of the Royal 
Monetary Authority and Royal Securities 
Exchange of Bhutan

23 Aug 20023905 334.0ADBHU-

Public Sector Resource Management 6 Oct 20003513 300.0ADBHU-
Summary for  Bhutan (2 TA projects)

Total 634.0
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Cambodia

Small- and Medium-Sized Enterprise 
Sector Development Program

22 Sep 20034179 500.0PPCAM-

Performance Management in the 
Education Sector

18 Apr 20023858 800.0ADCAM-

Rural Water Supply and Sanitation 23 Jul 20013688 700.0PPCAM-

Second Basic Health Services 3 May 20013653 700.0PPCAM-
Summary for  Cambodia (4 TA projects)

Total 2,700.0

China, People's Rep. of

Gansu Hydropower 27 Sep 20013730 950.0PPPRC-

Harbin Water Supply 12 Dec 20003571 720.0PPPRC-

Strengthening Urban Solid Waste 
Management

25 May 20003447 600.0ADPRC-

Capacity Building for Social Assessments 18 May 20003441 781.4ADPRC-

Urban Poverty Study 27 Dec 19993377 410.0ADPRC-

Rural Electricity Supply Study 26 Dec 19993369 700.0ADPRC-

Shanxi Air Quality Improvement* 7 Dec 19993325 700.0ADPRC-

Coalbed Methane Demonstration 1 Oct 19983081 600.0PPPRC-

TA Cluster: Promotion of Clean 
Technology

29 Sep 19983079 686.0ADPRC-

Hebei Zhanghewan Pumped Storage 18 Dec 19952477 512.0PPPRC-
Summary for  China, People's Rep. of (10 TA projects)

Total 6,659.4

Fiji Islands

Civil Aviation and Airports Improvement 28 Apr 20034099 710.0PPFIJ-

Rural Electrification 30 Oct 20023961 400.0PPFIJ-
Summary for  Fiji Islands (2 TA projects)

Total 1,110.0
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India

Strengthening Consumer and Stakeholder 
Communication for Madhya Pradesh 
Power Sector Reform

4 Nov 20023972 150.0ADIND-

Assam Power Sector Development 
Program

29 Oct 20023953 800.0PPIND-

Energy Efficiency Enhancement 21 Jun 20023885 600.0PPIND-

Legal Support for Madhya Pradesh Power 
Sector Reform

14 Jun 20023883 150.0ADIND-

Development of a Transfer Scheme for 
Madhya Pradesh Power Sector Reform

14 Jun 20023882 400.0ADIND-

Summary for  India (5 TA projects)
Total 2,100.0

Indonesia

Support to State Audit Reform 9 May 20034107 700.0PPINO-

Regional Power Transmission and 
Competitive Market Development

18 Dec 20013807 500.0PPINO-

Capacity Building for Decentralized 
Natural Resources Management*

26 Oct 20003523 775.0ADINO-

Implementing a Regulatory Framework 
for the Gas Industry

11 Dec 19972933 565.0ADINO-

Summary for  Indonesia (4 TA projects)
Total 2,540.0

Kazakhstan

Education Sector Development Strategy 16 Oct 20023939 600.0ADKAZ-

Capacity Building for Public Investment 
Programming

18 Dec 20003595 500.0ADKAZ-

Rural Water Supply Sector 12 Dec 20003572 600.0PPKAZ-

Comprehensive Medium-Term Poverty 
Reduction Strategy

23 Nov 20003550 830.0ADKAZ-

Improvement of the Road Sector 
Efficiency*

31 Oct 20003530 750.0ADKAZ-
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Summary for  Kazakhstan (5 TA projects)
Total 3,280.0

Kyrgyz Republic

Improvement of the Road Sector 
Efficiency*

31 Oct 20003531 440.0ADKGZ-

Institutional Strengthening for 
Community-Based Infrastructure Services*

8 Jun 20003452 650.0ADKGZ-

Community-Based Early Childhood 
Development

23 Mar 20003420 700.0PPKGZ-

Skills and Entrepreneurship Development 5 Oct 19983084 600.0PPKGZ-

Strengthening of Education Planning and 
Administration

29 Sep 19972879 930.0ADKGZ-

Summary for  Kyrgyz Republic (5 TA projects)
Total 3,320.0

Lao People's Dem. Rep.

Rural Finance Development 2 Jul 20034135 150.0PPLAO-

Tree Plantation for Livelihood 
Improvement

12 Dec 20013794 700.0PPLAO-

Roads for Rural Development 30 Oct 20013756 400.0PPLAO-

Capacity Building for Environment and 
Social Management in Energy and 
Transport

22 Oct 20013746 600.0ADLAO-

Northern Community-Managed Irrigation 
Sector

11 Sep 20013718 700.0PPLAO-

Capacity Building in Project Financial 
Management

25 Jan 20013626 400.0ADLAO-

Nam Ngum River Basin Development 14 Nov 20003544 850.0PPLAO-
Summary for  Lao People's Dem. Rep. (7 TA projects)

Total 3,800.0

Maldives

Regional Development (Phase II) 12 Jul 20023896 400.0PPMLD-
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Strengthening of the Public Accounting 
System

19 Dec 20013824 150.0PPMLD-

Enhancement of the Social Security 
System

12 Dec 20013797 150.0ADMLD-

Summary for  Maldives (3 TA projects)
Total 700.0

Micronesia, Federated States of

Economic Policy Reform and Management 2 Jun 19983024 1,500.0ADFSM-
Summary for  Micronesia, Federated States of (1 TA project)

Total 1,500.0

Mongolia

Second Health Sector 29 Oct 20013750 600.0PPMON-

Second Education Development 20 Dec 19993351 550.0PPMON-

Social Safety Net 31 Dec 19972978 985.0PPMON-
Summary for  Mongolia (3 TA projects)

Total 2,135.0

Nepal

Market Access and Productivity Growth 
for the Private Sector

30 Jun 20034133 400.0PPNEP-

Social Protection Study 21 Apr 20034097 250.0ADNEP-

Commercial Agriculture Development 28 Oct 20023949 700.0PPNEP-

Empowerment of Women 24 May 20023872 450.0PPNEP-

Optimizing Water Use in Kathmandu 
Valley

7 Aug 20013700 775.0ADNEP-

Second Rural Infrastructure Development 
(Supplementary)

23 Dec 20043625 30.0PPNEP-

Second Rural Infrastructure Development 25 Jan 20013625 800.0PPNEP-

Information and Communication 
Technology for Improved Financial 
Services Provision

14 Dec 20003581 565.0PPNEP-

Summary for  Nepal (7 TA projects)
Total 3,970.0
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Pakistan

Sustainable Livelihood in Barani Areas 2 Sep 20034167 400.0PPPAK-

Federally Administered Tribal Areas Rural 
Development

13 Nov 20023984 750.0PPPAK-

Southern Punjab Basic Urban Services 14 Dec 20013802 800.0PPPAK-
Summary for  Pakistan (3 TA projects)

Total 1,950.0

Papua New Guinea

Literacy is for Everyone 9 May 20034109 600.0PPPNG-

Health Sector Development Program 19 Dec 20024057 500.0PPPNG-

Gender and Population 21 Dec 20013827 500.0PPPNG-
Summary for  Papua New Guinea (3 TA projects)

Total 1,600.0

Philippines

Program to Accelerate Small and Medium 
Enterprise Financing

19 Dec 20024070 400.0PPPHI-

Integrated Coastal Resource Management 2 Aug 20013692 598.0PPPHI-

Rural Road Development 26 Oct 20003524 1,000.0PPPHI-

Air Emission Policy Studies 17 Dec 19983128 1,500.0ADPHI-
Summary for  Philippines (4 TA projects)

Total 3,498.0

Sri Lanka

Public Sector Resource Management 23 Aug 20023906 500.0PPSRI-

Rural Finance Sector Development 24 Aug 20013707 550.0PPSRI-

Integrating Cleaner Production into 
Industrial Development

25 Jan 20013624 800.0ADSRI-

Eastern Province Coastal Community 
Development

16 Aug 20003479 1,000.0PPSRI-

Summary for  Sri Lanka (4 TA projects)
Total 2,850.0
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Tajikistan

Water Resources Development and 
Rehabilitation

14 Jul 20034143 600.0PPTAJ-

Social Sector Development 16 Aug 20013704 950.0PPTAJ-

Improving Aid Coordination and External 
Debt Management

21 Dec 20003617 1,000.0ADTAJ-

Improving Barki Tajik's Billing and 
Collection System*

20 Dec 20003600 500.0ADTAJ-

Social Safety Net Restructuring* 26 Oct 19993283 900.0ADTAJ-
Summary for  Tajikistan (5 TA projects)

Total 3,950.0

Thailand

Planning for Sustainable Urbanization 30 Mar 20013645 500.0ADTHA-

Capacity Building for Regional 
Environmental Management in Thailand

8 Dec 20003561 900.0ADTHA-

Summary for  Thailand (2 TA projects)
Total 1,400.0

Uzbekistan

Woman and Child Health Development 28 Apr 20034101 500.0PPUZB-

Facilitating Development of the Railway 
Sector*

31 Oct 20003529 600.0ADUZB-

Monitoring the Implementation of 
Education Reform

17 Dec 19972947 900.0ADUZB-

Summary for  Uzbekistan (3 TA projects)
Total 2,000.0

Vanuatu

Performance Improvements to Service 
Delivery Units

7 Dec 20013789 300.0ADVAN-

Summary for  Vanuatu (1 TA project)
Total 300.0
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Viet Nam

Second Lower Secondary Education 
Development

23 Sep 20023928 600.0PPVIE-

Central Region Urban Development 18 Dec 20013809 1,000.0PPVIE-

Framework for Microfinance Development 12 Oct 20013741 300.0ADVIE-

Corporatization and Corporate 
Governance*

21 Dec 19993353 1,600.0ADVIE-

Capacity Building for Rural Health 14 Dec 19993337 600.0ADVIE-

Study on the Policy and Institutional 
Framework for Forest Resources 
Management

14 Sep 19993255 470.0ADVIE-

Financial Markets Development Program 24 Dec 19983147 980.0PPVIE-
Summary for  Viet Nam (7 TA projects)

Total 5,550.0

Regional

Fourteenth Tax Conference 9 Aug 20046183 150.0REGREG-

Capacity Building of Selected Credit 
Rating Agencies in Asia, Phase II

8 Aug 20036116 100.0REGREG-

Strengthening the Regional Training 
Capability of the Asian Organization of 
Supreme Audit Institutions

18 Dec 20016014 650.0REGREG-

Gender and Governance Issues in Local 
Government

4 Dec 20016008 600.0REGREG-

Regional Consultations for the Third 
World Water Forum

9 Oct 20016001 1,000.0REGREG-

Coastal and Marine Resources 
Management and Poverty Reduction in 
South Asia

6 Mar 20015974 450.0REGREG-

Promoting Subregional Cooperation 
among Cambodia, People's Republic of 
China, Lao People's Democratic Republic, 
Myanmar, Thailand, and Viet Nam (Phase 
IV-Year 2)

14 Dec 20005961 800.0REGREG-
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Roll Back Malaria Initiative in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

7 Dec 20005958 600.0REGREG-

Subregional Cooperation in Managing 
Education Reforms

20 Oct 20005946 750.0REGREG-

Regional Initiative to Eliminate 
Micronutrient Malnutrition in Asia and 
the Pacific through Public-Private 
Partnership

17 Oct 20005944 800.0REGREG-

Audit Training Program for Central Asian 
Republics

28 Sep 20005940 500.0REGREG-

Capacity Building to Promote Traditional 
Environmental Management in the Pacific 
DMCs

10 May 20005913 300.0REGREG-

Subregional Environmental Monitoring 
and Information Systems (Phase II)

29 Dec 19995899 100.0REGREG-

Promoting Subregional Cooperation 
among Cambodia, People's Republic of 
China, Lao People's Democratic Republic, 
Myanmar, Thailand, and Viet Nam (Phase 
IV)

22 Dec 19995886 800.0REGREG-

Greater Mekong Subregion 
Preinvestment Study for the East-West 
Economic Corridor

22 Dec 19995885 350.0REGREG-

Performance Benchmarking for Pacific 
Power and Water Utilities

22 Dec 19995883 250.0REGREG-

Transboundary Environmental 
Cooperation in Northeast Asia

13 Oct 19995865 350.0REGREG-

Asian Vaccination Initiative 27 Aug 19995857 400.0REGREG-

Study of Large Dams and Recommended 
Practices

28 Dec 19985828 800.0REGREG-

Protection and Management of Critical 
Watersheds in the Lower Mekong Basin

22 Dec 19985822 1,000.0REGREG-

Translation of Asian Development Bank 
Documents into Local Languages

16 Apr 19985788 450.0REGREG-
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Poverty Reduction and Environmental 
Management in Remote Greater Mekong 
Subregion Watersheds

31 Dec 19975771 1,000.0REGREG-

Promoting Subregional Cooperation 
among Cambodia, People's Republic of 
China, Lao People's Democratic Republic, 
Myanmar, Thailand, and Viet Nam (Phase 
III)

23 Jul 19965693 3,000.0REGREG-

Summary for  Regional (23 TA projects)
Total 15,200.0

Total 80,336.4124 TA Projects

ADB = Asian Development Bank, AD = advisory, DMC = developing member country,
JSF = Japan Special Fund, PP = project preparatory, REG = regional, TA = technical assistance. 
*Attached to a loan project. 
Note: In determining the total number of TAs, supplementary TAs are not counted separately from the 
         original TAs.
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Azerbaijan

Developing Collateral Framework and 
Microfinance Regulations

17 Dec 20044491 800.0ADAZE-

Social Infrastructure for Internally 
Displaced Persons and Vulnerable 
Population

14 Dec 20044478 500.0PPAZE-

Institutional Strengthening of the Water 
Supply and Sanitation Sector in 
Secondary Towns*

7 Dec 20044465 500.0ADAZE-

Supporting River Basin and Flood 
Management Planning*

19 Dec 20034301 500.0ADAZE-

Early Childhood Development 14 May 20034115 600.0PPAZE-

Flood Mitigation 15 May 20023864 700.0PPAZE-
Summary for  Azerbaijan (6 TA projects)

Total 3,600.0

Bangladesh

Secondary Towns Water Supply and 
Sanitation

23 Dec 20044535 800.0PPBAN-

Secondary Education Sector 
Improvement Project II

23 Dec 20044532 600.0PPBAN-

Promoting Private Sector Participation in 
the Energy Sector

23 Dec 20044528 500.0ADBAN-

Second Rural Infrastructure Improvement 20 Dec 20044516 400.0PPBAN-

Chittagong Port Efficiency Improvement* 20 Dec 20044506 700.0ADBAN-

Power Sector Development Program II 23 Aug 20044379 840.0PPBAN-

Second Urban Primary Health Care 25 Aug 20034165 400.0PPBAN-

Chittagong Port Trade Facilitation 2 Jul 20034136 500.0PPBAN-

Social Protection for Disadvantaged 
Women and Children

11 Feb 20034085 500.0PPBAN-

Southwest Area Integrated Water 
Resources Management

14 Jan 20034079 900.0PPBAN-
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Organizational Reform of Bangladesh 
Railway, Phase III

29 Aug 20003491 840.0ADBAN-

Summary for  Bangladesh (11 TA projects)
Total 6,980.0

Bhutan

Urban Infrastructure Development 23 Dec 20044533 600.0PPBHU-

Road Network Expansion 2 Jul 20034138 500.0PPBHU-
Summary for  Bhutan (2 TA projects)

Total 1,100.0

Cambodia

Harmonizing Loan Project 
Implementation Procedures

25 Feb 20044316 600.0ADCAM-

Second Education Sector Development 
Program

18 Dec 20034284 600.0PPCAM-

Supporting Policy and Institutional 
Reforms in the Agriculture Sector*

26 Nov 20034228 1,000.0ADCAM-

Improving Legal Infrastructure in the 
Financial Sector

4 May 20023861 800.0ADCAM-

Financial Sector Development Program 7 Jul 20003467 800.0PPCAM-

Capacity Building for Rural Financial 
Services

5 Oct 19993270 1,450.0ADCAM-

Summary for  Cambodia (6 TA projects)
Total 5,250.0

China, People's Republic of

Support for Environmental Legislation 23 Dec 20044553 400.0ADPRC-

National Food Safety Regulatory and 
Strategic Framework

28 May 20044342 400.0ADPRC-

Improving Services Sector Statistics 10 Jun 20034125 450.0ADPRC-

Sanjiang Plains Wetland Protection 22 Nov 20023998 600.0PPPRC-

Enforcement of World Trade 
Organization Rules by the Judicial System

4 Nov 20023971 400.0ADPRC-
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Study of the Carrying Capacity of Water 
Resources

4 Nov 20023963 600.0ADPRC-

Liaoning Environmental Improvement 4 Sep 20023919 500.0PPPRC-

Study on Control and Management of 
Rural Nonpoint Source Pollution

26 Jun 20023891 600.0ADPRC-

Transjurisdiction Environmental 
Management

11 Dec 20003588 2,000.0ADPRC-

Development of Economic Laws 19 Oct 19993279 1,400.0ADPRC-
Summary for  China, People's Republic of (10 TA projects)

Total 7,350.0

Fiji Islands

Fourth Road Upgrading (Sector) 23 Dec 20044540 600.0PPFIJ-

Strengthening Public Sector Financial 
Governance

8 Aug 20034157 460.0ADFIJ-

Road Sector Reform and Safety 
Improvement

26 Aug 19972850 1,400.0ADFIJ-

Summary for  Fiji Islands (3 TA projects)
Total 2,460.0

India

State-Level Pension Reforms 23 Dec 20044548 750.0ADIND-

Capacity Building for Kerala Sustainable 
Urban Development

20 Dec 20044518 500.0ADIND-

Development of High Density Corridors 
under the Public-Private Partnership

18 Dec 20034271 700.0ADIND-

Building the Capacity of Assam Electricity 
Regulatory Commission

24 Jan 20034083 500.0ADIND-

Inland Waterway Sector Development 
Program

4 Nov 20023974 900.0PPIND-

Summary for  India (5 TA projects)
Total 3,350.0
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Indonesia

Strengthening the National Secretariat 
for Regional Cooperation

23 Dec 20044555 296.5ADINO-

Sustaining Decentralization and Local 
Governance Reforms

23 Dec 20044543 900.0ADINO-

Urban Air Quality Improvement Sector 
Development Program

20 Jul 20044361 700.0PPINO-

Gas Transportation Project through 
Public-Private Partnership

20 Jul 20044360 910.0PPINO-

Local Government Financing 18 Dec 20034282 600.0ADINO-

State-Owned Enterprise Restructuring 18 Dec 20034280 600.0ADINO-

Unified Registration System 13 Dec 20034250 300.0ADINO-

Productivity Enhancement for Tree Crops 21 Nov 20034224 800.0PPINO-

Interisland Transport 16 Dec 20024038 1,000.0PPINO-

Clean Vehicle Fuel Project for Blue Skies 11 Dec 20024026 600.0PPINO-

Second Road Rehabilitation 15 Nov 20023989 900.0PPINO-

Community-Based Land Rehabilitation 
and Management

5 Nov 20023977 800.0PPINO-

Support for Health Sector Policy Reforms* 14 Dec 20003579 1,000.0ADINO-

Sustainable Management System for Tree 
Crops Development

28 Dec 19993384 950.0ADINO-

Monitoring and Evaluating the Social 
Protection Sector Development Program

9 Jul 19983041 1,500.0ADINO-

Implementing a Regulatory Framework 
for the Gas Industry (Supplementary)

28 Dec 19992933 386.0ADINO-

Summary for  Indonesia (15 TA projects)
Total 12,242.5

Kazakhstan

Institutional Strengthening of the 
Committee of Water Resources

15 Dec 20044484 150.0ADKAZ-

Financial Sector Governance 8 Nov 20044431 800.0ADKAZ-



TA No. TA Title
TA 
Type

JSF Grant
($'000)

ADB 
Approval

Table A3.3: Ongoing Technical Assistance Projects (as of 31 December 2004)

Appendix 3 129

Institutional Strengthening for Rural 
Water Supply and Sanitation Services*

29 Sep 20034186 350.0ADKAZ-

Technology and Institutional 
Development for Sustainable Locust 
Management

23 Apr 20013647 700.0ADKAZ-

Summary for  Kazakhstan (4 TA projects)
Total 2,000.0

Kiribati

Strengthening Development Strategies 
and Supporting Poverty Reduction

4 Dec 20013786 500.0ADKIR-

Summary for  Kiribati (1 TA project)
Total 500.0

Kyrgyz Republic

Capacity Building and Institutional 
Strengthening for the Customs 
Modernization and Infrastructure 
Development*

26 Nov 20044450 500.0ADKGZ-

Awareness and Prevention of HIV/AIDS, 
Sexually Transmitted Infections, and 
Human Trafficking*

23 Nov 20044445 500.0ADKGZ-

Improving Road Maintenance and 
Strengthening the Transport Corridor 
Management Department*

23 Nov 20044444 800.0ADKGZ-

Second Agriculture Area Development 19 Nov 20044438 800.0PPKGZ-

Institutional Strengthening for 
Community-Based Early Childhood 
Development*

29 Sep 20034187 500.0ADKGZ-

Education Development 21 Aug 20034166 600.0PPKGZ-

Customs Modernization and 
Infrastructure Development*

29 Oct 20023950 500.0PPKGZ-

Institutional Support in the Transport 
Sector*

31 Oct 20013757 650.0ADKGZ-

Summary for  Kyrgyz Republic (8 TA projects)
Total 4,850.0
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Lao People's Democratic Republic

Private Sector Development Program 23 Dec 20044526 700.0PPLAO-

Basic Education Development 17 Dec 20044499 600.0PPLAO-

Participatory Livestock Development 18 Dec 20034287 900.0PPLAO-

Enhancing Government Accounting 
Regulations and Procedures Phase II

23 Sep 20034180 550.0ADLAO-

Northern Airports Improvement 4 Nov 20023968 500.0PPLAO-

Northern and Central Regions Water 
Supply and Sanitation

20 Aug 20023903 700.0PPLAO-

Northern Economic Corridor 19 Dec 20013817 600.0PPLAO-

East-West Corridor Coordination* 20 Dec 19993348 690.0ADLAO-
Summary for  Lao People's Democratic Republic (8 TA projects)

Total 5,240.0

Maldives

Revenue Diversification 13 Sep 20023925 350.0ADMLD-
Summary for  Maldives (1 TA project)

Total 350.0

Marshall Islands

Youth Social Services 19 Nov 20034219 500.0PPRMI-
Summary for  Marshall Islands (1 TA project)

Total 500.0

Micronesia, Federated States of

Strengthening Public Sector Audit 
Function

3 Dec 20044464 300.0ADFSM-

Omnibus Infrastructure Development 18 Dec 20024045 650.0PPFSM-
Summary for  Micronesia, Federated States of (2 TA projects)

Total 950.0

Mongolia

Third Education Development 16 Dec 20044487 500.0PPMON-

Agriculture Sector Strategy Study 12 Jul 20044359 350.0ADMON-

Third Financial Sector Program 3 Dec 20034236 500.0PPMON-
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Health Sector Reform* 5 Jun 20034123 650.0ADMON-

Capacity Building in Agriculture* 21 Dec 20003606 695.0ADMON-

Capacity Building for Cadastral Survey 
and Land Registration*

27 Jan 20003395 990.0ADMON-

Summary for  Mongolia (6 TA projects)
Total 3,685.0

Nepal

Rural Electrification and Renewable 
Energy

17 Dec 20044493 600.0PPNEP-

Capacity Building in Rural Infrastructure 
Institutions*

24 Sep 20044397 400.0ADNEP-

Transport Connectivity Sector 4 Jun 20044347 600.0PPNEP-

Kathmandu Valley Water Management 
Support

11 Apr 20034096 700.0PPNEP-

Community-Managed Irrigation (Central 
and Eastern Basins) Sector

18 Oct 20013745 600.0PPNEP-

Power Sector Reforms in Nepal 27 Nov 20003552 800.0ADNEP-
Summary for  Nepal (6 TA projects)

Total 3,700.0

Pakistan

Sindh Basic Urban Services 23 Dec 20044534 795.0PPPAK-

Sindh Coastal and Inland Community 
Development

23 Dec 20044525 650.0PPPAK-

Renewable Energy Development 5 Nov 20044425 550.0PPPAK-

Transport Policy Support 30 Sep 20044400 290.0ADPAK-

Institutional Capacity Building of the 
National Transmission and Despatch 
Company Limited

20 Jun 20034130 600.0ADPAK-

Summary for  Pakistan (5 TA projects)
Total 2,885.0

Papua New Guinea

Agriculture and Rural Development 19 Dec 20024055 1,000.0PPPNG-
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Strengthening Public Sector Management 18 Dec 20013812 850.0ADPNG-

Road Authority Development 11 Sep 20013716 700.0PPPNG-
Summary for  Papua New Guinea (3 TA projects)

Total 2,550.0

Philippines

Institutional Strengthening of Energy 
Regulatory Commission and Privatization 
of National Power Corporation

28 Dec 20044557 1,200.0ADPHI-

Strengthening Small and Medium-Sized 
Enterprise Credit Management Systems

23 Dec 20044523 500.0ADPHI-

Intermodal Transport Development 31 May 20044344 1,000.0PPPHI-

Institutional Strengthening for the 
Development of the Natural Gas Industry

16 Oct 20034198 800.0ADPHI-

Health Sector Development 19 Dec 20024064 600.0PPPHI-

Strengthening the Independence of the 
Judiciary

2 Aug 20013693 1,200.0ADPHI-

Education Sector Development Program 12 Sep 20003500 998.0PPPHI-
Summary for  Philippines (7 TA projects)

Total 6,298.0

Samoa

Strengthening State-Owned Enterprise 
Corporate Governance

20 Dec 20044513 400.0ADSAM-

Institutional Strengthening for Drainage 
and Wastewater Management*

27 Nov 20034229 400.0ADSAM-

Savai'i Renewable Energy 15 Nov 20023985 300.0PPSAM-
Summary for  Samoa (3 TA projects)

Total 1,100.0

Sri Lanka

Greater Colombo Wastewater 23 Dec 20044531 850.0PPSRI-

Basic Social Infrastructure Development 19 Dec 20034296 500.0PPSRI-

Human Resource Investment 19 Mar 20034090 600.0PPSRI-
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Passenger Transport Services 
Improvement*

19 Dec 20024075 500.0ADSRI-

Feasibility Study of National Highways 
Development*

19 Dec 20024074 850.0PPSRI-

Delivering Natural Resource and 
Environmental Management Services 
Sector

19 Dec 20024059 800.0PPSRI-

Strengthening the Regulatory Framework 
for Water Supply and Sanitation

18 Dec 20024049 285.0ADSRI-

School Computerization 5 Nov 20023973 500.0PPSRI-

Enabling Small and Medium Enterprise 
Growth*

20 Dec 20013822 1,250.0ADSRI-

Governance and Institutional Support for 
Private Sector Development*

12 Dec 20003567 1,900.0ADSRI-

Summary for  Sri Lanka (10 TA projects)
Total 8,035.0

Tajikistan

Support for Monitoring Policy Reforms 
and Improving Farm and Water 
Management*

10 Dec 20044472 500.0ADTAJ-

Capacity Building and Institutional 
Strengthening for the Customs 
Modernization and Infrastructure 
Development*

26 Nov 20044451 500.0ADTAJ-

Dushanbe-Kyrgyz Border Road 
Rehabilitation (Phase II)

31 Aug 20044382 500.0PPTAJ-

Strengthening Education Planning and 
Financial Management

22 Dec 20034312 150.0ADTAJ-

Drug Procurement and Distribution 
Strategy*

17 Dec 20034269 150.0ADTAJ-

Planning and Policy Dialogue for Health 
Reform*

17 Dec 20034268 300.0ADTAJ-

Strengthening Planning and Policy 
Dialogue for Education Reform*

17 Dec 20034267 300.0ADTAJ-
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Improving the Accounting and Financial 
Management System of the Subsidiaries 
of Barki Tajik

2 Dec 20034232 400.0ADTAJ-

Institutional Strengthening of 
Microfinance Systems*

26 Jun 20034132 640.0ADTAJ-

Farm Debt Resolution and Policy Reforms* 18 Dec 20024052 960.0ADTAJ-

Hydropower Development Strategy 30 Oct 20023956 600.0ADTAJ-

Customs Modernization and 
Infrastructure Development*

29 Oct 20023951 500.0PPTAJ-

Institutional and Policy Support in Road 
Sector*

20 Dec 20003602 500.0ADTAJ-

Summary for  Tajikistan (13 TA projects)
Total 6,000.0

Timor-Leste, Democratic Republic of

Strengthening Microfinance Operations 20 Dec 20044509 500.0ADTIM-

Capacity Building to Develop Public 
Sector Management and Governance 
Skills

5 Mar 20023839 350.0ADTIM-

Postal Services Development 19 Dec 20013819 250.0ADTIM-

Economic Policies and Strategies for 
Development Planning

14 Dec 20013803 950.0ADTIM-

Power Sector Development Plan - Phase 1 22 Oct 20013748 400.0ADTIM-

Transport Sector Improvement 1 Oct 20013731 500.0ADTIM-
Summary for  Timor-Leste, Democratic Republic of (6 TA projects)

Total 2,950.0

Tonga

Youth Microenterprise Development 16 Dec 20044488 250.0ADTON-
Summary for  Tonga (1 TA project)

Total 250.0

Tuvalu

Education Sector Reform and 
Development

8 Dec 20044466 300.0PPTUV-
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Tuvalu Maritime Training Institute 
Strengthening*

16 Oct 20023942 291.0ADTUV-

Summary for  Tuvalu (2 TA projects)
Total 591.0

Uzbekistan

Capacity Building for Woman and Child 
Health Development*

23 Sep 20044396 300.0ADUZB-

Kashkadarya and Navoi Rural Water 
Supply

10 Aug 20044372 575.0PPUZB-

Support to Policy and Institutional 
Reforms in Water Sectors*

19 Dec 20034302 500.0ADUZB-

Developing an Integrated Cadastre 
System for Land Resources Management 
and Property Right Registration

19 Nov 20034218 500.0ADUZB-

Furthering Policy Reform in the Food 
Grain Subsector*

14 Nov 20034217 400.0ADUZB-

Third Railway Development 19 Dec 20024076 600.0PPUZB-
Summary for  Uzbekistan (6 TA projects)

Total 2,875.0

Vanuatu

Institutional Strengthening of the 
Parliament

19 Dec 20013816 200.0ADVAN-

Summary for  Vanuatu (1 TA project)
Total 200.0

Viet Nam

HIV/AIDS Prevention Among Youth 23 Dec 20044542 400.0PPVIE-

Central Region Small and Medium Towns 
Development

15 Dec 20044485 950.0PPVIE-

Northern Power Transmission Expansion 
Sector

10 Dec 20044470 500.0PPVIE-

Rural Infrastructure for Sustainable 
Livelihood Improvement in the Central 
Region

19 Nov 20044440 800.0PPVIE-
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Livelihood Improvement in the Central 
Coastal Provinces

18 Dec 20034292 650.0PPVIE-

Capacity Building for the Financial Sector 
and Capital Markets

18 Dec 20034290 780.0ADVIE-

Agriculture Science and Technology 9 Oct 20034194 900.0PPVIE-

Strengthening of Preventive Health 
Services

2 May 20034102 500.0PPVIE-

Kunming-Haiphong Transport Corridor 18 Dec 20024050 1,000.0PPVIE-

Central Region Transport Network 13 Dec 20024034 1,000.0PPVIE-

Central Region Water Resources Sector 27 Nov 20024001 1,000.0PPVIE-

Forests for Livelihood Improvement in the 
Central Highlands

19 Dec 20013818 800.0PPVIE-

Capacity Building for Central Region 
Poverty Reduction

14 Nov 20013772 800.0ADVIE-

Capacity Building for Water Resources 
Management

30 Oct 20003528 1,800.0ADVIE-

Summary for  Viet Nam (14 TA projects)
Total 11,880.0

Regional

Facilitating Cross-Border Trade and 
Investment in the Greater Mekong 
Subregion

23 Dec 20046228 600.0REGREG-

Coordinating the Greater Mekong 
Subregion: North-South Economic 
Corridor Bridge

23 Dec 20046227 415.0REGREG-

Developing and Implementing the Pacific 
Plan for Strengthening Regional 
Cooperation and Integration

23 Dec 20046226 500.0REGREG-

South Asia Subregional Economic 
Cooperation Human Resource 
Development and Capacity Building in 
the Tourism Sector

23 Dec 20046225 600.0REGREG-
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Capacity Building of Developing Member 
Countries on Selected World Trade 
Organization and Doha Development 
Agenda Issues

21 Dec 20046220 400.0REGREG-

Strengthening Capacity and Regional 
Cooperation in Advanced Agricultural 
Science and Technology in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

17 Dec 20046214 1,000.0REGREG-

Greater Mekong Subregion Biodiversity 
Conservation Corridors Initiative

17 Dec 20046213 400.0REGREG-

Southeast Asia Workers' Remittance Study 17 Dec 20046212 500.0REGREG-

Pacific Regional Social Protection Systems 
Assessment

14 Dec 20046207 500.0REGREG-

Diagnostic Studies for Secured 
Transactions Reforms in the Pacific Region

3 Dec 20046202 870.0REGREG-

Capacity Building for Promoting 
Sustainable Development in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

12 Nov 20046198 500.0REGREG-

Greater Mekong Subregion Regional 
Communicable Diseases Control

20 Oct 20046194 600.0REGREG-

Capacity Building of Selected Credit 
Rating Agencies in Asia Phase III

11 Oct 20046191 300.0REGREG-

Association of Southeast Asian Nations 
plus People’s Republic of China, Japan, 
and Republic of Korea Regional 
Settlement Linkage

19 Dec 20036161 300.0REGREG-

Regional Air Quality Management 19 Dec 20036159 400.0REGREG-

Strengthening Regional Networking for 
Small- and Medium-Sized Enterprises in 
Brunei-Indonesia-Malaysia-Philippines 
East Association of Southeast Asian 
Nations Growth Area

5 Dec 20036146 700.0REGREG-

Better Air Quality Management in Asia 28 Nov 20036144 300.0REGREG-

Capacity Building on Selected World 
Trade Organization Issues

28 Nov 20036142 450.0REGREG-
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Infrastructure Development in East Asia 19 Nov 20036140 500.0REGREG-

Subregional Transport Facilitation 19 Nov 20036139 600.0REGREG-

Emergency Regional Support to Address 
the Outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory 
Syndrome (Supplementary to TASF)

29 Sep 20036108 3,000.0REGREG-

Integrating Environmental Considerations 
into Development Policies, Plans, and 
Programs

11 Mar 20036095 550.0REGREG-

Capacity Building for Resettlement Risk 
Management

19 Dec 20026091 500.0REGREG-

Strengthening and Collection of 
Purchasing Power Parity Data in Selected 
Developing Member Countries

30 Jul 20046088 450.0REGREG-

Prevention and Control of Dust and 
Sandstorms in Northeast Asia

11 Dec 20026068 500.0REGREG-

ADB-OECD Anticorruption Action Plan for 
Asia and the Pacific, 2002-2003

25 Jun 20026040 200.0REGREG-

Facilitating Cross-Border Trade and 
Investment for Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

21 Dec 20016020 600.0REGREG-

Capacity Building for National Institutions 
Involved in the Greater Mekong 
Subregion Program

21 Dec 20016017 500.0REGREG-

Clean Air Initiative for Asian Cities 19 Dec 20016016 150.0REGREG-

Strengthening the Collaborative 
Vegetable Research Network in 
Cambodia, Lao People's Democratic 
Republic, and Viet Nam (Phase II)

17 Dec 20016011 650.0REGREG-

Capacity Building and Regional 
Cooperation for Economic Statistics in 
Selected Pacific DMCs

13 Dec 20016009 500.0REGREG-

Greater Mekong Subregion 
Telecommunications Sector Policy 
Formulation and Capacity Building

2 Nov 20016004 700.0REGREG-



TA No. TA Title
TA 
Type

JSF Grant
($'000)

ADB 
Approval

Table A3.3: Ongoing Technical Assistance Projects (as of 31 December 2004)

Appendix 3 139

Study on Monetary and Financial 
Cooperation in East Asia

2 Oct 20016000 500.0REGREG-

Countering Money Laundering in the 
Asian and Pacific Region

20 Dec 20005967 650.0REGREG-

Capacity Building for Financial Regulation 
and Supervision

19 Dec 20005966 800.0REGREG-

Commercialization of Microfinance 20 Nov 20005952 700.0REGREG-

Study of the Interlinkages between 
Governance and Poverty in Sectoral 
Development and Reform Activities

14 Nov 20005949 600.0REGREG-

Gender and Development Initiatives 23 Dec 19995889 850.0REGREG-

Facilitating the Cross-Border Movement 
of Goods and People in the Greater 
Mekong Subregion

16 Jul 19995850 950.0REGREG-

Summary for  Regional (39 TA projects)
Total 23,785.0

Total 133,506.5205 TA Projects

ADB = Asian Development Bank, AD = advisory, DMC = developing member country,
JSF = Japan Special Fund, PP = project preparatory, REG = regional, TA = technical assistance. 
*Attached to a loan project. 
Note: In determining the total number of TAs, supplementary TAs are not counted separately from the
          original TAs.
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USE OF THE JAPAN SPECIAL FUND 
 

Table A4.1: JSF-Financed Technical Assistance, 
by Country and Regional Activities 

(1988–1991) 
 

1988 1989 1990 1991
Country No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000

Azerbaijan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Bangladesh -       -              6      2,428      3      2,154      6      4,095      
Bhutan -       -              1      300         -       -              1      600         
Cambodia -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
PRC 6      1,831      3      3,300      -       -              6      3,609      
Cook Islands -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Fiji Islands 1      475         1      600         1      200         -       -              
India -       -              -       -              2      1,000      2      1,610      
Indonesia 7      2,907      4      1,872      16    8,042      11    6,859      
Kazakhstan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Kiribati -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Kyrgyz Republic -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Lao PDR -       -              -       -              2      905         2      1,720      
Malaysia 2      725         2      790         2      898         2      680         
Maldives 1      480         -       -              -       100         1      500         
Marshall Islands -       -              -       -              -       -              1      300         
FSM -       -              -       -              -       -              1      450         
Mongolia -       -              -       -              -       -              1      635         
Nauru -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Nepal 4      1,677      2      1,375      4      1,688      -       30           
Pakistan 4      1,101      9      4,375      4      970         3      2,750      
Papua New Guinea 2      711         4      1,550      2      1,137      1      436         
Philippines 10    5,238      10    3,820      8      5,650      4      2,771      
Samoa -       -              3      1,135      2      793         1      320         
Solomon Islands -       -              -       -              1      1,300      -       -              
Sri Lanka 1      350         5      1,932      6      2,417      1      600         
Tajikistan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Thailand 1      320         2      1,130      -       -              -       -              
Timor-Leste -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Tonga -       -              -       -              1      392         1      206         
Tuvalu -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Uzbekistan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Vanuatu -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Viet Nam -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
  Subtotal 39 15,815 52 24,607 54 27,646 45 28,171
Regional 1 100 -       -              3 320 8 2,740
          Total 40 15,915 52 24,607 57 27,966 53 30,911

FSM = Federated States of Micronesia, JSF = Japan Special Fund, 
Lao PDR = Lao People's Democratic Republic, PRC = People's Republic of China.
Note: Supplementary technical assistance projects are not counted separately
         from the original TAs.
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Table A4.2: JSF-Financed Technical Assistance, 
by Country and Regional Activities 

(1992–1995) 
 

1992 1993 1994 1995
Country No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000

Azerbaijan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Bangladesh 7      5,258      5      2,970      4      2,360      6      2,985      
Bhutan 1      300         4      1,725      -       -              -       -              
Cambodia 1      4,200      -       -              4      2,096      6      4,030      
PRC 7      4,135      17    9,139      27    13,076    22    12,469    
Cook Islands -       -              -       -              4      1,612      -       -              
Fiji Islands -       -              3      933         2      1,050      1      450         
India 3      1,800      1      600         2      900         5      3,000      
Indonesia 10    6,915      8      4,730      9      5,934      11    7,570      
Kazakhstan -       -              -       -              -       -              5      3,251      
Kiribati -       -              1      503         1      385         1      577         
Kyrgyz Republic -       -              -       -              2      1,200      5      3,816      
Lao PDR 3      1,480      5      3,300      3      1,200      8      4,048      
Malaysia -       -              1      800         1      700         1      600         
Maldives -       -              -       -              1      600         2      685         
Marshall Islands 1      300         3      800         3      1,202      2      1,405      
FSM -       -              2      1,180      2      635         2      1,315      
Mongolia 6      3,943      5      2,938      10    5,018      4      3,187      
Nauru -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Nepal -       -              2      1,133      4      2,022      4      2,004      
Pakistan 8      3,585      3      2,500      3      1,400      3      1,915      
Papua New Guinea 1      575         2      1,482      3      1,170      -       -              
Philippines 2      820         8      4,330      7      4,146      4      2,325      
Samoa -       -              1      270         3      700         1      552         
Solomon Islands -       -              -       -              1      350         -       -              
Sri Lanka -       -              1      188         7      3,786      6      3,581      
Tajikistan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Thailand 6      2,135      2      1,200      3      1,484      4      2,200      
Timor-Leste -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Tonga -       -              2      995         4      769         1      600         
Tuvalu -       -              -       -              2      626         1      310         
Uzbekistan -       -              -       -              -       -              -       -              
Vanuatu -       -              2      586         1      50           -       -              
Viet Nam -       -              7      6,818      9      6,178      10    7,204      
  Subtotal 56 35,445 85 49,119 122 60,649 115 70,079
Regional 10 3,264 8 4,856 7 2,757 10 8,217
          Total 66 38,709 93 53,975 129 63,406 125 78,296

FSM = Federated States of Micronesia, JSF = Japan Special Fund, 
Lao PDR = Lao People's Democratic Republic, PRC = People's Republic of China.
Note: Supplementary technical assistance projects are not counted separately
         from the original TAs.
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Table A4.3: JSF-Financed Technical Assistance, 
by Country and Regional Activities 

(1996–1999) 
 

1996 1997 1998 1999
Country No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000

Azerbaijan -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Bangladesh 3        1,250       9        5,270       2        1,780       5      3,400       
Bhutan 3        1,340       4        1,900       4        2,150       3      1,650       
Cambodia 8        5,950       2        1,000       1        1,365       3      2,981       
PRC 13      8,677       19      11,436     15      11,307     18    14,592     
Cook Islands -         -               -         -               1        750          -       -               
Fiji Islands 1        600          1        1,400       1        800          -       -               
India 7        4,055       6        3,880       1        1,000       -       -               
Indonesia 11      7,260       10      7,485       7        7,410       5      3,636       
Kazakhstan 2        1,950       2        1,200       -         -               1      850          
Kiribati -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Kyrgyz Republic 2        1,900       4        2,808       6        3,804       1      600          
Lao PDR 7        3,350       6        3,580       6        3,690       6      4,040       
Malaysia -         -               2        1,088       -         -               -       -               
Maldives -         -               1        625          1        400          2      810          
Marshall Islands 1        600          1        663          -         -               -       -               
FSM -         -               1        934          2        2,488       -       -               
Mongolia 5        3,227       8        5,207       2        1,310       3      1,920       
Nauru -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Nepal 7        4,284       6        3,221       5        3,400       4      2,300       
Pakistan 6        3,650       6        4,550       -         -               1      300          
Papua New Guinea 1        619          1        150          3        2,323       2      1,081       
Philippines 9        6,104       8        4,792       5        4,618       1      1,000       
Samoa -         -               1        600          2        1,910       -       -               
Solomon Islands -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Sri Lanka 3        1,800       8        6,650       8        7,020       4      3,530       
Tajikistan -         -               -         -               1        1,500       4      2,795       
Thailand 3        1,550       7        4,300       4        2,705       -       -               
Timor-Leste -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Tonga -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Tuvalu -         -               -         -               -         -               -       -               
Uzbekistan 1        600          6        4,350       3        2,650       3      1,400       
Vanuatu 1        360          -         -               -         -               -       -               
Viet Nam 10      7,550       7        5,650       5        2,930       7      6,568       
  Subtotal 104   66,676    126   82,739    85     67,310    73    53,453    
Regional 14      12,466     8        6,035       26      20,953     18    7,510       
          Total 118 79,142 134   88,774    111   88,263    91    60,963    

FSM = Federated States of Micronesia, JSF = Japan Special Fund, 
Lao PDR = Lao People's Democratic Republic, PRC = People's Republic of China.
Note: Supplementary technical assistance projects are not counted separately
         from the original TAs.  
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Table A4.4: JSF-Financed Technical Assistance, 
by Country and Regional Activities 

(2000–2003) 
 

Country No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000 No. $'000
Azerbaijan -         -               1      740          1      700          2      1,100       
Bangladesh 5        3,990       6      3,340       2      1,100       5      2,950       
Bhutan 4        1,954       3      1,200       3      650          1      500          
Cambodia 5        3,386       5      4,050       2      1,600       3      2,100       
PRC 13      11,050     4      2,630       5      2,700       1      450          
Cook Islands -         -               2      500          -       -               -       -               
Fiji Islands -         -               -       -               1      400          2      1,170       
India -         -               -       -               6      3,000       2      1,200       
Indonesia 3        2,195       4      2,590       4      3,300       5      3,000       
Kazakhstan 4        2,680       2      1,300       1      600          1      350          
Kiribati 1        350          1      500          -       -               -       -               
Kyrgyz Republic 4        2,490       1      650          1      500          2      1,100       
Lao PDR 3        2,300       8      4,100       2      1,200       3      1,600       
Malaysia -         -               -       -               -       -               -       -               
Maldives 1        700          3      700          2      750          -       -               
Marshall Islands 1        340          -       -               -       -               1      500          
FSM -         -               -       -               1      650          -       -               
Mongolia 4        2,985       3      1,800       1      600          2      1,150       
Nauru 1        300          -       -               -       -               -       -               
Nepal 5        3,735       3      2,175       4      2,400       3      1,350       
Pakistan -         -               1      800          2      1,250       2      1,000       
Papua New Guinea 3        1,420       5      2,700       2      1,500       1      600          
Philippines 4        3,228       3      2,358       2      1,000       1      800          
Samoa 1        500          -       -               1      300          1      400          
Solomon Islands -         -               -       -               -       -               -       -               
Sri Lanka 6        5,600       4      3,400       6      3,435       2      1,100       
Tajikistan 6        3,800       2      1,550       3      2,060       6      2,540       
Thailand 2        1,600       2      750          -       -               -       -               
Timor-Leste 2        900          4      2,100       1      350          -       -               
Tonga -         -               -       -               -       -               -       -               
Tuvalu 1        250          -       -               1      291          -       -               
Uzbekistan 4        3,020       1      600          1      600          4      1,900       
Vanuatu 1        330          2      500          -       -               -       -               
Viet Nam 6        4,924       5      3,500       4      3,600       4      2,830       
  Subtotal 90     64,027    75    44,533    59    34,536    54    29,690    
Regional 19      11,060     19    8,250       6      1,900       12    7,200       
          Total 109   75,087    94    52,783    65    36,436    66    36,890    

FSM = Federated States of Micronesia, JSF = Japan Special Fund, 
Lao PDR = Lao People's Democratic Republic, PRC = People's Republic of China.
Note: Supplementary technical assistance projects are not counted separately
         from the original TAs.
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Table A4.5: JSF-Financed Technical Assistance, 
by Country and Regional Activities 

(2004 and 1988–2004) 
 

Country No. $'000 No. $'000 %
Azerbaijan 3        1,800       7 4,340 0.5
Bangladesh 6        3,840       80 49,170 5.5
Bhutan 1        600          33 14,869 1.7
Cambodia 1        600          41 33,358 3.7
PRC 2        800          177 110,447 12.4
Cook Islands -         -               7 2,862 0.3
Fiji Islands 1        600          16 8,678 1.0
India 2        1,250       39 23,295 2.6
Indonesia 4        2,807       129 84,512 9.5
Kazakhstan 2        950          20 13,131 1.5
Kiribati -         -               5 2,315 0.3
Kyrgyz Republic 4        2,600       32 21,468 2.4
Lao PDR 2        1,300       66 37,813 4.2
Malaysia -         -               13 6,281 0.7
Maldives -         -               15 6,350 0.7
Marshall Islands -         -               14 6,110 0.7
FSM 1        300          12 7,952 0.9
Mongolia 2        850          56 34,770 3.9
Nauru -         -               1 300 0.0
Nepal 4        1,630       60 34,424 3.9
Pakistan 4        2,285       59 32,431 3.6
Papua New Guinea -         -               33 17,454 2.0
Philippines 3        2,700       89 55,700 6.2
Samoa 1        400          18 7,880 0.9
Solomon Islands -         -               2 1,650 0.2
Sri Lanka 1        850          69 46,239 5.2
Tajikistan 3        1,500       26 15,745 1.8
Thailand -         -               36 19,374 2.2
Timor-Leste 1        500          8 3,850 0.4
Tonga 1        250          10 3,212 0.4
Tuvalu 1        300          6 1,777 0.2
Uzbekistan 2        875          25 15,995 1.8
Vanuatu -         -               7 1,826 0.2
Viet Nam 4        2,650       78 60,402 6.8
  Subtotal 56     32,237    1,289      785,978 88.2
Regional 15      7,785       184          105,412 11.8
          Total 71     40,022    1,473      891,390 100.0

FSM = Federated States of Micronesia, JSF = Japan Special Fund, 
Lao PDR = Lao People's Democratic Republic, PRC = People's Republic of China.
Note: Supplementary technical assistance projects are not counted separately
         from the original TAs.

2004 Total (1988–2004)
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SECTOR DISTRIBUTION OF JAPAN SPECIAL FUND GRANTS 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Asian Development Bank

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of activities
and changes in net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, in terms of United States
dollars, the financial position of the Asian Development Bank—Japan Special Fund at 31 December 2004
and 2003, and the results of its activities and changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  These
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Asian Development Bank; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted
our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the account-
ing principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Detroit, Michigan
14 March 2005
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JSF-1
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK—JAPAN SPECIAL FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2004 and 2003

Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollars (Note B)

2004 2003

JSF JSF
Regular and Regular and

ACCSF Supplementary Total ACCSF Supplementary Total

ASSETS

DUE FROM BANKS (Note B) $      327  $     1,017  $     1,344  $      640  $     1,977  $      2,617

INVESTMENTS (Notes A, B, and C)
Government and government-guaranteed obligations 5,019 25,095 30,114 3,045 46,709 49,754
Time deposits 17,324 83,506 100,830 28,820 22,781 51,601
Other securities 11,324 102,018 113,342 5,687 150,613 156,300

33,667 210,619 244,286 37,552 220,103 257,655

EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Notes A, B, and D), net – – – – 111 111

ACCRUED REVENUE 396 1,682 2,078 172 3,218 3,390

OTHER ASSETS (Note E) 71 2,579 2,650 275 3,538 3,813

TOTAL $34,461  $215,897  $250,358  $38,639  $228,947  $267,586

LIABILITIES AND UNCOMMITTED BALANCES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Note E) $ 604 $ 120 $ 724 $   1,411  $        218  $     1,629

UNDISBURSED COMMITMENTS (Notes B and F)
Technical assistance 4,970 66,548 71,518 9,759 88,521 98,280

NET ASSETS (JSF-2) (Note B), represented by:
Uncommitted balances (Notes A and G)

Unrestricted – 149,229 149,229 – 140,208 140,208
Temporarily restricted 26,022 – 26,022 25,067 – 25,067

26,022 149,229 175,251 25,067 140,208 165,275

Net accumulated investment income (Notes A and G)
Temporarily restricted 2,865 – 2,865 2,402 – 2,402

28,887 149,229 178,116 27,469 140,208 167,677

TOTAL $34,461  $215,897  $250,358  $38,639  $228,947  $267,586

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements (JSF-4).
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JSF-2
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK—JAPAN SPECIAL FUND

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003

Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollars (Note B)

2004 2003

JSF JSF
Regular and Regular and

ACCSF Supplementary Total ACCSF Supplementary Total

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CONTRIBUTIONS (Notes B and G)  $          –  $ 24,238  $ 24,238  $          –  $ 16,633  $ 16,633

REVENUE FROM INVESTMENTS (Notes B and C)  –  3,302  3,302  – 3,260  3,260

REVENUE FROM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Note D)  –  900  900  –  –  –

REVENUE FROM OTHER SOURCES  – 111  111  –  53  53

NET ASSETS (REVERTED BACK) RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS (Notes B and G)  (925)  –  (925)  1,195  –  1,195

Total  (925)  28,551  27,626  1,195  19,946  21,141

TRANSFER TO COOPERATION FUND FOR REGIONAL
TRADE AND FINANCIAL SECURITY INITIATIVE (Note G)  –  (1,000)  (1,000)  –  –  –

EXPENSES
Technical assistance (Notes B and F)  (951)  18,553  17,602  1,147  38,342  39,489
Administrative expenses  26  1,125  1,151  48  1,213  1,261
Financial expenses  –  1  1  –  9  9

Total  (925)  19,679  18,754  1,195  39,564  40,759

CONTRIBUTIONS AND REVENUE  IN EXCESS OF
(LESS THAN) EXPENSES – 7,872 7,872 – (19,618) (19,618)

EXCHANGE GAINS (LOSSES) (Note B)  –  1,149  1,149  –  (312)  (312)

INCREASE (DECREASE)  IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS  –  9,021  9,021  –  (19,930)  (19,930)

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUE FROM INVESTMENTS AND OTHER SOURCES
(Notes B and C)  493  –  493  635  –  635

NET ASSETS REVERTED BACK (RELEASED FROM)
RESTRICTIONS (Notes B and G)  925  –  925  (1,195)  –  (1,195)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS  1,418  –  1,418  (560)  –  (560)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS  1,418  9,021  10,439  (560)  (19,930)  (20,490)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR  27,469  140,208  167,677  28,029  160,138  188,167

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR  $28,887  $149,229  $178,116  $27,469  $140,208  $167,677

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements (JSF-4).
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JSF-3
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK—JAPAN SPECIAL FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended 31 December 2004 and 2003

Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollars (Note B)

2004 2003

JSF JSF
Regular and Regular and

ACCSF Supplementary Total ACCSF Supplementary Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Contributions received  $ –  $ 24,238  $ 24,238  $ –  $ 16,633  $ 16,633
Interest on investments received  858  11,035  11,893  2,289  11,500  13,789
Technical assistance disbursed  (4,441)  (39,667)  (44,108)  (11,669)  (41,718)  (53,387)
Interest assistance paid  –  –  –  (12,536)  –  (12,536)
Transfer to Cooperation Fund for Regional Trade

and Financial Security Initiative  –  (1,000)  (1,000)  –  –  –
Administrative expenses paid  (26)  (1,220)  (1,246)  (102)  (1,193)  (1,295)
Financial expenses paid  –  (1)  (1)  –  (9)  (9)
Others—net  4  112  116  3  (250)  (247)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities  (3,605)  (6,503)  (10,108)  (22,015)  (15,037)  (37,052)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of investments  –  –  –  –  20,113  20,113
Maturities of investments  2,949,375  5,526,446  8,475,821  1,883,001  9,871,962  11,754,963
Purchases of investments (2,946,083) (5,522,822) (8,468,905) (1,861,002) (9,875,773) (11,736,775)
Sales of equity investments  –  1,017  1,017  –  –  –

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities  3,292  4,641  7,933  21,999  16,302  38,301

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Due from Banks  –  902  902  –  1  1

Net (Decrease) Increase in Due from Banks  (313)  (960)  (1,273)  (16)  1,266  1,250

Due from Banks at Beginning of Period  640  1,977  2,617  656  711  1,367

Due from Banks at End of Period  $ 327  $ 1,017  $ 1,344  $ 640  $ 1,977  $ 2,617

RECONCILIATION OF INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET
ASSETS TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (Decrease) in net assets (JSF-2)  $ 1,418  $ 9,021  $ 10,439  $ (560)  $ (19,930)  $ (20,490)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets

to net cash used in operating activities:
Change in undisbursed commitments  (4,789)  (21,973)  (26,762)  (9,720)  (5,910)  (15,630)
Amortization of discounts/premiums  562  6,074  6,636  1,069  6,189  7,258
Translation adjustment  –  (1,228)  (1,228)  –  (14)  (14)
Gain from sales of equity investments  –  (900)  (900)  –  –  –
Unrealized investment losses  31  125  156  49  275  324
Net loss from sales of investments  –  –  –  –  2  2
Others—net  (827)  2,378  1,551  (12,853)  4,351  (8,502)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities  $ (3,605)  $ (6,503)  $ (10,108)  $ (22,015)  $ (15,037)  $ (37,052)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements (JSF-4).
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JSF-4
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK—JAPAN SPECIAL FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2004 and 2003

NOTE A—NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Japan Special Fund (JSF) was established in March 1988
when Japan and the Asian Development Bank (ADB) entered
into a financial arrangement whereby Japan agreed to make an
initial contribution and ADB became the administrator. The
purpose of JSF is to help developing member countries (DMCs)
of ADB restructure their economies and broaden the scope of
opportunities for new investments, thereby assisting the recy-
cling of funds to DMCs of ADB. While JSF resources are used
mainly to finance technical assistance (TA) operations, these
resources may also be used for equity investment operations in
ADB’s DMCs. Under the agreement between ADB and Japan,
ADB may invest the proceeds of JSF pending disbursement.

In March 1999, the Board approved the acceptance and
administration by ADB of the Asian Currency Crisis Support Facility
(ACCSF) to assist Asian currency crisis-affected member coun-
tries (CAMCs). Funded by Japan, ACCSF was established within
JSF to assist in the economic recovery of CAMCs through inter-
est payment assistance (IPA) grants, TA grants, and guarantees.
With the general fulfillment of the purpose of the facility, Japan
and ADB agreed to terminate the ACCSF on 22 March 2002. An
amount of $90 million in the ACCSF account, upon request of
Japan, was transferred to the Japan Fund for Poverty Reduction
(JFPR). JFPR, established by Japan in May 2000 supporting
innovative poverty reduction and related social development
activities, is one of the trust funds managed by ADB. The ACCSF
account is to be kept open until the completion of all TA dis-
bursements and the settlement of all administrative expenses.

NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Presentation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements of JSF are presented on the basis of
unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets. ACCSF funds
are separately reported in the financial statements.

JSF reports the contributions of cash and other assets as
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations
that limit the use of the donated assets. When the donor re-
striction expires, that is, when a stipulated time or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the State-
ment of Activities and Changes in Net Assets as “NET ASSETS
RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS.”

Investments

All investment securities held by JSF are reported at estimated
fair value, which represents their fair market value. Realized
and unrealized gains and losses are included in revenue. Time
deposits are classified as “Held-to-Maturity” and are reported
at cost.

Contributions

Contributions by Japan are included in the financial statements
from the date indicated by Japan that funds are expected to
be made available. Contributions which are restricted by the
donor for specific TA projects/programs or for IPA grants are
classified as temporarily restricted contributions. Those with-
out any stipulation as to specific use are accounted for and
reported as unrestricted contributions.

Technical Assistance

Technical assistance is recognized in the financial statements
when the related project is approved and becomes effective.
Upon completion of the TA project or cancellation of a grant,
any undisbursed amount is written back as a reduction in TA
for the year and the corresponding undisbursed commitment
is eliminated, accordingly.

Functional Currency and Reporting Currency

The United States dollar is considered the functional currency
as it has become the currency of the primary economic oper-
ating environment of the Fund. The reporting currency is the
United States dollar. The financial statements are expressed in
thousands of current United States dollars.

Translation of Currencies

Assets, liabilities, and uncommitted balances are translated to
the reporting currency at the applicable rates of exchange at
the end of a reporting period. Contributions included in the
financial statements during the year are translated at the ap-
plicable exchange rates as of the respective dates of commit-
ment. Revenue and expense amounts are translated for each
semimonthly period at the applicable rates of exchange at the
beginning of each period; such practice approximates the
application of average rates in effect during the period. Exchange
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gains or losses on currency transactions arise on exchange
differences between the date a project/program is committed
and the timing of disbursements. Exchange gains or losses are
credited or charged to operations.

Equity Investments

Equity investments with readily determinable fair values are
reported at fair value using quoted market prices.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires Management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as at the end of the year and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.
The actual results could differ from those estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the JSF con-
siders that its cash and cash equivalents are limited to “DUE
FROM BANKS.”

NOTE C— INVESTMENTS

The main investment management objective is to maintain
security and liquidity. Subject to these parameters, ADB seeks
the highest possible return on its investments. Investments are
governed by the Investment Authority approved by the Board
of Directors in 1999. ADB is restricted by its Investment Au-
thority to invest in government and government-related debt
instruments and in time deposits. In the US dollar portfolio
only and up to limited amounts, investments may be made in
corporate bonds rated A or better, AAA-rated asset-backed
securities, and AAA-rated mortgage-backed securities.

The investment portfolios of both JSF and ACCSF as of
31 December 2004 and 2003 are comprised of United States
dollars holdings. Included in other securities as of 31 Decem-
ber 2004 were all corporate bonds.

The annualized rates of return on the average invest-
ments held under ACCSF and JSF funds during the year, based
on the portfolio held at the beginning and end of each month
were 1.35% and 1.47%, respectively (1.45% and 1.30%, re-
spectively - 2003).

NOTE D—EQUITY INVESTMENTS

ADB used JSF resources to make an equity investment in India
in 1990. In 2004, JSF sold this equity investment and realized
a net gain of $900,000.

NOTE E—OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Included in other assets and liabilities are advances made for
TAs totaling $2,042,000 ($2,398,000 – 2003) and interfund
transfers as follows:

2004 2003

Amounts Receivable by JSF from:

ACCSF $604,000 $1,410,000
Technical Assistance

Special Fund 1,000 –

Total $605,000 $1,410,000

Amounts Payable by:

JSF to: Ordinary Capital
Resources $ 50,000 $ 141,000

Agency Trust Funds – 8,000

Total 50,000 149,000

ACCSF to: Japan Special Fund 604,000 1,410,000

Total $654,000 $1,559,000

NOTE F—UNDISBURSED COMMITMENTS

Undisbursed commitments are denominated in United States
dollars and represent TA projects/programs which have become
effective but not yet disbursed. During 2004, an amount of
$8,428,000 representing completed and partially canceled TA
projects ($7,891,000 - 2003) have been written back as a re-
duction in technical assistance for the year, and the corres-
ponding undisbursed commitments have been eliminated. The
fair value of undisbursed commitments approximates the
amounts outstanding because ADB expects that disbursements
will substantially be made for all the projects/programs cov-
ered by the commitments.

NOTE G—CONTRIBUTIONS AND
UNCOMMITTED BALANCES

All contributions for the years ended 31 December 2004 and
2003 were received during the respective years.
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Effective 31 December 2002, all remaining temporarily
restricted net assets under JSF were transferred and integrated
into the unrestricted regular net assets, as concurred by Japan,
in order to optimize the use of JSF. Similarly, Japan lifted the
restriction over the use of net accumulated investment income,
which under the original terms of agreement between ADB and
Japan, may only be used for defraying JSF’s administrative
expenses. Japan agreed to use the net accumulated investment
income as additional resources for funding future ADB’s TA
operations.

In June 2004, the Cooperation Fund for Regional Trade
and Financial Security Initiative was established as a multi-

donor umbrella facility to support TA to developing member
countries for enhancing port security and combating money
laundering and terrorist financing. In July 2004, the Govern-
ment of Japan agreed to transfer US$1,000,000 to the fund
from the investment income of JSF.

Uncommitted balances comprised of amounts which have
not been committed by ADB as at 31 December 2004. These
balances include TA projects/programs that had been approved
but not yet become effective.

As of 31 December 2004 and 2003 these balances are as
follows:

The temporarily restricted uncommitted balance remain-
ing available as of 31 December 2004 corresponds to funds
under ACCSF of $26,022,000 ($25,067,000 - 2003) to cover
completion of TA disbursements and the amount of net accu-
mulated investment income of $2,865,000 ($2,402,000 - 2003)
for settlement of all administrative expenses.

Net assets released from restrictions relate to commit-
ments for technical assistance satisfying the conditions speci-
fied by the donor and, in the case of accumulated investment
income, to defray the administrative expenses of the Fund.

NOTE H—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying amount of time deposits is a reasonable
estimate of fair value and thus unrealized loss was not incurred
as of 31 December 2004.

If available, quoted market values are used to determine
fair values. Financial instruments for which market quota-
tions are not readily available are valued using methodologies
and assumptions which necessarily require the use of sub-
jective judgments. Accordingly, the actual value at which
such financial instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction or whether they are actually exchangeable is not
determinable.

The carrying amounts of JSF’s assets, liabilities, and un-
committed balances are considered to approximate fair values
for all significant financial instruments. See Notes B, C, D, and
F for discussions relating to investments, equity investments,
and undisbursed commitments.

2004 2003

JSF JSF
Regular and Regular and

ACCSF Supplementary Total ACCSF Supplementary Total

Uncommitted balances $26,022,000 $149,229,000 $175,251,000 $25,067,000  $140,208,000 $165,275,000

TA projects/programs
approved by Japan
and ADB but not
yet effective – (27,422,000) (27,422,000) –  (13,830,000)  (13,830,000)

TA projects/programs
approved by Japan
and not yet effective – (3,575,000) (3,575,000)   –  (1,300,000)  (1,300,000)

Uncommitted balances
available for new
commitments $26,022,000 $118,232,000 $144,254,000 $25,067,000 $125,078,000 $150,145,000
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